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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had 

at 1:38 p.m.: 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: We s h a l l resume w i t h Case 

Number 9797. 

MR. STOVALL: The A p p l i c a t i o n of Santa Fe 

Energy Operating Partners, L.P., f o r compulsory pool i n g 

i n a non-standard gas p r o r a t i o n u n i t , Eddy County, New 

Mexico. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Appearances i n the case? 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, my name i s Ernest 

L. P a d i l l a . I represent Santa Fe Energy Operating 

Partners, L.P., and I would ask t h a t Case 9832 be 

consolidated w i t h t h i s case, the Exxon A p p l i c a t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, Case Number 9832? 

MR. STOVALL: A p p l i c a t i o n of Exxon Company, 

U.S.A., f o r compulsory pooling, a non-standard gas 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t , an unorthodox gas w e l l l o c a t i o n , and an 

exemption t o Special r u l e s and Regulations governing 

the Rock Tank-Upper and Lower Morrow Gas Pools, Eddy 

County, New Mexico. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s there any o b j e c t i o n t o 

the cases being consolidated, Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Mr. Padi l l a ? Any other — 

MR. PADILLA: No. 
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CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, without objection, 

Cases 9797 and 9832 w i l l be consolidated. 

Appearances i n both cases, please? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Chairman, I'm Tom Kellahin 

of the Santa Fe law f i r m of Kellahin, Kellahin and 

Aubrey, appearing today on behalf of Exxon Corporation. 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, I've already 

entered my appearance i n Case 9797, and I enter my 

appearance i n Case 9832. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: A l l r i g h t . Additional 

appearances i n Cases 9797, 9832? 

Well, we shall proceed then. Are you going 

to give opening statements, or are you j u s t going to 

get r i g h t into i t ? 

MR. STOVALL: Swear the witnesses? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, yeah, i f they're going 

to give opening statements, I was going to — 

MR. KELLAHIN: We're going to give opening 

statements, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: You are? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, l e t ' s have those. 

Then after that, we'll swear i n the witnesses. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Gentlemen, Mr. Padilla and I 

are going to attempt to consolidate before you not a l l 
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the matters t h a t we t a l k e d about i n these consolidated 

cases before the Examiner, but r a t h e r t o focus i n on 

those issues t h a t we would l i k e you t o resolve f o r us. 

I n order t o do t h a t , I would l i k e t o move 

t h a t we incorporate by reference the Examiner record, 

which includes the t r a n s c r i p t , e x h i b i t s and testimony 

before Examiner Stogner, so t h a t both Mr. P a d i l l a and I 

can have comfort i n the f a c t t h a t a t l e a s t by 

in c o r p o r a t i n g the record, we've got the no t i c e s , the 

correspondence from the landmen and a l l the r e s t of 

t h i s package t h a t , i n f a c t , would make a complete 

record, r a t h e r than s i t here t h i s afternoon and b u i l d a 

record and take time t o hear those t h i n g s which we 

don't need you t o resolve. 

So we would so move t o incorporate the record 

from the Examiner proceeding before you. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s there any o b j e c t i o n t o 

t h a t , Mr. Padilla? 

MR. PADILLA: No o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: The record of the Examiner 

hearing i n these reference cases w i l l be incorporated 

i n t o the record of t h i s de novo case. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I n our e f f o r t t o t r y t o focus 

your a t t e n t i o n on problems remaining w i t h regards t o 

the context of t h i s case, I need t o t e l l you t h a t when 
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you look at the docket and see these as compulsory-

pooling cases, they're r e a l l y not. 

The issues involved here are simply 

masquerading as compulsory pooling. There are a great 

many things the parties agree about. 

F i r s t of a l l , we have an agreement that Santa 

Fe should be the operator. That was never a dispute. 

We have an agreement that t h i s i s going to be 

a highly r i s k y Morrow gas well, f o r which, because of 

the need to have the mechanics of a pooling order 

entered, then the r i s k factor i s going to be the 

maximum 200 percent. So you're not about to hear from 

us a dispute on the r i s k - f a c t o r penalty because I'm 

prepared to concede, as I did before Examiner Stogner, 

that the 200 percent i s appropriate. 

In addition, there's no dispute over the cost 

of the well. The AFE that was submitted by Santa Fe to 

Exxon and the one adopted by Examiner Stogner has — 

wit h i n reason, i s acceptable to us. There's no dispute 

on that question. 

There's no question about the overhead rates 

to apply. You can take those from the Examiner Order. 

They were f i f t e e n — They were $5500 a month d r i l l i n g -

well rate, and $550 a month producing-well rate. 

This case started because there i s an 
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a d m i n i s t r a t i v e dilemma created by the l o c a t i o n of the 

se c t i o n t h a t ' s i n question. We have put before you 

what w i l l be one of our e x h i b i t s . I t ' s marked as Exxon 

E x h i b i t Number 1. And t o simply reference you, we're 

lo o k i n g a t t h a t p o r t i o n of Eddy County, New Mexico, i n 

which Section 20, i d e n t i f i e d w i t h a red c i r c l e as t o a 

w e l l l o c a t i o n , i s i n pr o x i m i t y t o a number of other 

Morrow gas pools. 

The one of s i g n i f i c a n c e t o you i s one t h a t 

has been di v i d e d , whereby we have an Upper Morrow Gas 

Pool and a Lower Morrow Gas Pool, each of them c a l l e d 

Rock Tank. 

The problem here i s , Rock Tank, both Upper 

and Lower, i s based on 640 gas spacing. 

I t i s our contention, and we believe our 

proof, t h a t Section 20 i s not i n the same common source 

of supply w i t h Rock Tank and t h a t there i s no l o g i c a l 

s c i e n t i f i c reason t o extend Rock Tank i n t o Section 20. 

The other pools by reference on here, 

Baldridge Canyon w i l l be discussed by the t e c h n i c a l 

people. I t ' s generally o u t l i n e d on the d i s p l a y . 

That's 320 gas spacing. The conventional statewide gas 

spacing applies t o t h a t pool, as w e l l as Dark Canyon 

Penn, and as w e l l as a l l t h i s area on the t i e r of 

sections from Section 20 on t o the east. 
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In f a c t, Santa Fe agreed with that i n i t i a l l y , 

because that's what they i n i t i a l l y asked to do when 

they f i r s t proposed to the parties that Section 20 be 

developed for Morrow gas. The proposal was to dedicate 

the north half for a well i n the north h a l f . 

Having done that, though, the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 

of the Division, for reasons unknown to us, determined 

that Section 20, instead of being 320 gas spacing, was 

for some reason going to be an extension of Rock Tank. 

Both the geologists f o r Exxon and the 

geologists f o r Santa Fe that t e s t i f i e d before Mr. 

Stogner came to the ultimate conclusion — and they got 

there from d i f f e r e n t reasons, or d i f f e r e n t ways, 

looking at the data, but t h e i r bottom-line conclusion 

i s that Section 20 was not going to be part of Rock 

Tank. 

Mr. Stogner, contrary to what I would contend 

i s substantial evidence, of which there was no dispute, 

established 640 spacing for Section 20. 

So that i s one of the paramount reasons we're 

back today, i s to ask you to review the question. We 

are convinced, and hopefully we can persuade you, that 

there i s s u f f i c i e n t s c i e n t i f i c information to space 

Section 20 on 320 gas spacing. 

And that i s the administrative dilemma that 
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the parties were i n , because both parties i n i t i a l l y 

t r i e d to develop t h i s on 320. The D i s t r i c t Office says 

i t ' s 640. We got flipped back and f o r t h , and we need 

some choice, some decision by you as to what to do with 

the spacing. 

The issue for which there i s a dispute now 

i s , what i s the appropriate orientation f o r development 

of 320 — of Section 20 — i f you reach the conclusion 

3 20 spacing i s appropriate? 

Now, for convenience we'll use 320 spacing, 

but remember within the detai l s of the advertisement, 

your Section 20 i s an oddball size. I t ' s 600 acres. 

So y o u ' l l see on the docket c a l l there's going to be a 

need to establish a nonstandard spacing u n i t . 

I t i s undisputed geologically between both 

companies that the primary location f o r the w e l l , the 

best location geologically i s the northeast quarter of 

Section 20. Both geologists w i l l show you today 

they've reached there i n d i f f e r e n t ways. 

Our primary geologic target w i l l be the same 

formation, i f you w i l l , Upper and Lower Morrow. But we 

contend and hope we can prove to you that they're not 

connected with Rock Tank. But both geologists had 

picked t h e i r f i r s t , best location to be i n the 

northeast quarter. We contend that you can s t i l l be 
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there. 

Santa Fe, at the Examiner l e v e l , said that 

there were topographic problems. This i s a l l federal 

acreage. I t had to do with approvals of the use of the 

surface. So we have brought our supervisor th a t deals 

with the surface and can discuss that i f i t becomes an 

issue today. 

I f y o u ' l l look at Section 20, the ownership 

i s divided i n such a way that Amoco controls the south 

h a l f , and they have simply sat on the sidelines, 

waiting the outcome of the resolution of t h i s case. 

When we started back i n November of 1989, 

Santa Fe controlled what I w i l l simply summarize as a 

40-acre t r a c t . I t ' s a l i t t l e less than that. And 

Exxon had the balance of the north ha l f . 

What we believe we w i l l show you and what the 

issue to resolve, then, i s the appropriate orientation. 

We believe 320 gas spacing i s appropriate. The 

orientat i o n should be standups with the east half 

dedicated to the f i r s t well, to leave the west h a l f , 

then, available for the next well. And that next well 

location would be the northwest quarter. 

There are two items to correct between now 

and getting to a Commission hearing on t h i s question. 

F i r s t of a l l , the record, I think, i s clear 
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at t h i s point, and hopefully before you, that i t ' s 

Exxon Corporation as opposed to Exxon Company, U.S.A. 

But more importantly i s the location 

advertised i n the Exxon Application. The o r i g i n a l 

location i s advertised as an unorthodox location 660 

out of the north and east corner of Section 20. That 

was subsequently amended, and Examiner Stogner and Mr. 

Padilla and I discussed before him the merits of 

various locations. 

The location that Exxon had proposed to the 

Examiner then and to you now i s one that i s more 

standard; i t ' s 1500 feet from the north l i n e . I t ' s 

1100 feet from the east l i n e . 

I f you follow the practice of the Division, 

there i s no need to readvertise the case. We're moving 

to a more standard location. I believe between Santa 

Fe and Exxon we control the o f f s e t t i n g acreage anyway, 

and there's no further notices being provided. 

What I want to present to you t h i s afternoon 

are two technical witnesses. F i r s t , a geologist to 

discuss with you his mapping and conclusions with 

regards to the geology. And then second of a l l , 

Exxon's petroleum engineer to discuss the engineering 

aspects of his position. 

And i n that way I hope we can focus your 
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attention on those two major items and one minor item. 

The f i r s t major item i s the spacing, the second i s the 

orien t a t i o n , and f i n a l l y the appropriate well location. 

And that's what we seek t o accomplish. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. Kellahin. 

Mr. Padilla? 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, members of the 

Commission, I basically agree with Mr. Kellahin with 

regard to the various stipulations that he has 

proposed, and I have no problems with those matters 

that are contained i n the p r i o r Order of the Division. 

I do d i f f e r , and Santa Fe d i f f e r s , i n some 

respect with the characterization of the geology and 

with the information and findings made by the Division 

i n i t s Order. 

I want to be bri e f i n my opening statement. 

I prefer to ju s t put on my case when i t ' s my turn . 

I do want to emphasize two findings that the 

Division made i n i t s r u l i n g . Finding Number 8 — and 

bear with me, I ' l l read that i n f u l l — states, There 

i s i n s u f f i c i e n t geological evidence available i n t h i s 

area at t h i s time to j u s t i f y any other spacing than 

what i s allowed by the Division Rules applicable t o 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r matter. Therefore, the one-mile 

extension to both the Rock Tank Upper and Lower Morrow 
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Gas Pools by which the Morrow Formation i s governed 

should p r e v a i l , and Exxon's request for 320-acre 

spacing for said Morrow Formation i n Section 20 should 

be denied. 

Now, our geology and our geologist i s going 

to t e s t i f y there i s — there may be some separation but 

i t c e r t a i n l y doesn't go to a f a u l t , as Exxon w i l l 

t e s t i f y . 

So i n that respect, I think the Division's 

finding i s going to be appropriate u n t i l such time as a 

well i s d r i l l e d i n the north half to determine whether 

or not i t i s actually within the boundary of the Rock 

Tank Upper or Lower Morrow Formation. 

Therefore i t ' s our testimony, or our 

testimony i s going to be that there i s s t i l l 

i n s u f f i c i e n t geological evidence t o make a d e f i n i t i v e 

statement as to whether or not 640-acre spacing or 320-

acre spacing i s appropriate. 

I t i s our position that i f 320-acre spacing 

i s determined by the Commission to be appropriate, then 

we should be on laydown units. Our testimony w i l l t e l l 

you why we should have laydown units instead of 

standups, as opposed to Exxon's position. 

The second finding that I would point to the 

Commission i s Finding Number 9, which we think has 
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considerable merit i n choosing a surface location. 

And that finding states: Because of 

topographical conditions within said Section 20 and a 

major draw feature versus the northeastern portion, 

there was considerable discussion about possible well 

relocations to minimize well-pad costs — cost — and 

to abide by the requirements of the U.S. Bureau of Land 

Management and the surface management agency i n t h i s 

area. 

We think that for environmental reasons, the 

location chosen by Santa Fe should be — be the 

appropriate location, and a considerable amount of our 

presentation t h i s afternoon w i l l be with regard t o the 

surface location. 

The rules of the Rock Tank Formation or Pool 

are special pool rules, and as far as we can determine 

today we have to abide by them. That i s why Santa Fe 

changed i t s Application from 320 acres to 640 acres. 

As explained by Mr. Kellahin, the nature of 

the non-standard proration u n i t as applied for by Santa 

Fe i s determined by the 600-acre proration u n i t that i s 

on t h i s section. 

For the benefit of the Commission, I've j u s t 

handed you the copies of the special pool rules and — 

so that you can have those before you. 
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And t h a t concludes my opening remarks, and 

you can l i s t e n t o Mr. K e l l a h i n now. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. P a d i l l a . 

W i l l those witnesses t h a t w i l l be g i v i n g 

testimony k i n d l y stand and r a i s e your r i g h t hand t o be 

sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , you may proceed. 

JAMES M. KWOLEK. 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn 

upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. For the record, would you please s t a t e your 

name and occupation? 

A. My name i s James Michael Kwolek, and I am a 

geo l o g i s t f o r Exxon Corporation. 

Q. Let me put a microphone over there f o r you, 

Jim. I t ' s going t o be hard hearing you. 

How do you s p e l l your l a s t name? 

A. I t ' s spelled K-w-o-l-e-k. 

Q. And i t ' s pronounced Kwolek, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Mr. Kwolek, would you summarize your 
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educational experience for us? 

A. I graduated from the University of I l l i n o i s 

i n 1972 with a bachelor of science degree i n geology. 

I n 1985 I graduated with a master's degree 

from Indiana University, that degree being i n geology 

also. 

Q. Would you summarize f o r us what has been your 

employment experience as a petroleum geologist? 

A. Following graduation, I hired on with Exxon 

Corporation i n Midland, Texas, as a geologist. 

At Exxon, the las t four and a half years, 

I've been responsible for i d e n t i f y i n g prospects for 

Exxon to d r i l l , as well as to optimize development of 

t h e i r units and where they have interest i n other 

f i e l d s . That work has included studies of both 

carbonates and sandstone reservoirs, and i t has 

included f i e l d s and units throughout the Rockies and 

down into the Permian Basin. 

Within the las t year and a ha l f , the emphasis 

of my work has been on the Morrow play i n southeastern 

New Mexico, s p e c i f i c a l l y Eddy County, New Mexico. 

Q. As part of your study i n the Morrow play i n 

Eddy County, New Mexico, did you par t i c i p a t e i n the 

development of the exhibits and the geologic evaluation 

and conclusions that were presented to the Examiner at 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

the hearing i n November of last year? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And have you continued i n your involvement 

and study of the geology u n t i l the present day? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Pursuant to your study of the Morrow, have 

you reached certain conclusions with regards t o the 

Morrow that's shown on what i s marked as Exhibit Number 

1, f o r Exxon Corporation? 

A. I have reached several conclusions with 

respect to the Morrow. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender at t h i s time Mr. 

Kwolek as an expert petroleum geologist. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: His q u a l i f i c a t i o n s are 

acceptable. 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) Describe f o r me what you 

did, Mr. Kwolek, i n order to study the geology. 

A. In order to evaluate the Morrow geology, I 

was involved i n the construction of a g r i d of cross-

sections across the study area. 

In addition to those — Those cross-sections 

involved a correlation of the productive sands wi t h i n 

the Morrow i n t e r v a l , as well as analysis of the 

production and a l l DST and production t e s t data. 

Q. Are you sa t i s f i e d that you had s u f f i c i e n t 
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geologic i n f o r m a t i o n on which t o base conclusions? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. What were you asked t o determine? 

A. My assignment was t o consider whether or not 

Section 20, as in d i c a t e d on E x h i b i t 1, i s p a r t — I f 

production were t o be established, would i t f a l l w i t h i n 

the Rock Tank Pools? 

I f production — I f i t was not w i t h i n the 

Rock Tank Pools and i t f e l l w i t h i n e i t h e r the Dark 

Canyon Penn Pool, the Baldridge Canyon Pool or was a 

w i l d c a t pool and f e l l under statewide r u l i n g — spacing 

— of 320 acres, I was then t o consider what the best 

o r i e n t a t i o n w i t h i n Section 20 would be t o maximize the 

development of the section i n question. 

Q. On the f i r s t question, were you able t o reach 

a conclusion? 

A. I d i d . 

Q. And what was t h a t conclusion? 

A. That conclusion was t h a t Section 20 should 

not be put i n t o the — cannot be p a r t of the Rock Tank 

Pool, and t h e r e f o r e should not be r u l e d a t 640-acre 

spacing. 

Q. For the information of the Commission, take a 

moment and i d e n t i f y the information shown on E x h i b i t 

Number 1. 
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A. Exhibit Number 1 i s a cumulative production 

map fo r the area i n question, Section 20, locating 

here. Exxon's proposed location i n the northeast 

quarter locates 1500 feet from the north l i n e , 1100 

feet from the east l i n e . 

Within the mapped area I have shown a l l 

Morrow penetrations and have i d e n t i f i e d a l l producing 

gas — Morrow gas wells — by the standard gas symbol. 

You'll note that the proposed location of 

Exxon's i s i n excess of one and a half miles from the 

closest producing Morrow well. 

I have shown the generalized outline of the 

— of three major — or four major producing pools 

wi t h i n the area: again, the Rock Tank Upper and Lower 

Morrow Pool, the Dark Canyon Pool and Baldridge Canyon 

Pool. 

As previously noted, Rock Tank i s on 640-acre 

spacing, the other pools within the area being on 320-

acre spacing. 

Q. When we're looking at the Morrow exploration 

i n t h i s area, have you provided us with a type log so 

you can help us describe and understand the Morrow that 

you're looking for? 

A. I have, and I'd l i k e to present that as the 

next e x h i b i t . 
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Exhibit Number 2 i s my type log. The type 

log i s from the Rock Tank Unit Number 3 Well, located 

i n Section 5 to the northeast of the Rock Tank Pools. 

Q. Let's take a moment and f i n d that. You're 

showing the location of the Number 3 well on Exhibit 

Number 1? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. Let me c i r c l e that for you. In Section 5, 

that i s the well from which you've taken the type log? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. On t h i s type log I've t r i e d t o i d e n t i f y those 

terms that w i l l be used i n my testimony. 

What we are concerned with here today i s the 

Morrow section, i n particular the Morrow Clastic 

section shown on top of the defined Morrow el a s t i c s . 

In addition, I've shown two prominent 

markers, those being the base of the Upper Morrow shale 

marker and the more dominant mapping horizon, the base 

across southeastern New Mexico, base of the Middle 

Morrow shale. 

Finally, t h i s type log, I have i d e n t i f i e d or 

I have shown on the type log the two dominant producing 

reservoirs i n the Rock Tank and Baldridge Canyon Morrow 

Pools: the Upper Morrow Sandstone and the Lower Morrow 
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Sandstone. 

Q. When you as a geologist have completed your 

study and begin t o look, then, a t what are t o be the 

primary geologic ob j e c t i v e s f o r Section 20, what d i d 

you f i n d t h a t you ought t o be looking f o r ? 

A. What I found was t h a t w i t h i n the area under 

discussion, over 85 percent of the production i s coming 

from the Upper Morrow and Lower Morrow sandstone. 

Of those two producing horizons, over 75 

percent of the production i n the Rock Tank Pool i s 

coming from the Lower Morrow sandstone. 

Q. Having completed your study, i s there any 

doubt i n your mind as a geologist t h a t l o o k i n g f o r the 

best w e l l l o c a t i o n or the o r i e n t a t i o n f o r development 

of Section 20, the t a r g e t formations are the Upper and 

the Lower Morrow sandstones? 

A. I believe i n t h i s area, c o n s i d e r a t i o n of 

Section 20, you have t o consider the Upper Morrow, 

Lower Morrow sandstones; t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. At the Examiner hearing, Santa Fe's g e o l o g i s t 

t a l k e d about a Morrow i n t e r v a l t h a t he i d e n t i f i e d as 

the second sequence? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So t h a t the Commission can f o l l o w t h a t 

discussion when i t a r i s es, would you help us understand 
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where you believe t h i s second sequence is? 

A. I believe — I believe i t ' s c a l l e d Sequence 

2, occurs above the base of the Middle Morrow shale and 

below the Upper Morrow sandstone. 

More s p e c i f i c a l l y , i t occurs approximately i n 

the middle — I believe on the type l o g i t w i l l be from 

the t h i n shale marker approximately 10,465 f e e t up 

through t h a t t h i n shale marker i d e n t i f i e d on the gamma 

ray a t 10,414 f e e t . 

Q. Mr. Kwolek, you were a t the p r i o r Examiner 

hearing and c e r t a i n l y have had enough time between the 

two hearings t h a t you could have redone your study, i f 

you w i l l , and used the second sequence as the t a r g e t 

sand by which t o determine the l o c a t i o n and development 

of Section 20? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Why d i d n ' t you do that? 

A. What I found w i t h i n the area, and as 

i d e n t i f i e d on the Santa Fe geologic e x h i b i t s , i s t h a t 

t h e r e i s no s i g n i f i c a n t production coming from the 

sequence t o reser- — or ob j e c t i v e across the mapped 

area. 

Q. Having completed your study, then, using the 

upper Morrow and the lower Morrow, are those the same 

formations t h a t are productive i n Rock Tank? 
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A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Have you concluded t h a t you're i n the same 

pool or i n the same common source of supply? 

A. With respect t o Section 20? 

Q. Section 20? 

A. With respect t o Section 20, produc- — Would 

you — 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. — rephrase the question? 

Q. We're looking at the same formation? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. The next question, g e o l o g i c a l l y , are you 

looking a t the same pool? 

A. We are not looking at the same — I f 

production i s established i n Section 20 i n e i t h e r the 

Upper Morrow sandstone or the Lower Morrow sandstone, 

i t would not be i n the same pool, because I be l i e v e I 

can show evidence t h a t shows e i t h e r a s t r a t i g r a p h i c or 

a s t r u c t u r a l separation of Section 20 from the Rock 

Tank Pools. 

Q. As p a r t of your geologic i n v e s t i g a t i o n , were 

you provided any engineering conclusions? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. What were you provided by your engineering 

s t a f f ? 
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A. I worked w i t h the engineering s t a f f t o 

support and t o analyze the geologic data, and t o 

perhaps i d e n t i f y other areas t h a t I could consider 

g e o l o g i c a l l y . What I found — 

Q. What d i d they t e l l you? 

A. The main conclusion t h a t I would b r i n g t o the 

a t t e n t i o n i s t h a t i f you look a t pressure data from the 

Rock Tank Upper and Lower Pools and the production — 

or the pressure data from Baldridge Canyon Pool, they 

are not of the same r e s e r v o i r . There i s — They are i n 

d i s c o n t i n u i t y . 

That suggests t h a t there i s a geologic 

b a r r i e r t o explain t h a t r e s e r v o i r discon- — the 

pressure d i f f e r e n c e s between the two f i e l d s . 

Q. Were you asked, then, t o see i f there was a 

geologic explanation t h a t could account f o r the 

engineering's f i n d i n g the pressure d i f f e r e n t i a l t h a t 

e x i s t e d between the two pools? 

A. I d i d . 

Q. As p a r t of your study, d i d you prepare a 

s t r u c t u r e map? 

A. Yes, I d i d , and t h a t would be my next e x h i b i t 

I ' d l i k e t o show, E x h i b i t Number 3. 

I believe i f I work from E x h i b i t Number 3 — 

I step back and look at the question before me w i t h 
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respect t o Section 20. 

How does Section 20 f i t i n t o the geologic 

b a r r i e r , i f i t f i t s i n a t a l l , between the Baldridge 

Canyon f i e l d and the Rock Tank producing wells? And I 

have t o conclude t h a t e i t h e r the geologic b a r r i e r t h a t 

has been supported by engineering data e i t h e r e x i s t s t o 

the n o r t h of Section 20 or i t e x i s t s t o the south of 

Section 20. 

Now, i f we look at t h a t , t h a t p o i n t , i f i t 

occurs t o the north of Section 20, because of t h a t 

geologic b a r r i e r , whether i t be s t r a t i g r a p h i c or 

s t r u c t u r a l , then Section 20, i f production i s 

established i n a d r i l l w e l l , i t w i l l e i t h e r f a l l i n t o 

the Dark Canyon f i e l d or the Baldridge Canyon Morrow 

Pool, or i t could e x i s t as a separate w i l d c a t pool. 

I f , on the other hand, the geologic b a r r i e r 

separating Rock Tank and Baldridge Pools occurs t o the 

south of Section 20, then Section 20 w i l l be p a r t of 

the Rock Tank Pool, unless there i s some k i n d of 

geologic separation — or — Section 20 — w i l l be p a r t 

of Section 20, unless there i s a second geologic 

b a r r i e r . 

And my conclusion i s t h a t , yes, there i s . 

And what I've h i g h l i g h t e d on the map i s two small water 

zones. Those water zones are based on DST's w i t h i n our 
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type log or within the Rock Tank Unit Number 3 Well. 

The DST i n the — There were DST's i n both 

the Upper and Lower Morrow sandstones. 

To phrase i t a d i f f e r e n t way, i f Section 20 

is not i n pressure — I f Section 20 i s i n section — 

Sorry. 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) I f Section 20 i s i n Rock 

Tank — 

A. I f Section 20 — 

Q. — i s i t going to be gas-productive? 

A. — i s i n communication with Rock Tank, and i t 

i s productive, I have to conclude that i t w i l l be 

productive, but i t w i l l be wet, because of the 

existence of several data points. 

And the f i r s t data point I'd l i k e t o point 

out i s DST tests i n the Rock Tank Unit Number 5 — 

Number 3, located i n Section 5. 

The DST i n the Upper Morrow sandstone i n 

Section 5 resulted i n 580 feet of formation water-cut 

mud, and i t had a moderate show of gas. 

In the DST of the Lower Morrow sandstone, the 

DST recovered 1000 feet, a foot water blanket, and 1650 

feet of formation water plus 375 feet of s l i g h t l y gas-

cut mud. 

Q. Put that i n English f o r me as a layman, Mr. 
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Kwolek. I f y o u ' l l look at those kind of d r i l l stem 

t e s t results for the Number 3 Well i n Section 5, what 

does that t e l l you? 

A. What i t ' s t e l l i n g you i s that you have water 

at a st r u c t u r a l contour of approximately 600 — or 6650 

feet. And i f you corre- — or follow that s t r u c t u r a l 

contour down between the Rock Tank f i e l d and Section 

20, then there exists a water column between — or that 

separates Rock Tank from Section 20. 

Q. Let's t a l k a minute about the structure, a l l 

right? Explain to me how confident you are that you 

have correctly mapped the structure. 

A. The structure map i s based prim a r i l y on 

subsurface control. The structure map i t s e l f has a 

contour i n t e r v a l of 100 feet. As indicated by a l l the 

well spots, the control i s s i g n i f i c a n t or i s 

si g n i f i c a n t enough to give a st r u c t u r a l picture across 

the mapped area. 

Q. When I look at the orange l i n e , what i s that? 

A. That w i l l be a stru c t u r a l contour — or a 

str u c t u r a l cross-section which follows through a l l of 

the wells at Rock Tank, follows through the wet t e s t i n 

the Rock Tank Unit Number 3, goes down across Section 

20 and down to a dry and abandoned well i n Section 29. 

In addition to the subsurface data i n t h i s 
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immediate area, t h i s s t r u c t u r a l configuration, the dip, 

f i t s i n t o a more regional s t r u c t u r a l i n t e r p - — or 

str u c t u r a l mapping of southeastern Eddy County. 

Q. When we look, then, at the structure, do you 

have an opinion as to whether or not you have found 

substantial geologic evidence to j u s t i f y the s t r u c t u r a l 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n that you have made? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Within the range of reason, i f you w i l l , of a 

geologist's a b i l i t y to take certain data points and 

contour that information, I have often seen geologists 

have s l i g h t l y d i f f e r e n t interpretations. 

Can you get a materially d i f f e r e n t 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the information by which to draw the 

structure so that the structure i n Section 20 i s going 

to be above the water i n the Upper and Lower Morrow? 

A. In order to recontour s i g n i f i c a n t l y the 

structure shown across Section 20, I would have t o 

disregard, i n par t i c u l a r , the control point i n Section 

29, Section — the two control points at Section 30, 

and those up at Rock Tank, that's correct. I have 

confidence i n t h i s structure map. 

Q. The distance v e r t i c a l l y from the highest 

s t r u c t u r a l position i n Section 20 to the lowest known 

water i n the Upper and Lower Morrow i n the Rock tank i s 
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what distance? 

A. That distance would go from a contour of 

approximately 6770 subsea up to the contour of 

approximately 6650, with a — based on the DST i n 

Section 5. 

However, there are two additional tests — 

Q. Well, what's that footage? Approximately 

what's the v e r t i c a l separation, then? 

A. That i s approximately 80 feet from the 

northwest corner of Section 20. 

Down across Section 20, though, you are 

dropping an additional 350 feet. So you have the 

pote n t i a l for dropping from the highest proven water to 

a second well i n Section 20, dropping down s t r u c t u r a l l y 

approx- — i n excess of 400 feet. 

Q. Just for reference, show us the lowest 

producing gas i n the Lower Morrow i n Rock Tank. 

A. Okay, the lowest proven gas would be i n the 

WG Fed Com Number 1, which i s located i n Section 13 at 

approximately 6356, t h i s structure map again being 

based on the Middle Morrow shale. 

Now, t h i s lowest proven gas was based on the 

early tests within the f i e l d , and I think there's two 

s i g n i f i c a n t tests that I should bring to your 

attent ion, however. 
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The f i r s t would be i n Section 13. The wel l 

i n the northwest corner was d r i l l e d i n 1985 by 

Mewbourne and was DST'd i n early 1986. That DST i n the 

Lower Morrow sandstone recovered 370 feet of heavy gas-

cut mud i n addition to 630 feet of gas-cut water. 

What t h i s suggests to me i s that we may have 

had some movement of our gas-water contact. 

In addition to that well spot, l e t me note 

that up i n Section 31, which occurs at a subsea depth 

on the datum of negative 6426, there was a DST i n the 

Upper Morrow sandstone which produced — which 

recovered 270 feet of heavy gas- and water-cut mud. 

So what we're seeing i s , we have now three 

wells to the northwest of Section 20 that have had 

either s i g n i f i c a n t water tests or have had a less 

s i g n i f i c a n t t e s t : The Rock Tank Unit Number 3, the 

well i n the northwest — northeast quarter of Section 

31, and the most recent well i n the northwest quarter 

of Section 13. 

Q. When we examine Section 20, can you conclude, 

based upon that geology, that Section 20 w i l l be i n a 

separate pool, not i n Rock Tank, i f you delete the 

f a u l t that you have projected between Section 20 and — 

What i s i t ? 18? 19? 

A. Nineteen. 
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Q. Okay. Is your evaluation — Let me say i t 

again. Is your geologic conclusion, evaluation, 

predicated s p e c i f i c a l l y upon the presence of the f a u l t 

as you've depicted i t ? 

A. No, i t i s not, and l e t me discuss that point 

f o r a moment. 

As I stated e a r l i e r , i n order to set up a 

productive pool i n Section 20, we need either a 

st r u c t u r a l or a stratigraphic trapping mechanism across 

t h i s area. 

I believe the water tests show that there i s 

i n f a c t a trapping mechanism i n — within t h i s area. 

Or, i f there i s not, then everything south of wherever 

your true oil-gas contact, whether i t now be up at 6279 

or whether i t be further downdip where we had the two 

other DST's, everything to the south of that contour, 

as you go downdip, i s going to be water-wet. 

Q. What does the projection of the f a u l t , then, 

do to the analysis? 

A. The reason I put i n the f a u l t was because i t 

can be mapped i n based on the s t r u c t u r a l — the data 

control. 

I n addition, I have — Since the l a s t 

hearing, I have reviewed Exxon's seismic i n the 

immediate area and found a seismic l i n e that cut — i t 
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i d e n t i f i e d and supported the subsurface i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

that there was a f a u l t , or cut t i n g across the northwest 

boundary of Section 30 and 31. 

What the existence of t h i s f a u l t does i s , i t 

may simply give us an explanation f o r how we could set 

up a trapping mechanism and therefore postulate that 

Section 20 i s i n fact productive. 

Q. In order to have gas production— 

A. Yes. 

Q. — from the geologic perspective, i n order to 

have gas production i n Section 20, i n either the Upper 

or the Lower Morrow, what's going to have to happen to 

separate you out from Rock Tank? 

A. In order for there to be production i n 

Section 20, again, we have to have either a 

stratigraphic trap or a str u c t u r a l trap. And a 

str u c t u r a l trap could be explained by the f a u l t as 

shown. 

Q. Because you are downstructure i n Section 20 

from the production i n Rock Tank and you have the water 

contact established on the structure, you can conclude, 

then, geologically that i f you're i n the same common 

source of supply with Rock Tank, you're going to be 

below the water content? 

A. I f we are i n communication i n Section 20 — 
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I f Section 20 i s i n communication with Rock Tank, the 

Upper or Lower Morrow sandstones, you w i l l be water-

wet; that i s correct. 

Q. Do you see any other way that you can draw 

the structure map and honor the data — 

A. Not — 

Q. — to resolve that? 

A. No, I would have to disregard data. 

Q. Let's go to the cross-section, then, and see 

how i t — how the data i s displayed i n that fashion. 

A. To renote, the st r u c t u r a l cross-section, 

C-C prime, again goes through a l l of the wells w i t h i n 

the Rock Tank Upper and Lower Morrow Pool. I t also 

goes through the wet well i n Section 5, down across the 

subject acreage to the south i n Section 29 where there 

i s a dry and abandoned well. 

Q. Explain the mechanics of the three panels 

now. I think the display was put together i n three 

separate sections. 

A. What I wanted to do was more v i s u a l l y 

i l l u s t r a t e what the structure map — what I've j u s t 

said from the structure map, and that i s to show that 

there i s going to be separation of Exxon's proposed 

location for any well d r i l l e d i n Section 20 from the 

Morrow — or the Rock Tank Pools — i n order f o r there 
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t o be production established. The — 

Q. Let me make sure I understand. You've 

labeled i t f o r convenience, Exxon Proposed Location. 

But i s i t — Am I co r r e c t i n understanding t h a t 

wherever you move t h a t l i n e on the d i s p l a y , s t i l l 

s t a y i n g i n Section 20, you're s t i l l going t o come t o 

the same conclusion? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . S t a r t from l e f t t o r i g h t and give 

us an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the s t r u c t u r a l conclusions you 

see on the dis p l a y . 

F i r s t of a l l , help us f i n d and t r a c k , then, 

the Upper Morrow and the Lower Morrow. 

A. The Upper Morrow — The horizons t h a t I am 

showing you, or the i n t e r v a l s , are once again the 

bases, the Upper Morrow shale marker and the Middle 

Morrow shale marker. 

I n a d d i t i o n , we have the Lower Morrow 

sandstone as w e l l as the Upper Morrow sandstone. 

For convenience I have had colored i n — used 

the f o l l o w i n g c o l o r codes: Red f o r gas, orange f o r 

mud, and blue f o r water. 

What I am t r y i n g t o i l l u s t r a t e — Well, I 

w i l l walk from the Rock Tank f i e l d proper down i n t o 

Section 20 and make a few observations. 
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As we walk — As we s t a r t from the 

s t r u c t u r a l l y low end of the Rock Tank f i e l d , we see 

that we have a general a n t i c l i n a l feature i n which 

production i s well established on the crest, with a l l 

the wells on the crest being productive except f o r , 

again, the late well i n Section 13, as I previously 

pointed out. 

Moving further to the — Moving closer to 

Section 20, we s t a r t — we are no longer gaining 

structure; we begin to lose i t , s t a r t i n g with the Rock 

Tank Unit Number 4 i n Section 1, down in t o Section 7 i n 

which production was s t i l l established both i n the 

Upper and Lower Morrow Pools. 

Going to Section 6, there was a t i g h t t e s t 

which recovered mud i n the Upper Morrow Sandstone, 

s t i l l production i n the lower sandstone, although there 

was minor production of water. 

And then f i n a l l y we get down into Section 5 

where we had our two wet DST tests. Now, you might 

observe that these tests, once again, f a l l over 200 

feet s t r u c t u r a l l y from our la s t proven gas production. 

I then cross over the interpreted — the 

f a u l t that I have mapped on the structure, contour map, 

and i n t o the general area of Section 20 as indicated by 

Exxon's proposed location, and continue down in t o 
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Section 29. 

Q. Again, demonstrating your position on Exhibit 

Number 4, show us what happens i f you simply take the 

fault out. 

A. Once again, i f you take the fault out and 

correlate together the sandstones on the downside of 

the fault and the upper sides of the fault, what 

happens i s , you see that Section 20 i s going to 

penetrate sandstones that are producing downdip from 

water, and i t i s in fact going to produce water, unless 

there i s either this type — a type of structural 

trapping mechanism or stratigraphic trapping mechanism. 

What I've done i s , several of the panels have 

been put together so that for convenience' sake here, 

several of the panels have been le f t as separate 

sections for convenience of manipulation. 

Q. Let's turn now to an examination of what the 

isopachs look like when you isopach the Lower and then 

the Upper Morrow. 

A. Okay, and those wi l l be — start with Exhibit 

Number 5, I believe. 

Q. Let's turn to Exhibit Number 5, Mr. Kwolek, 

and have you identify and describe your Lower Morrow 

sandstone. 

A. Exhibit Number 5 is a gross sandstone is o l i t h 
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of the Lower Morrow sandstone. I t has a contour 

i n t e r v a l of t e n f e e t . I have used a l l the a v a i l a b l e 

subsurface data w i t h i n the mapped area. 

Q. Just f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n , Mr. Tate i s another 

g e o l o g i s t w i t h Exxon? 

A. That i s co r r e c t . 

Q. Did you and he work i n conjunction i n 

preparing a l l of these displays? 

A. We d i d , and I have — Several of the e x h i b i t s 

were p r e v i o u s l y used i n the l a s t hearing, and I have 

e i t h e r — I have reviewed a l l of the data and made 

those minor changes t h a t I f e l t were necessary such 

as — There was on one example moving a w e l l spot 

several hundred f e e t , minor c o r r e c t i o n . 

Q. So the end r e s u l t of a l l the displays i s i t 

represents your opinions and conclusions w i t h regards 

t o the geology? 

A. I t does. 

Q. Describe f o r us what you see as a g e o l o g i s t , 

having mapped the Lower Morrow sandstone i n t h i s area. 

A. What I see and i s — i l l u s t r a t e d on the Lower 

Morrow sandstone i s o l i t h — i s t h a t we have a 

northwest-southeast o r i e n t a t i o n of channel sands. 

That i s my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the Lower 

Morrow, as w e l l as the Upper Morrow sandstones. They 
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are e f f l u v i a l i n nature i n t h i s area. 

When I speak of e f f l u v i a l , I'm t a l k i n g about 

r i v e r system, t a l k i n g about r i v e r , you're t a l k i n g about 

sandbars, predominantly sandbars, f i l l e d i n a r i v e r 

channel. 

Q. Do you f i n d t h a t the mapping of the Lower 

Morrow i s o l i t h f o r t h i s sand i s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h 

r e g i o n a l mapping of t h i s e f f l u v i a l channel? 

A. One of the things I l i k e about my 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the subsurface i n t h i s immediate area 

i s , i t f i t s i n very w e l l w i t h the r e g i o n a l data. 

Q. What does t h i s t e l l you as a g e o l o g i s t , i f 

anything, about whether or not Section 20 i s separated 

from Rock Tank? 

A. What i t t e l l s me i s t h a t the d e p o s i t i o n — 

the sand t h a t was deposited a t Sec- — w i t h i n the Rock 

Tank Morrow f i e l d or pools i s the same sand t h a t w i l l 

e x i s t i n Sec- — or w i l l e x i s t i n Section 20. 

The — now, again, you don't — the — The 

sand deposition at Rock Tank i s not going t o stop, 

whether or not you have t h a t f a u l t t h e r e . This t r e n d 

i n p a r t i c u l a r of sand continues both beyond t o the 

northwest as w e l l as at l e a s t several miles t o the 

southeast. 

Q. What does t h i s t e l l you about how t o best 
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locate the f i r s t well for exploration of Section 20 and 

how to orient the spacing units? 

A. What I had to look at was, where was the sand 

in Section 20, and i f more than one well i s necessary, 

I'd like to penetrate the thickest sand. The Morrow, 

particularly on a wildcat well or on a very rankish 

well, you want to — you want to target sand thickness. 

Q. When we integrate, looking at Section 20, 

then, integrate the structure with the thickness of the 

Lower Morrow, what do you find in the section? 

A. What I find i s that the northwest — that 

there are — Fi r s t off, there i s enough sand across 

Section 20 to locate two wells. Second off, that the 

northeast quarter of Section 20 i s the most favorable 

with respect to sand thickness. 

Q. In order to develop, then, the f u l l section 

on 320 gas spacing, where would you place the second 

well? 

A. The second well in Section 20 I would place 

in the northwest quarter. And that second location i s 

based on both stratigraphy and structure. 

With a — As I previously noted, with a 

wildcat or rankish well in the Morrow, you want to get 

your sand thickness. But then you have to start 

worrying about how close are you to the downdip 
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productive l i m i t s of the gas? How soon are you going 

t o get i n t o a gas-water contact? 

And w i t h respect t o Section 20, i t was 

fo r t u n a t e t h a t the sandstone thickness was greatest i n 

the northwest quarter versus the southeast quarter, as 

w e l l as the most s t r u c t u r a l l y favorable p o s i t i o n . 

Q. Why have you opposed the Santa Fe proposal t o 

have laydown spacing u n i t s w i t h the w e l l , the second 

w e l l , i f you w i l l , located i n the southeast quarter? 

A. I'm a f r a i d t h a t i f we — t h a t i f a n o r t h - h a l f 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t i s established, t h a t no second w e l l i s 

going t o be d r i l l e d i n Section 20 because of the 

s t r u c t u r a l r i s k . 

You are — You w i l l have t o drop down about a 

hundred — over a hundred f e e t i n order t o put a t e s t 

i n the south-half p r o r a t i o n u n i t . And t h a t i s a 

geologic r i s k t h a t I don't t h i n k anyone i s w i l l i n g t o 

take when the could have — they have a v i a b l e geologic 

prospect of, i n t h i s case, equal i n the northwest as 

the southeast. 

Q. Santa Fe's proposed l o c a t i o n f o r the w e l l i s 

i n the northwest quarter, i s i t not? 

A. The current — The o r i g i n a l proposed l o c a t i o n 

was i n the northeast quarter. But because of the — 

t h e i r contention t h a t t o p o g r a p h i c a l l y you could not put 
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a w e l l i n the northeast quarter as w e l l as the 

d i r e c t i o n t h a t they received, t h a t i t must be 640, they 

moved i t over t o the northwest quarter of Section 20. 

I have never heard t h a t they moved — or put 

i t i n Section 20 f o r geologic reasons. 

Q. Their proposed l o c a t i o n i s 1980 from the 

n o r t h and 1980 from the west. Approximately where does 

t h a t put you on your isopach f o r the Lower Morrow? 

A. What t h a t does i s , we would lose 

approximately ten f e e t of gross sand i s o l i t h from a 

s t r a t i g r a p h i c standpoint. 

Q. From a s t r u c t u r a l p o i n t of view, do you gain 

s u f f i c i e n t s t r u c t u r e over your l o c a t i o n t o make a 

diffe r e n c e ? 

A. No, you do not. Again, you would — I 

belie v e you would gain approximately 50 f e e t moving 

from the northeast t o the northwest. 

And as I previously stated, on t h a t f i r s t 

w e l l I'm going t o want t o go a f t e r sand thickness 

r a t h e r than s t r u c t u r e . 

Q. Let's take a look at the Upper Morrow 

Sandstone. Have you mapped t h a t one? 

A. Yes, I have, and t h a t would be E x h i b i t Number 

6. 

Q. I d e n t i f y and describe f o r us E x h i b i t Number 
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6, Mr. Kwolek. 

A. Exhibit Number 6 i s a gross sandstone i s o l i t h 

of the Upper Morrow sandstone. 

Q. What does i t t e l l you? 

A. Once again, using a l l the control data w i t h i n 

the immediate area, i t ' s t e l l i n g me that Section 20 i s 

prospective i n — Section 20 i s prospective because of 

the existence of the Upper Morrow sandstone, which I 

know i s productive up i n the Rock Tank Upper Morrow 

Sandstone Pool. 

Q. Explain for us the orientation and the well 

location as i t applies, then, to the Upper Morrow, your 

preference for an east-half versus the north h a l f . 

A. Once again, the isopach supports my 

contention that standups would be i n everyone's best 

in t e r e s t , because the northeast location w i l l — An 

east-half proration u n i t would orient with respect to 

the t h i c k of the Upper Morrow sandstone. 

In addition, a location i n the northwest 

quarter w i l l locate s t i l l within the Upper Morrow 

sandstone, although i t ' s not as thi c k as i n the 

northeast quarter. 

Q. Do you have any geologic reservations that 

there i s i n s u f f i c i e n t evidence to separate Section 20 

and put that i n a separate pool from Rock Tank? 
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A. Again, and t h i s — There's a couple of things 

t o note. F i r s t o f f , we go back to that t e s t i n Section 

5, which was water-productive, as well as the t e s t i n 

Section 31 that recovered — I'm sorry, previously I 

said a hundred — 270. I t was 170 feet of heavy gas-

and water-cut mud. 

I stated e a r l i e r , though, i n order f o r gas 

production to be established i n Section 20 we were 

going to have to have either a stratigraphic or a 

str u c t u r a l barrier i n t h i s immediate area. 

And what the subsurface data has suggested 

from a stratigraphic standpoint i s , there may be that 

b a r r i e r , at least p a r t i a l l y , of Section 20 from the 

Rock Tank f i e l d . 

And t h i s also i l l u s t r a t e s the separation that 

evidently exists between Rock Tank and the Baldridge 

Canyon f i e l d . 

Q. Let's go back for a f i n a l question to the 

structure map, Mr. Kwolek. 

In looking at the structure, do you f i n d any 

t i l t or difference i n the plane of the structure so 

that the water that you f i n d i n the well i n Section 5 

is not going to be representative of the existence of 

water i n a similar s t r u c t u r a l position on the 

structure? 
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A. For t h i s water that was found i n Section 5 to 

exist and not exist down i n t h i s part of the f i e l d , I 

suspect you could have that occur i f i n fact you had a 

sealing f a u l t , for example. 

But aside from that, from what I can 

int e r p r e t i s that water below approximately 6650 i n the 

Rock Tank Number 3 Well i s going to give you water 

throughout t h i s area unless there i s s t r u c t u r a l or 

stratigraphic separation. 

Q. Are you s a t i s f i e d , then, that the information 

available from that well i s s u f f i c i e n t data by which to 

project the geologic conclusion i n t h i s Section 20 that 

you are i n fact separate? 

A. I believe the data i n Section 5 — or for the 

Rock Tank Unit Number 3 — best supports i t with 

supporting evidence from the DST i n Section 31, as well 

as the water production or the DST that recovered 630 

feet of water, gas-cut water, i n Section 13, which i s 

some 600 feet above Section 20. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my di r e c t 

examination of Mr. Kwolek. We would move the 

introduction of his Exhibits 1 through 6. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Without objection, Exhibits 

1 through 6 w i l l be admitted into the record. 

Mr. Padilla? 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Kwolek, does Exxon want t o d r i l l a wel l 

i n Section 20? 

A. Does Exxon want to? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. I believe, yes, i t does. 

Q. Does Exxon have any plans to d r i l l a well 

independently, on i t s own, i n Section 20? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Excuse me. I'm confused, Mr. 

Chairman. I thought we stipulated that Santa Fe was 

going to operate the property, and we're not contesting 

operations with them, i f that's the point of the 

question. 

MR. LEMAY: I have a hard time hearing you, 

Mr. Padilla. I f you could, speak up. What was your 

question? 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) My question was — Well, 

l e t me rephrase the question. 

Let me rephrase. The question i s t h i s : I s 

Exxon w i l l i n g to invest i n — with money to d r i l l — i n 

d r i l l i n g any well i n Section 20? 

A. My understanding i s , not wi t h i n the next 

three to six months. 

However, we have — I personally have 
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recommended that we contribute acreage to a t e s t — any 

te s t that Santa Fe i s w i l l i n g to d r i l l , provided that 

they develop Section 20, that w i l l lead to the best 

development of Section 20, and we stand by that i n 

order to do that you need your standup orientation of 

proration units. 

Q. And you have — Exxon has consistently 

required a standup proration dedicating the east-half 

proration u n i t ; i s that correct? 

A. My understanding would be yes — 

Q. And — 

A. — that's geologically supported. 

Q. — Exxon has consistently rejected any kind 

of a laydown proration u n i t for the north half or the 

south half of Section 20? 

A. I believe our perspective has always been 

that laydowns w i l l not lead to the best development of 

Section 20, and therefore we have not supported 

laydowns, that's correct. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Mr. Padilla, may I j u s t 

i n t e r r u p t j u s t for a minute, j u s t for c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

Was i t your testimony, you said Exxon would 

contribute acreage but not money to a t e s t , but they 

wanted s t i l l the standup 320's? Or was I confused on 

your answer? 
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THE WITNESS: We have agreed to farm out 

acreage to Santa Fe. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: So your position i s one of 

farming out acreage to — 

THE WITNESS: I believe that would be — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, thank you. 

THE WITNESS: — a correct statement. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Our position — l e t me correct 

the witness — i s , we have not made a business decision 

on whether to participate with Santa Fe i n the w e l l . 

We've got the issue of spacing and 

orienta t i o n t o resolve, and u n t i l the Commission does 

that f o r us, then we do not yet know whether we w i l l 

take our ri g h t s under the Pooling Order to send them a 

check and participate or whether we'll go nonconsent. 

I f that's the topic of conversation, t h i s 

witness can't answer that question. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Fine. I was j u s t t r y i n g to 

c l a r i f y that issue. Thank you, Mr. Kellahin. 

You'll have additional witnesses to put that 

i n the record, or can I accept your — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I can make that statement f o r 

you now — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 
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MR. KELLAHIN: — on behalf of my company 

that we have not made that decision, and we j u s t need 

to wait for the decision of the Commission to t e l l us 

what you're going to provide f o r us, and then we'll 

make our choice on pa r t i c i p a t i n g i n the w e l l . But that 

decision has not yet been made. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: So that the option of 

pa r t i c i p a t i n g i s s t i l l one Exxon i s considering? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Oh, yes, and we'd l i k e to have 

that option i n the — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, wel l , f i n e . That 

helps us, thank you. 

Excuse me for the int e r r u p t i o n . 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, that c l a r i f i e s my 

point. 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) Let me refer you, Mr. 

Kwolek, to t h i s exhibit. Is that Number 1? 

A. We have that r i g h t here. That i s correct, 

that i s Exhibit Number 1. 

Q. Mr. Kwolek, l e t ' s look at what you have drawn 

as the l i m i t s of the Rock Tank Upper Morrow and the 

Rock Tank Lower Morrow. 

A. Well — What do you mean by lim i t s ? Are you 

asking for an interpretation of those dashed lines? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 
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A. Okay. 

Q. How did you arrive at those dashed lines? 

A. Okay, these lines do not define the geologic 

limits, the productive limits of any of the fields 

represented. 

What these dashed lines represent i s simply 

an encirclement approximately one inch away from any 

producing wells in any of the producing pools. So i t 

i s not saying anything geologic about the limits. 

Q. By definition, you would take, say, Section 6 

and would have to include a l l of Section 6 in the 

limits of the pool, right? 

A. From a spacing unit consideration, I think 

that i s a fai r statement. 

Q. And you could go on down to each of those 

wells and have to include the entire section; i s that 

correct? 

A. Well, technically yes. But there's something 

that stands out from my perspective about this, and 

that i s why several of the wells are so close together. 

Do we have — You know, are we developing on 

640, or are we really developing on 320*s? But you're 

right, from a regulatory standpoint I suppose you would 

say that you are looking at 640*s for each of these 

wells. 
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Q. Mr. Kwolek, do you know how many times you 

used the word " i f " here i n your presentation? You said 

i f production i s established i n Section 20, f o r 

example, and you used certain i f ' s . Why do you premise 

your presentation with the word " i f " — 

A. I'm t r y i n g — 

Q. — i n a number of instances. 

A. I'm t r y i n g to put everyone's frame of 

reference to go back to what I was looking at when I 

f i r s t started looking at Section 20. How do we analyze 

the question of i s Section 2 0 — Should Section 20 be 

put i n the Rock Tank Upper and Lower Morrow sandstone? 

There's a big " i f " i f production i s established. 

But, l e t us assume that production i s 

established. I f i t i s , i f i t ' s wet, I don't have any 

problem with saying that i t i s i n f a c t part of Rock 

Tank. 

However, i f gas production i s established, 

you're going to have a very d i f f i c u l t time to explain 

how we had wet tests i n three wells. 

Q. Now, exactly i n how many wells did you have 

wet tests? Isn't i t — Isn't i t a fact that you only 

had a wet te s t i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r — i n t h i s well i n 

Section 5? 

MR. KELLAHIN: He's given the witness a 
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compound question, Mr. Chairman. The f i r s t question 

was as to one test. Can we break that down into 

separate questions? 

MR. PADILLA: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Let's break them up, that's 

a l l . F i r s t question. 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) Isn't i t true that you only 

measured water in the well in Section 5? 

A. The well in Section 5 recovered a water or 

water-cut substance in both the Upper and Lower Morrow 

sandstone. 

In addition, though, you have the heavy gas 

and water-cut mud recovered in the Upper Morrow in 

Section 31, as well as 63 0 feet of — I believe i t was 

gas-cut water in Section 13, one of the, again, latest 

wells — Well, the latest well, I believe, at Rock 

Tank. 

So you're really looking at three wells — 

Q. But in terms of structure — 

A. — for your revenue. 

Q. — and in terms of the analogy that you made, 

the well in Section 13 really doesn't play into that, 

does i t ? 

A. Well, I'm not sure. What — Rephrase your 

statement, because i f there i s water production in that 
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— in that Lower Morrow sandstone, and yet i t ' s the 

latest well, the well that was drilled 15, 16 years 

after production was established earlier, one could 

speculate — one would have to speculate that with 

water testing those two, has the gas-water contact 

moved upward? 

And I'm not saying i t hasn't. I'm just 

trying to show a l l the evidence out there that suggests 

that there i s , in fact, a gas-water contact somewhere 

between Sec- — the Rock Tank Pools and Section 20. 

There i s separation, and therefore Section 20 — 

Q. Mr. Kwolek, I'm trying to be fair with you 

and not interrupt you. But you don't know for sure; 

isn't that correct? as to whether or not the water 

contact, gas-water contact has moved in the last 16 

years? That's speculation on your part, isn't i t ? 

A. Okay, I'm not sure — I t certainly raises the 

question, though. 

Q. Okay. Now, in this f i r s t fault that's shown 

on this structure map here, i s that shown on regional 

geology of published maps for that area of southeast 

New Mexico? 

A. I'm not sure whether they would be public 

maps, but let me — Would you like some clarification 

as to what control I'm using for that? 
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Q. Yes. 

A. Okay. I f we look at our structure map, i t i s 

again based on the datum of the Middle Morrow shale, 

and as you look at the subsurface control, you see that 

you go from negative 6185 down to negative 6641, w i t h i n 

essentially a half a mile. 

In addition, you have Morrow penetrated i n 

a l l these wells, which had the Upper and/or Lower 

Morrow sandstone, which was nonproductive. 

I believe the l i t e r a t u r e w i l l support a 

western boundary for Rock Tank, and the subsurface data 

would support that there i s a st r u c t u r a l feature, most 

l i k e l y a f a u l t i n that area. 

Q. But that's well known, as far as the general 

geology of t h i s area i s concerned? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. How about the second f a u l t that you've 

shown? Is that — Does that have the same general — 

Is that the general knowledge — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — i n that area? 

A. The — As you look at the contours, what you 

see i s that the difference between the u p l i f t e d block 

and the downthrown block i s about a hundred feet, i n 

contrast t o the 500 feet you see here. As I 
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previous- — And that i s based primarily on — I t was 

or i g i n a l l y based on subsurface well data. And what I 

did was, I found support for that f a u l t on a seismic 

l i n e that Exxon had, which I did not bring. I was not 

going to make that open material. 

But I raised the point with Mr. Kellahin and 

the Commission that whether or not t h i s f a u l t e x i s t s 

doesn't play — I t i s not that necessary to figure out 

whether or not Section 20 i s part of Rock Tank. 

What we're doing i s , I've mapped the fa u l t 

i n . And Mr. Se i l e r may come back and say, Well, we do 

not map in that fault. 

But from my e a r l i e r position, somehow you've 

got to explain t h i s water production. And one way 

would be to accept subsurface data and put in that 

str u c t u r a l f a u l t . 

Or you could come back and look at the — a 

stratigraphic trap also. In t h i s case, I'm doing a — 

a f a u l t . 

Q. Now, where did you see a f a u l t in your 

seismic information? 

A. I believe the line was oriented approximately 

here, so I saw i t in t h i s area. 

MR. KELLAHIN: You have to describe for the 

record where that i s . 
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THE WITNESS: Okay. I bel i e v e the seismic 

l i n e ran i n a northwest-southeast o r i e n t a t i o n , 

approximately from the southeast quarter of Section 32 

upwards of the northwest quarter of Section 35, w i t h 

the f a u l t being found i n the extreme western — the 

western h a l f of the southwestern quarter. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) When d i d — Did Exxon make 

t h i s seismic — conduct t h i s seismic i n f o r m a t i o n — or 

obt a i n t h i s seismic information a t some time? 

A. At some time, yes. 

Q. Did you do seismic work i n t h i s area? 

A. Since the l a s t hearing or — 

Q. Well, a t any time. 

A. I — Could you rephrase the question? 

Q. Well, do you have any seismic i n f o r m a t i o n , 

other than the one t h a t you have mentioned, t h a t i s 

re l e v a n t t o t h i s hearing i n s o f a r as Section 20 i s 

concerned? 

A. Okay, what I — From the l a s t hearing, we 

have the f a u l t placed i n , based on subsurface data. 

Then what we d i d was, the subsurface data 

c o n t r o l s i t not only i n Baldridge Canyon but up i n t o 

the northeast. What I wanted t o do was simply go 

through Exxon's records and j u s t see whether there was 

a seismic l i n e t h a t says, yes, there i s a f a u l t 
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across — 

Q. How many seismic lines do you have in t h i s 

area? 

A. Across the entire map here? Well — 

Q. Well, l e t ' s take — 

A. — within the immediate area of Section 20, 

we do not have — I do not believe we have any li n e s 

coming across Section 20. 

Q. Do you have any information regarding — that 

would shed some light on Section 20, that i s , east of 

Section 20? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Chairman, I'm going to 

object to the continuing inquiry about seismic 

information. Mr. Kwolek has not used seismic. This i s 

ent i r e l y subsurface geology, and that's the predicate 

for his conclusions, and we're fishing around for 

seismic that Mr. Kwolek says doesn't e x i s t through 

Section 20. I t ' s not relevant. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I t ' s not. He mentioned a 

seismic l i n e , however, to pin the f a u l t down. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: But as far as going beyond 

that, you can simplify your question i f you want and 

get a simplified answer, whether or not we — 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) Well, I'm trying to find 
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out, Mr. Chairman, what kind of seismic information Mr. 

Kwolek has used in making his mapping. I suppose I ' l l 

ask you that. 

A. Okay, once again, a l l that I wanted to do was 

confirm in my mind that a fault i s one possible 

explanation for separation of Section 20 from the Rock 

Tank because of this water production. 

Q. And you limited your investigation to the 

southern portion of that exhibit, which i s the sub- — 

or the structure map, as you identified i t before, 

correct? 

A. I believe so. 

Q. And is i t your testimony that Exxon has other 

seismic information that would — Well, let me rephrase 

the question. 

Did you use any seismic information to 

determine the correctness of your position with regard 

to the dr i l l i n g of the well in Section 20? 

A. I did not. 

Q. You did not? 

A. Well, we don't have anything close enough 

that i s going to direct the orientation, per se, of — 

you know, do you move a hundred feet this way, a 

hundred feet that way? 

I t establishes that we have this fault in the 
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general area northwest of Section 20, but i t doesn't 

p i n p o i n t where t h a t f a u l t i s w i t h respect t o Section 

20. 

Q. Now, when d i d you conduct the seismic work i n 

t h i s area? Since the l a s t hearing? 

A. Since the l a s t hearing, yes. 

Q. Does t h a t seismic work confirm the 

correctness of your p o s i t i o n i n any way? 

A. Because the seismic was f a r enough t o the — 

was approximately two miles from the proposed l o c a t i o n , 

what I was looking f o r was a co n f i r m a t i o n t h a t , yes, 

there i s f a u l t t o north, east, south, west, f a u l t s i n 

the immediate area, and the r e f o r e i n t h i s area we can 

set up a f a u l t i n g mechanism t h a t w i l l e x p l a i n the 

water. 

Q. And you can — You're saying t h a t you d i d n ' t 

do any seismic t h a t cuts across the Section 20 or any 

ad j o i n i n g sections where Exxon has acreage? 

A. I d i d not. We — My understanding, we do not 

have any seismic l i n e s across Section 20. 

Q. How about the section t o the no r t h of Section 

20? 

A. My understanding i s , we do not have a t the 

cur r e n t time seismic i n Section 17. 

Q. Let me ask you, why d i d you cut your e x h i b i t 
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right at Section 20 on the — 

A. The eastern boundary? 

Q. — the eastern boundary of Section 20? 

A. The question before us today i s , should 

Section 20 be placed in the Rock Tank Pool? And so 

what I'm interested in i s , what i s the stratigraphic 

and structural relationships between Rock Tank Pools 

and Section 20? 

And I believe the data I have used — or I 

have shown on the map — illustrates what I'm trying to 

show everyone in this room with respect — 

Q. Are the — 

A. — with respect to additional that I may have 

used, these just — There i s additional data that i s 

part of this interpretation. 

The — For example, in Section 34, there i s , 

which would — excuse me — essentially be the closest 

Morrow producing well, the Upper and Lower Morrow 

sandstones exist, which firmed up the earlier 

orientation of the sandstone — these channel trends 

that — In nature, you go out and see they run for many 

miles, and that's — Yes, I used an east — But what 

you're seeing i s what I believe i s the most relevant 

data for the case before us today. 

Q. Did you use any wells in your cross-section 
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east of Section 20? 

A. In the gridded cross-sections that were 

constructed to look at the correlativeness of sands and 

to — Yes, yes. 

Q. In your cross-section you used a well east of 

Section 20? 

A. That's correct. Well, not in this cross-

section. But in cross-sections — The grids of cross-

sections that were made within the local area, yes, 

there were wells that were used. 

Q. Where are those cross-sections? 

A. They're back at the office. 

MR. PADILLA: I have no further questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. Padilla. 

Additional questions of the witness? 

Commissioner Weiss? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER WEISS: 

Q. What kind of rock is the reservoir? 

A. Okay, the primary production, both in the 

Upper and Lower Morrow Pools, i s a sandstone generally 

showing — Well, the log character, for example, shows 

that we have some fining upwards, which would be 

characteristic of your channel sand. 

You have characteristic — I t generally 
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lacked cements and clay matrixes up i n the Rock Tank 

Pools, whereas down i n the Baldridge Canyon area the 

sandstones might have been characterized as being a 

l i t t l e d i r t i e r , as well as perhaps a l i t t l e thinner. 

The sandstones that are productive, the Upper 

and Lower Morrow sandstones at Rock Tank, are somewhat 

unique. And then that uniqueness i n , I guess, perhaps 

qu a l i t y i s mirrored by the fact that they're such good 

producers. 

The fact that t h i s i s on a major a n t i c l i n a l 

feature, though, may have led to secondary porosity. 

Maybe there's some fracture porosity. I'm not re a l 

clear on that. 

Q. What do you think the matrix permeability is? 

A. I would estimate somewhere i n the upper tens 

to low hundreds of m i l l i d a r c i e s . 

Q. And that would — 

A. And there are several — And there are 

d e f i n i t e l y some wells that were your most p r o l i f i c 

wells up there that the permeability was probably 

exceptional — exceptionally high — because the 

q u a l i t y of the sand on the logs, although i t somewhat 

r e f l e c t s the production, you have to almost say that 

the permeability i s also there. 

Unfortunately, I don't get a good handle j u s t 
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loo k i n g a t the logs. 

Q. Okay. Well, I was t h i n k i n g , you know, 

sometimes you see c a p i l l a r y forces t r a p water l i k e 

t h a t — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — above or below. You don't have a water — 

gas-water contact? 

A. Right. And th a t ' s c e r t a i n l y a concern, 

although I would reason t h a t the amounts may be 

s u f f i c i e n t enough t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t , yes, you have — 

The water i s i n f a c t there. And l u c k i l y , because of 

the f a c t t h a t you have the three w e l l s , t h a t had some 

kin d of water or water content. 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: I don't have any more 

questions. Thank you. 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER LEMAY: 

Q. Mr. Kwolek — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — would you recommend t h i s prospect, i f you 

owned a l l the acreage, t o your management t o d r i l l ? 

A. I f I owned a l l the acreage w i t h i n Section 20 

I would probably recommend t o my management, as i n f a c t 

I have as a geol o g i s t f o r Exxon, and we don't own a l l 

the acreage, t o run a d d i t i o n a l seismic. 
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I ' d l i k e t o get a l i t t l e b e t t e r handle on 

what i s the t r a p p i n g mechanism t h a t i n f a c t may set up 

a pool there? 

Q. I guess t h a t ' s what I was t r y i n g t o focus on. 

What's your prospect i n there? You have — You're 

downdip from water. I t looks l i k e your w e l l i n Section 

— Correct me i f I'm wrong, but i n Section 29 was t i g h t 

i n the lower sandstone and b a s i c a l l y had some untested 

p o r o s i t y i n the upper sandstone? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Although the d r i l l stem t e s t s seemed t o 

recover water from the shale se c t i o n , t h a t you c a l l 

shale. 

A. I n the upper — Well, the two DST's t h a t were 

run i n Section 29, one was p a r t i a l l y w i t h i n t h a t Upper 

Morrow sandstone, and i t recovered — I bel i e v e i t was 

120 f e e t of f l u i d , but there was no documentation what 

t h a t f l u i d was. 

Then there was the t e s t above the two primary 

sands t h a t we're t a l k i n g about, or I have e x h i b i t e d 

here, and t h a t recovered water, and t h a t was from a 

shale sandstone i n t e r v a l , yes. 

Q. But t h a t ' s your other w e l l f o r w e l l c o n t r o l , 

the c l o s e s t w e l l t o your prospect? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . You're — okay, you're going 
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— The biggest risk out here in Section 20 i s going to 

be, do you have a trap? 

I believe that the regional control that I 

have on the Upper and Lower Morrow sandstones, 

including the wells up at Rock Tank which show the 

northwest-to-southeast pattern, and that — Let's see. 

The trend continues down across Section 29 — You do 

not have the Lower Morrow sandstone present, but you do 

have the Upper Morrow sandstone — and then continuing 

down into section 34. 

So you probably have enough control to 

propose a risky prospect to your management with saying 

that you have faith in your orientation of your 

channel, and you probably do have sands across Section 

20. 

The question then i s going to be, though, do 

you want to take the risk of whether or not you have 

some kind of trapping mechanism? 

Q. When you say "trap," are you talking about 

structural trap or stratigraphic or both? 

A. Either one. 

Q. I t looks to me like Baldridge Canyon and Dark 

Canyon don't have structural traps; they're 

stratigraphic. 

A. Right. The fault which the well control 
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suggests stems from Baldridge Canyon up i n t o the f i e l d 

t o the n o r t h has production on both sides of the f a u l t , 

and e v i d e n t l y you have a leaky f a u l t i f you be l i e v e 

t h a t the w e l l c o n t r o l i s c o r r e c t and the i d e n t i f i c a t i o n 

on the seismic l i n e . 

With respect t o continuing up, though, i n t o 

t h i s area, i t would be possible f o r a leaky f a u l t t o 

e x i s t down here and yet have a t i g h t f a u l t northwest of 

Section 20 and set up t h a t t r a p p i n g mechanism. 

Q. I n regard t o t h a t f a u l t — I'm not going t o 

beat the seismic t o death, though — but couldn't you 

contour t h a t area down there without a f a u l t a t a l l ? 

I t doesn't look you have much v e r t i c a l displacement. 

A. Down i n t h i s area? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes, you could. But i t ' s p a r t of — I t h i n k 

the f a u l t f i t s i n w e l l w i t h the r e g i o n a l mapping of the 

area t h a t shows numerous down-to-the-basin f a u l t s . 

I t ' s not s u r p r i s i n g . The i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i n 

the l i t e r a t u r e i s t h a t you do i n f a c t have many of 

these 100-, 200-foot steps. 

And these 500-foot f a u l t s are more unique. 

And they, i n f a c t , set up some of your best production 

out here. 

Q. 500, I can see — seismic — Can you p i c k up 
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a 100-foot displacement in the Penn with seismic 

records? 

A. That's a d i f f i c u l t c a l l , and we would 

certain l y have some contestants to that interpretation. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I have no additional 

questions. 

Additional questions of the witness? 

MR. PADILLA: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I f not, he may be excused. 

Thank you, Mr. Kwolek. 

Take about a 15-minute break here. You have 

one more or two more? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Just one more. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, thank you. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken at 3:17 p.m.) 

(The following proceedings had at 3:38 p.m.) 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: We'll resume the hearing. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'd l i k e to c a l l at t h i s time 

Mr. B i l l Duncan. Mr. Duncan i s a petroleum engineer 

with Exxon. 
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WILLIAM T. DUNCAN. JR.. 

the witness herein, after having been f i r s t duly sworn 

upon his oath, was examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Duncan, for the record would you please 

state your name and occupation? 

A. William T. Duncan, Jr., and I'm a senior 

engineer with Exxon Corporation. 

Q. Have you on prior occasions testified before 

this Commission with regards to the subject of 

petroleum engineering? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And did you testify before Examiner Stogner 

in the consolidated cases that are now before this 

Commission? 

A. Yes, I did. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Duncan as an 

expert — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Qualifications are 

acceptable. 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) Mr. Duncan, let me direct 

you, s i r , to what was introduced as Exxon Exhibit 

Number 1 and ask you what part you played in the 

investigation, from an engineering aspect, of the 
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questions involved before the Commission. 

A. I reviewed the pressure information that was 

available from public sources for the wells in the area 

of Rock Tank and of Baldridge Canyon, and from that 

pressure information I made conclusions. 

Q. Describe for us how you went about your 

investigation. 

A. I collected data from the Baldridge Canyon 

Morrow and the Rock Tank Morrow fields. From each of 

the wells, I collected — What i s shown on Exhibit 

Number 7 are data points which represent each of the 

P-over-Z, bottomhole-pressure-over-Z, measurements 

reported in Dwight*s Data for Wells in those two 

fields. 

Q. What were you trying to investigate? 

A. I was trying to determine whether there i s 

any separation between the Baldridge Canyon Morrow and 

the Rock Tank Morrow Pools. 

Q. And based upon your studies of the pressure 

information available from those two pools, what did 

you conclude? 

A. Those two pools are not in pressure 

communication. 

Q. Can you demonstrate that for us by looking at 

Exhibit Number 7? 
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A. Yes, Exhibit Number 7 shows the Rock Tank 

Upper Morrow data points plotted with a closed square 

and the Rock Tank Lower Morrow pressure measurements 

plotted with an open square. The Baldridge Canyon 

Morrow pressure data points are plotted with a closed 

c i r c l e . 

The plot that you're looking at, on the Y 

axis i s the bottomhole-pressure-over-Z measurements — 

I t says i n i t i a l or I , but i t i s not i n i t i a l ; i t ' s just 

bottomhole pressure over Z — plotted against the date 

on which those pressure measurements were recorded, or 

the date of the test. 

Now, these pressure measurements for the most 

part are shut-in wellhead pressures that have been 

extrapolated to bottomhole by Dwight's. 

Q. What — Give us a range of the pressure 

differentials that exist between the two pools, on 

average. 

A. Well, the main thing that you would get from 

Exhibit Number 7 i s that the Rock Tank Upper Morrow 

pressures declined from essentially 4500 p.s.i. down 

through 500 p.s.i., over a period of time from the mid-

— or the late 1960's — through the late 1970's. 

The Baldridge Canyon Morrow Pool came on 

production in about 1980, and i t came on production at 
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pressures about the same or higher than the i n i t i a l 

pressures in the Rock Tank Pools. This shows that 

production, the extensive production in the Rock Tank 

Pools, has had no effect on the accumulation of gas in 

the Baldridge Canyon Morrow Pool. 

In addition — 

Q. There are a couple of small anomalies on 

here. Would you explain those to us? 

A. Well, they're very small. 

You'll see these closed squares at the lower 

portion of the exhibit which tend to line up with the 

later pressure measurements in the Baldridge Canyon 

Morrow Pool. I f those squares are correct, they are 

later pressure measurements from a well that was shut 

in and had not produced since 1974. 

Indistinctly you can see the line, the 

horizontal line that's created by those pressure 

measurements in that one well, which was not producing 

over that ten-year period. 

So i t appears to be an anomaly, however i t ' s 

just the pressure which stayed the same in a well that 

was not producing. 

Q. I f Baldridge Canyon i s in pressure 

communication with Rock Tank, with the Upper or the 

Lower Morrow, how would this information be displayed 
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on our Exhibit Number 7? What would you see? 

A. Well, I would expect to see that the i n i t i a l 

pressures found i n wells i n the Baldridge Canyon Morrow 

Pool would be drawn down somewhat from what they were. 

In addition, since the vast majority of the 

Rock Tank production occurred p r i o r to the discovery of 

Baldridge Canyon, i t ' s r e a l l y almost inconceivable that 

you wouldn't see some eff e c t . 

Q. Based upon your engineering conclusions, 

then, did you ask the geologic s t a f f of Exxon to map 

the geology, take the available geologic information 

and help determine the relationship of Section 20, as 

i t might be interpreted, either to Rock Tank or to 

Baldridge Canyon? 

A. Yes, I did. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination 

of Mr. Duncan. We move the introduction of his Exhibit 

Number 7. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Exhibit 7 into the record 

without objection. 

Mr. Padilla? 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Duncan, does Exhibit 7 show i n any way 

what kind of pressure w i l l be encountered by a well 
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d r i l l e d i n Section 20? 

A. No, i t does not. 

Q. This merely shows t h a t the Baldridge Canyon 

Morrow Pool and the Rock Tank Upper and Lower Morrow 

Pools are two d i f f e r e n t pools; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Well, t h a t i s the main conclusion. 

I f you want t o make — I f you want t o assume 

c e r t a i n t h i n g s , you can assume or use those assumptions 

and use E x h i b i t 7 t o come t o a conclusion about what 

pressure you would see i n Section 20. 

For instance, i f you assume t h a t Section 20 

was i n communication w i t h Rock Tank Upper Morrow and 

Lower Morrow, you can use E x h i b i t 7 t o determine t h a t 

Section 20 i s l i k e l y t o be depleted. That's one way t o 

use i t . 

Q. I s n ' t the Baldridge Canyon Morrow Pool 

f u r t h e r away from Section 20 than the Rock Tank Upper 

and Lower Morrow Pools? 

A. Yes, i t i s . At l e a s t as f a r as the nearest 

w e l l completed i n each of those pools. 

MR. PADILLA: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. P a d i l l a . 

Commissioner Weiss? 
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EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER WEISS: 

Q. Did you do a ma t e r i a l balance on the Rock 

Tank Pool? 

A- No, I d i d not. 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: I have no other 

questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Any more questions of the 

witness? 

You may be excused. Thank you, Mr. Duncan. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes our d i r e c t 

p r e s e n t a t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Mr. Padilla? 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, w e ' l l c a l l Mr. 

Mike Burton f o r our p o r t i o n of the case a t t h i s time. 

MICHAEL R. BURTON, 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn 

upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Burton, f o r the record would you please 

s t a t e your f u l l name? 

A. My name i s Michael Ramsey Burton. 

Q. You work f o r Santa Fe Energy Operating 
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Partners, L.P.? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And what do you do for them? 

A. I'm the Permian Basin d i s t r i c t d r i l l i n g 

engineer. 

Q. And what are your duties as a d r i l l i n g 

engineer? 

A. I have several duties. I develop well plans 

to d r i l l the wells that the geologists propose, oversee 

location construction, oversee the actual d r i l l i n g 

operations of the well, supervise f i e l d people i n t h e i r 

operations. 

Q. Mr. Burton, have you previously t e s t i f i e d 

before the O i l Conservation Division and had your 

credentials accepted as a matter of record as a 

d r i l l i n g engineer? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

Q. Have you made a study of the d r i l l i n g 

locations i n Section 20, as proposed by Santa Fe? 

A. Yes, s i r , I was asked to stake a well i n 

Section 2 0 l a s t October and went out with a survey crew 

and a person from the Bureau of Land Management and 

staked several locations. 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, we tender Mr. 

Burton as an expert d r i l l i n g engineer. 
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CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Qualifications are 

acceptable. 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) Mr. Burton, f i r s t I'd l i k e 

f o r you to generally describe for me what t r i p s you 

have made to Section 20 and on what occasions and f o r 

what purpose. 

A. Okay. Last October, a f t e r receiving a 

request to stake a well 660 from the north l i n e and 

19J.0 from the east l i n e i n Section 20, I accompanied a 

survey crew from John West Engineering and a 

representative from the Bureau of Land Management into 

thet general v i c i n i t y , and we staked several s i t e s . 

Q. Who was the person from the Bureau of Land 

Management that went out there with you? 

A. Mr. Barry Hunt. 

Q. Okay, and you went to Section 20 a second 

tine? 

A. Yes, s i r , I went to Section 20 l a s t Friday. 

Q. And what was the reason you went t o Section 

20 l a s t Friday? 

A. To take some photographs of the general area. 

Q. And was anyone with you when you went to 

Section 20 la s t week? 

A. Yes, s i r , Mr. David Maley with M and M 

Construction Company of Carlsbad, New Mexico. 
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Q. Why d i d you take Mr. Maley t o Section 20? 

A. Well, i t was my f e e l i n g t h a t there would be a 

tremendous d i f f e r e n c e i n cost t o b u i l d a l o c a t i o n a t 

the various s i t e s t h a t we had staked, and since he's i n 

t h a t business of b u i l d i n g l o c a t i o n s , I thought h i s 

opi.nion would be valuable. 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, I only have one 

set. of these p i c t u r e s . I ' d l i k e t o introduce them and 

th€>.n give them t o the Commission. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: A l l r i g h t . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) Mr. Burton, I hand you what 

we have marked as Exh i b i t s l-A through 1-G and ask you 

whet those are. 

A. l-A shows a p i c t u r e — 

Q. Generally, what i s the — E x h i b i t s l-A 

through 1-G? 

A. Okay, these are — This i s photographs of the 

topography i n Section 20. 

Q. Are those the photographs you took l a s t 

week — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — of the area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are those f a i r and accurate rep- — or do 

those photographs show accurately and f a i r l y the 
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topography of t h a t area? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Let me show you what we have marked as 

E x h i b i t Number 2 and ask you t o i d e n t i f y t h i s e x h i b i t . 

A. This i s a copy of the topographic map of the 

are.a t h a t includes Section 20. 

Q. Okay. Would you exp l a i n what the legend on 

theit e x h i b i t i n d i c a t e s on the upper right-hand corner? 

A. The closed c i r c l e s are representatives of 

lo c a t i o n s e i t h e r staked or marked on t h i s map by Santa 

Fe Energy Operating Partners, L.P., and gives the 

distances from the north and east l i n e s or nor t h and 

wes;t l i n e s , as the case may be, of Section 20. 

The closed t r i a n g l e s i n d i c a t e — Well, 

they're labeled Exxon, and they give distances from the 

nor t h and east l i n e — or north and west l i n e , as the 

case may be — of those l o c a t i o n s . 

The closed square i s a l o c a t i o n i n Section 16 

by Siete O i l Company. 

Q. Okay. Now, I not i c e on t h a t legend, on the 

Exxon p o r t i o n of the legend, there are some p e n c i l e d - i n 

foctages. When was t h a t — When were those footages 

p e r c i l e d in? 

A. I t h i n k they were penciled i n yesterday. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s s t a r t o f f w i t h the Santa Fe Number 
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l l o c a t i o n and have you explain t h a t , please. 

A. The Number 1 l o c a t i o n i s the l o c a t i o n I was 

i n s t r u c t e d t o stake. 

Q. And when you — What d i d you f i n d when you 

staked t h a t location? 

A. I found t h a t i n my opinion t h a t was not a 

s u i t a b l e d r i l l s i t e , whereupon we began searching f o r a 

s u i t a b l e d r i l l s i t e . 

Q. How about the Number 1 Exxon location? T e l l 

us where t h a t i s . 

A. That's on a po i n t i n the northeast corner of 

the s e c t i o n , 660 from the north and east. 

Q. And how about the Exxon Number 2 po s i t i o n ? 

Where i s t h a t located? 

A. That's approximately — Well, t h a t ' s a 

hundred f e e t south of our Number 1 l o c a t i o n . 

Q. I s t h a t number — Exxon Number 2 p o s i t i o n a 

s u i t a b l e l o c a t i o n , i n your opinion? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Do you have any photographs which would show 

the t e r r a i n of — t h a t would represent the Exxon Number 

1, the Santa Fe Number 1, and the Exxon Number 2 

locations? 

A. Yes, s i r , I t h i n k I do. 

Q. Can you i d e n t i f y the e x h i b i t s t h a t you have 
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i d e n t i f i e d that would show those locations and would 

represent that area? 

A. Yes, s i r . Exhibit 1-B i s representative of 

the Santa Fe location Number 1, 660 from the north 

l i r e , 1980 from the east l i n e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And that specific location i s indicated by 

the p i l e of rocks i n the lower right-hand corner of 

that number picture. 

Q. Why is n ' t that location suitable, i n your 

opinion, Mr. Burton? 

A. Well, i t ' s — I t ' s too close, i n my opinion, 

to t h i s — I t ' s r i g h t v i r t u a l l y i n the r i v e r bottom. 

Q. Do you have — Okay. What's wrong with the 

r i v e r bottom? Why can't a location be b u i l t on that? 

A. Well, when i t rains, t h i s area becomes 

flooded with water, and you could destroy the 

production f a c i l i t i e s that might be i n place, should 

the well be a producer. 

Q. Let me ask you — I have also asked you about 

the Number 1 Exxon location. Do you have anything that 

wouLd show approximately i n that area where the Exxon 

Number 1 location would have been located? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t ' s t h i s Exhibit Number 1-C. 

Q. And what kind of t e r r a i n do you encounter i n 
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t h a t location? 

A. I t ' s v i r t u a l l y the same. I t ' s very hard rock 

near the bottom of t h i s r i v e r . 

Q. Now, l e t me — What does t h i s E x h i b i t 1-C 

alsso show? 

A. Well, i t shows the very hard cemented-

tocrether rock t h a t makes up t h i s general area t h a t , 

according t o David Maley, could not be moved w i t h a 

bulldozer p r i o r t o being blasted w i t h dynamite. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And t h a t indicates t o me t h a t i t ' s a very 

expensive l o c a t i o n t o b u i l d . 

Q. Let me show you one of these photographs and 

have you i d e n t i f y t h a t as — ask you what t h i s 1-E 

contains, please. 

A. 1-E i s looking n o r t h e a s t e r l y across t h i s 

r i v e r b e d . I f you look c l o s e l y , you can make out the 

road i n t e r s e c t i o n of these two jeep t r a i l s t h a t are i n 

the bottom of the riverbed. 

Q. Does t h a t show f a i r l y the l o c a t i o n , more or 

less , of the Exxon Number 1 l o c a t i o n i n the northeast 

quarter? 

A. Well, yes, I t h i n k you can make i t out as 

t h i s l i t t l e nose i n the upper l e f t - h a n d p a r t of the 

p i c t u r e . 
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Q. Can you p o i n t t h a t out f o r the Commission, 

plciase? Step down and show them where t h a t nose i s 

located? 

A. I t h i n k i t ' s — I t h i n k i t ' s t h a t b i t of 

r e l i e f about one inch from the top l e f t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Uh-huh. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: Running do w n h i l l there? 

THE WITNESS: Pardon me, s i r ? Yes. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) Mr. Burton, l e t me address 

your a t t e n t i o n t o what are marked on E x h i b i t Number 2 

as Santa Fe loc a t i o n s 2 and 4 and the Exxon Number 3 

l o c a t i o n and ask you what i s wrong w i t h those 

l o c a t i o n s , from your standpoint. 

A. Well, i n my opinion, there's the p o s s i b i l i t y 

t h a t during a heavy r a i n the water t h a t drains i n t o 

t h i s r i v e r bottom from the surrounding area could 

destroy or could accumulate, and the fast-moving water 

destroy the production f a c i l i t i e s t h a t might be i n 

place. 

Q. Does t h a t — Do those l o c a t i o n s , i n your 

opinion, have the same problem as the Santa Fe Number 1 

and the Exxon Number 2 locations? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you have any photograph t h a t would 
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i d e n t i f y the l o c a t i o n of the — these three locations? 

A. Well, yes, s i r . The Santa Fe Number 1, as I 

said, I believe t h a t photograph i s going around, and — 

Q. I s t h a t — 

A. — and then — 

Q. — Number l-A t h a t you i d e n t i f i e d e a r l i e r ? 

A. I'm sorry — 

Q. I s t h a t — 

A. — I don't r e c a l l — 

Q. — the r i v e r bottom t h a t you i d e n t i f i e d , the 

p i c t u r e w i t h the r i v e r bottom? 

A. That was the p i c t u r e w i t h the f l a g s broken 

and the p i l e of rocks i n the lower right-hand corner. 

Q. Okay. 

A. The p i c t u r e t h a t shows 2 and 3 i s the one 

thc.t also shows the Exxon, the general area of Exxon 

Number 1. I t ' s the one looking across the r i v e r 

bottom, southwest. 

Q. Now, do you have any p i c t u r e s t h a t would 

rep resent the area by the Santa Fe Number 3, Number 5 

and Number 6, or even the Exxon Number 4 locations? 

A. Yes, s i r , I do. I t h i n k these two 

lo c a t i o n s — or these two e x h i b i t s , 1-G and 1-F, are 

i n d i c a t i v e of the topography around 3, 5 and 6. 

They're up on high ground, r e l a t i v e l y f l a t . 
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Q. Do you have the kind of rock t h a t you 

i d e n t i f i e d as being — Would you have t o dynamite up 

there? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Let me show you, s i r , what we have 

marked as e x h i b i t s 1-B and l-A and have you i d e n t i f y 

those, please. 

A. These are more p i c t u r e s of the dry 

ri v e r b e d — 

Q. Which one? 

A. — Section 20. This E x h i b i t l-A. 

Q. And what does E x h i b i t 1-D represent? 

A. I t ' s taken from t h i s dry r i v e r b e d and looking 

back i n a southerly d i r e c t i o n . I t shows the slopes of 

the ground. 

Q. Would t h i s i n d i c a t e , on E x h i b i t 1-D, t h a t 

dynamiting would be necessary on t h i s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And E x h i b i t l-A i s the bottom of the 

riverbed? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Last week when you went out there, Mr. 

Burton, d i d you receive some idea of how much i t would 

cos.t t o d r i l l a w e l l — t o b u i l d a l o c a t i o n at the top 

of the rim or a t the bottom of the canyon? 
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A. Yes, s i r . I f we b u i l t a l o c a t i o n on top, 

around our l o c a t i o n 5, 6, 3, t h a t estimate from M and M 

Construction Company i s about $20,000. 

I f we b u i l t a l o c a t i o n around Santa Fe's 

Nunber 2, Exxon's Number 3, t h a t l o c a t i o n , c o n s t r u c t i o n 

cosst w i l l be about $69,000. 

Q. I s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n the AFE's t h a t you have 

pr«:pared f o r the D i v i s i o n hearing and f o r t h i s hearing? 

A. I received t h a t estimate l a t e r , but I — But 

the; costs are i n there. 

And the f i r s t one I prepared, the l o c a t i o n 

c o n s t r u c t i o n costs are about $25,000, i f I r e c a l l , and 

the: second one, the l o c a t i o n c o n s t r u c t i o n costs are 

$7E,000. 

Q. But t h a t $50,000 extra i s r e f l e c t e d i n th e r e ; 

i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, I t h i n k Mr. 

Ke l l a h i n and I have s t i p u l a t e d as t o the reasonableness 

of the AFE's — or the one showing the higher f i g u r e 

and the one showing the lower f i g u r e . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Correct, Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Chairman, we've so 

s t i p u l a t e d t h a t the revised AFE showing the a d d i t i o n a l 

surface work i s f a i r and reasonable. 
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CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Fine, thank you. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) Mr. Burton, given your — 

Well, l e t me ask you t h i s : What d i d the BLM person 

t e l l you when you went out there w i t h him? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Could we e s t a b l i s h a time 

frame? 

MR. PADILLA: Well, i t would be — 

THE WITNESS: This was about October 10th or 

11th. 

MR. KELLAHIN: And t h i s was Mr. Hunt? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) What d i d he t e l l you? 

A. He said t h a t the l o c a t i o n t h a t — To b u i l d a 

l o c a t i o n on — i n the r i v e r bottom would r e q u i r e much 

more environmental impact. We'd have t o do, you know, 

more work t o b u i l d a l o c a t i o n down there. 

Q. Did Mr. Hunt p r o h i b i t a l o c a t i o n down a t the 

bottom of the canyon? 

A. No, s i r , t h a t ' s not h i s s p e c i f i c j o b . That 

would be — The acceptance of t h a t l o c a t i o n would be 

decided upon a f t e r the submission of an a p p l i c a t i o n t o 

d r i L l t h a t shows the exact l o c a t i o n and maps and th i n g s 

of ;hat nature. 

Q. Did he make any suggestion t o you as t o where 

t o Locate the well? 
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A. Yes, s i r , i t was my understanding that i t ' s 

his opinion that i t would be less of an environmental 

impact i f we would put the location on top. 

Q. In terms of percentage, what would the cost 

of the well difference be i f you had the well at the 

bottom of the canyon as opposed to the — on the rim? 

A. The dryhole costs here are i n the $500,000 

rarge, so a $50,000 difference i s about ten percent of 

the well cost. 

Q. Is that a si g n i f i c a n t increase, i n your 

opinion? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What experience have you had, s i r , with 

locating wells i n t h i s kind of terrain? I mean — When 

I say i n t h i s kind of t e r r a i n , I'm saying at the bottom 

of the canyon. 

A. Well, the one that we d r i l l e d when I was 

employed by another company, during the times of high 

water i n the r i v e r , i t was very d i f f i c u l t to move 

equipment i n and out due to the mud, and I j u s t didn't 

l i k e that experience. 

Q. And where was that? 

A. That was near Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. And have you encountered any other locations 

such as t h i s since your employment with Santa. Fe? 
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A. No, s i r , since I've been employed by Santa Fe 

the; past nine years, we've t r i e d to avoid putting 

locations down i n the bottom of riverbeds. 

Q. In the l a s t few years, have you encountered 

more concerns with respect to protection of the 

environment as far as location of the wells i s 

concerned? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And how has that developed? Can you t e l l us? 

A. Well, I think over the — Over the years, 

I've become more environmentally conscious of — not 

only of the damage we can do to the environment, 

surface topography, t r y to leave things as much as 

possible the way they are and, when we have a chance to 

mirimize the environmental impact, to do that. 

Q. Mr. Burton, does Santa Fe have any kind of 

policy with regard to environmental protection? 

A. Yes, s i r , we t r y to do as l i t t l e harm to the 

environment as possible. 

Q. Let me show you what we have marked as 

Exhibit Number 3 and have you t e l l us what that i s , 

s i r . 

A. This i s a l e t t e r that we received from the 

Bureau of Land Management that i s recognizing Santa Fe 

as the recipient of the Annual Environmental I n i t i a t i v e 
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Award for southeastern New Mexico, complimenting us on 

hov our locations are clean and i n f u l l compliance with 

BLf. regulations, orders. I think i t ' s a compliment on 

the way we go about doing our work. 

Q. Do you take credit for any of — for that 

allocated — or award, i f you want to c a l l i t that? 

A. Well, I'm — 

Q. Accolade, I wanted to say. 

A. I'm part of the team that helped earn t h i s 

award. 

Q. In your opinion, would locating a well i n 

Section 20 at the bottom of the canyon or on the rim 

have anything to do with getting t h i s award? 

A. I don't know. I think that i f — This award 

was given before t h i s question came up, so I don't 

know. 

MR. PADILLA: Okay, that's f a i r enough. 

Mr. Chairman, I may have i d e n t i f i e d the AFE's 

as Exhibit 3 before, and I misspoke. That should be 

mar ted as Exhibit Number 4, and t h i s l a s t exh i b i t that 

Mr. Burton t e s t i f i e d from should be Exhibit Number 3. 

I believe, Mr. Chairman, that's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you. Exhibits 1 

through 4, renamed, into the record? 

MR. PADILLA: I'm sorry? 
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CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Do you want t o submit those 

i n t o the record — 

MR. PADILLA: Yes — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — at t h i s time? 

MR. PADILLA: — I want them. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Without objection,, those 

e x h i b i t s w i l l enter the record. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you have any questions? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Any other questions of the 

witness? 

You may be excused. Thank you very much. 

Congratulations on your award. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you very much. 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, I ' l l c a l l Vernon 

Dyer at t h i s time. 

VERNON D. DYER, 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn 

upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Dyer, could you please s t a t e your f u l l 

name? 

A. Vernon Dwayne Dyer. 

Q. And you work f o r Santa Fe Operating Partners, 
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L.P.? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what's your p o s i t i o n w i t h Santa Fe? 

A. I'm the d i s t r i c t land manager. 

Q. What du t i e s do you have as d i s t r i c t land 

marager? 

A. I'm responsible f o r the Permian Basin i n the 

capacity of a l l t h e i r land work, overseeing i t and 

keeping those records, et cetera, t h a t i s r e q u i r e d by 

the land department. 

Q. Have you t e s t i f i e d , s i r , before the O i l 

Conservation Commission or the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n and had your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter 

of record as a petroleum landman? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Mr. Dyer, do you have — You were i n charge 

of Mr. Tower when he t e s t i f i e d before the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n before the — at the D i v i s i o n 

hearing; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. You were h i s supervisor? 

A. Yes, he worked d i r e c t l y f o r me. 

Q. And you're f a m i l i a r w i t h a l l of the dealings 

t h a t you've had w i t h Exxon i n s o f a r as d r i l l i n g a w e l l 

i n Section 20 i s concerned? 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

94 

A. Yes, I was either d i r e c t l y involved or I 

reviewed them when Mr. Tower brought them i n to me. 

Q. Mr. Dyer, I want to go as fast as I can, and 

I'c. l i k e to not overlap into what Mr. Kellahin and I 

have stipulated, and I'm going t o ask you t o be as 

br i e f as you can with the questions that you — that I 

have for you. 

Now, l e t me hand you what we have marked as 

Exhibit 5 and have you t e l l us what that i s . 

A. That i s a — This i s a l e t t e r that I wrote to 

Mr. Joe Thomas with Exxon after the Order was issued by 

the OCD afte r the l a s t hearing. 

Q. And what i s — can you b r i e f l y i d e n t i f y — 

What was the purpose of sending t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. Well, I was i n — In compliance with the 

Order, I offered him the — offered to send two cost 

estimates for the well, offered him to j o i n or to — i f 

they didn't want to j o i n , to farm out t h e i r interests, 

and put i n the terms of the farmout we would accept 

ratner than go under the order. 

Q. Did you have any other communications with 

Exxon regarding the substance of t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, I had three telephone conversations. 

Q. And what were the results of those 

conversations and correspondence? 
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A. Well, the correspondence — t h i s i s the only 

correspondence t h a t — I sent t h i s t o them, and they 

never sent anything back. 

And the three telephone conversations was, 

the; day I sent t h i s Mr. Joe Thomas c a l l e d , the same 

day, said t h a t they would — wasn't going t o j o i n us i n 

a v e i l but they would farm out, i f we would take the 

east h a l f again, w i t h a t h i r d back i n — With no back 

i n — No, w i t h a t h i r d back i n , I'm sorr y . No, w i t h — 

And I t o l d them t h a t t h a t was b a s i c a l l y the 

same t h i n g they had o f f e r e d before, t h a t t h a t wasn't 

acceptable t o us. 

And he said, Well, i f we t a l k b r i e f l y i n 

words. 

And f i n a l l y I said, But I ' l l take i t t o 

management. I ' l l , you know, make sure t h a t there's no 

change of heart. 

Then the next day I received a c a l l from 

Beth, and I ' l l j u s t — I ' l l apologize f o r the name — 

Franques. 

FROM THE FLOOR: Francis. 

THE WITNESS: I s t h a t correct? 

FROM THE FLOOR: Francis. 

THE WITNESS: Francis. I'm t e r r i b l e w i t h 

narres, and I apologize about t h a t . 
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She asked me — She basically stated the same 

thing, saying that they would farm out to us i n the 

east h a l f , they was not going to j o i n with us, and that 

i f we didn't do that, they were going to give a de 

novo. 

And I said, Well, when do you need your 

answer? 

And she said, Well, we — I'm only working 

half a day because of a pregnancy, and that I ' l l be 

back i n tomorrow. You can c a l l me at home tonight. 

Well, the next day — I hadn't called her 

that night. The next day she called me again and again 

made me the same of f e r . 

I said the same thing, that i t was — You 

know, you're not changing your tune. You — I t ' s the 

same thing, you've never offered to j o i n . You always 

offered and said you were either going to nothing or 

yo u ' l l farm out, and you're not giving anything to help 

us. 

She said f i n e , we'll give you a de novo and 

l e t i t run. 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) So you s t i l l have no 

agreement with Exxon essentially; i s that — 

A. No. 

Q. — correct? 
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A. That i s c o r r e c t , we do not have an agreement 

w i t h Exxon. 

Q. Let me show you what we have marked as Santa 

Fe E x h i b i t Number 6 and ask i f you can i d e n t i f y t h a t . 

A. That i s the land map t h a t we have entered a t 

t h i s time as our e x h i b i t . 

Q. I s t h a t b a s i c a l l y the same land map t h a t Mr. 

Tower submitted at the D i v i s i o n hearing? 

A. Yes, i t i s . I t ' s p r e t t i e d up a l i t t l e more, 

but: i t ' s b a s i c a l l y the same t h i n g . 

Q. Has your land p o s i t i o n changed a t a l l since 

the; D i v i s i o n hearing i n t h i s area? 

A. No, i t has not. 

Q. How about the south h a l f of Section 20? Do 

yov. have a permanent g r i p on the south h a l f of Section 

20 now? 

A. Well, no, we have nothing i n w r i t i n g . 

We have t a l k e d t o Amoco again, and they 

are — have been kind of w a i t i n g t o see what Exxon 

does, because before we do any a c t u a l paperwork, there 

i s a time l i m i t involved i n the — e i t h e r the farmout 

or the w e l l , or the o p t i o n a l farmout f o r a w e l l i n the 

nor t h h a l f , and there w i l l be so many days w e ' l l have 

t o move on. 

And knowing the problems we have, Emily 
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Goodfellow and Tim Custer said, Let's don't do any 

paperwork u n t i l we f i n d out what's going t o happen. 

Q. When was the l a s t time you t a l k e d t o Amoco 

about the south h a l f of Section 20? 

A. I t was l a s t week. I t a l k e d t o Tim Custer. 

Q. And what d i d Mr. Custer t e l l you? 

A. As f a r as he knew, he was s t i l l on go. He 

was; wanting t o know how things were going and i f we 

were ready f o r the de novo. 

Q. Weren't they going t o farm out t o you a t some 

p o i n t or other, or what i s the deal? 

A. The deal i s , we are — as we t a l k e d , they are 

going t o — We have a b i g j o i n t venture w i t h them, 

covering a l o t — over 20,000 acres i n southeast New 

Mexico — and t h e i r recommendation and what they were 

w a i t i n g t o do was t o go ahead and put i t i n t o the b i g 

agreement t h a t we already have w i t h them, which i s a 

farmout of a number of acres. 

Q. Okay. So you f e e l comfortable w i t h showing 

as having an i n t e r e s t i n the south h a l f of Section 20? 

A. Yes. This — Normally I wouldn't, unless you 

have something i n w r i t i n g . But w i t h our r e l a t i o n s h i p 

w i t h Exxon — I mean w i t h Amoco — f o r the l a s t two 

years, yes, I f e e l very comfortable a t t h i s time. 

Q. Mr. Dyer, I'm going t o show you what we have 
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marked as E x h i b i t Number 7. I want you t o be very 

b r i e f on t h i s e x h i b i t and t e l l us what i t i s . I t was 

not submitted at the D i v i s i o n hearing, and please t e l l 

us what t h a t i s . 

A. That i s — This i s the l e t t e r we received 

from Siete i n January, when they f i r s t proposed the 

3-1/2-section working-interest u n i t . We had 16, 17, 21 

and the east h a l f of 20. And t h a t i s my w r i t i n g on 

the r e , g i v i n g the — w i t h the Mutton Prospects and the 

d i f f e r e n t i n t e r e s t s and s t u f f l i k e t h a t . 

Q. Why d i d — Do you know why Siete excluded the 

west h a l f of Section 20? 

A. No, I do not. But at the time, I c a l l e d Gene 

— or Mr. Shumate — the land manager, and t a l k e d t o 

him and t o l d him t h a t we would probably j o i n , but we 

would probably want the whole section put i n t h e r e 

instead of section — instead of j u s t the east h a l f . 

And Gene said a t t h a t time, he sai d , Well, 

you know, I haven't heard from anybody. I know you — 

excapt Tex- — except Amoco, and I know you've t a l k e d 

t o them, and they want us t o deal w i t h you on t h e i r 

p a r t . Let's j u s t wait t i l l Exxon comes back and see i f 

they do anything before we b r i n g i t up. Because 

chances are they're not going t o do anything — 

Q. Did you ever — Did you ever enter i n t o a 
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w o r k i n g - i n t e r e s t u n i t w i t h Siete? 

A. Yes, we have. And i t covers Sections 16 and 

21. 

Q. Why would you i n Section 16? 

A. Because Exxon — Mr. Thomas c a l l e d and sa i d 

t h a t they would not j o i n t o the u n i t , they would not 

farm out t o the u n i t , and they would not give any 

support t o the u n i t . 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Dyer, l e t me — w e l l — Mr. 

Chairman, we have marked E x h i b i t 8 as being the same 

e x h i b i t we submitted as E x h i b i t 2 i n the D i v i s i o n 

hearing. I f Mr. K e l l a h i n has no problem w i t h t h i s , we 

would j u s t tender t h i s f o r the purpose of — 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. PADILLA: — same t h i n g . And t h a t ' s a l l 

I have of Mr. Dyer. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I t ' s admitted without 

o b j e c t i o n . 

Mr. Kellahin? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. I'm confused, Mr. Dyer. Do you or do you not 

have a w r i t t e n commitment from Amoco f o r the south h a l f 

of Section 20 f o r the d r i l l i n g of the subject w e l l i n 

Section 20? 
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A. I do not. 

Q. When we look a t Section 16, t h a t was some of 

the; acreage t o be included i n a w o r k i n g - i n t e r e s t u n i t 

thc.t's discussed i n E x h i b i t 7 t h a t ' s been introduced 

toc.ay. Do you have that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The Siete l e t t e r of January — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — 30th, 1989? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That working-interest u n i t would exclude the 

west h a l f of Section 20, would i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The i n i t i a l w e l l t o be d r i l l e d by Siete, was 

t h a t t a rgeted f o r t h i s Morrow formation? 

A. I t h i n k i t ' s the same. 

Q. This w e l l proposed by Siete, what i n t e r e s t 

would Santa Fe have i n the w e l l i n Section 16? 

A. Now, or a t the proposed — 

Q. At t h i s time? 

A. Oh, at t h i s time? 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. Based on what they propose, 26.7 percent. 

Q. And what do you have now? 

A. F i f t y percent. 
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Q. I n Section 16? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When you look a t E x h i b i t — 

A. Well, a c t u a l l y not 50 percent. I t ' s close. 

We've got the 40 acres down i n the southwest of the 

southwest, which would drop our i n t e r e s t down a l i t t l e 

b i t . 

But b a s i c a l l y , i t ' s j u s t the three of — the 

two of us, Siete and us, plus the l i t t l e 40 acres down 

thesre. 

Q. When we look a t E x h i b i t Number 6, w i t h i n 

Section 16 there i s a open c i r c l e . Do you see that ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n the southwest quarter? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does t h a t represent the w e l l t h a t i s 

described, the l o c a t i o n of the w e l l t h a t i s described 

i n E x h i b i t Number 7? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That w e l l was permitted by the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n , wasn't i t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Let me show you a copy of what I have marked 

as Exxon E x h i b i t Number 8 and ask you i f you can 

i d e n t i f y t h a t document. 
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A. Yes, s i r , i t ' s a C-101. 

Q. This i s the permit issued and approved by the 

Division that authorized the d r i l l i n g of that well 

we've been t a l k i n g about i n Section 16, right? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. When we turn to the second page and look at 

the survey form, that well was projected at a location 

out of the southwest quarter of 1068 feet from the — 

frcm the west l i n e , and out of the south 1514; do you 

see that? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And Siete proposed to dedicate the 320 to the 

south half of that section to the w e l l , did they not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have any knowledge of how come that 

320 was approved — 

A. Well, I r e a l l y don't — 

Q. — as opposed to 640? 

A. No, I r e a l l y don't. There was — I ' l l be — 

Really, there's some vagueness because there was some 

controversy over i t when the ODC [ s i c ] t o l d us we had 

to go with the 640's. 

Mr. Tower and Mr. Shumate had a conversation, 

and f o r some reason, because of the distance — I'm not 

sure of everything because i t ' s vague and I wasn't 
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a c t u a l l y i n on the con- — 

Q. Kind of confusing, i s n ' t i t ? 

A. Yeah. — on the conversation. They said 

t h a t they — t h a t was put i n t o the — a d i f f e r e n t pool. 

Q. Here i n June of 1989, the OCD's approving 320 

gas; spacing f o r the same formation i n Section 16, and 

yet. a few months l a t e r Santa Fe's t r y i n g t o get a 320 

gas; l o c a t i o n i n Section 20, and they're having t r o u b l e 

because of the spacing; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Well, I don't know whether we were t r o u b l e . 

We were t r y i n g t o f o l l o w the r u l e s as OD- — OCD t o l d 

us t o . 

Q. Well, but the f i r s t proposal you made t o 

Exxon — 

A. Well, the t r o u b l e we're having i s t r y i n g t o 

get somebody t o get us — t o f i n d — t o get us approval 

so we can d r i l l the w e l l . Now, whether i t be on 640's 

or 320, I t h i n k , i s r e a l l y immaterial t o us as long as 

we can get the approval t o get i t done. 

Q. I t doesn't matter t o Santa Fe, does i t — 

A. We — 

Q. — whether the w e l l , i s spaced on 320's or 

640's? You're going t o d r i l l the w e l l anyway, aren't 

you? 

A. We are i n the e x p l o r a t i o n business, and t h a t 
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i s our j o b t o d r i l l w e l l s and produce and develop, and 

we do i t t o the best of our knowledge and a b i l i t y , and 

thc.t' s what we' re here t r y i n g t o do. 

Q. And Mr. Tower, under your d i r e c t i o n and 

supervision, f i r s t proposed t o Exxon t h a t the d r i l l i n g 

of t h i s w e l l be dedicated t o a n o r t h - h a l f spacing u n i t , 

dic.n't he? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i t was only l a t e r , then, t h a t you found 

out from the O i l D i v i s i o n t h a t the D i s t r i c t s a i d , w e l l , 

gee, maybe you need 640 f o r the — f o r the well? 

A. I t h i n k i t was a l i t t l e stronger than t h a t 

but — 

Q. Okay — 

A. — th a t ' s what — what had happened. 

Q. — l e t ' s change the l o c a t i o n and change the 

spacing. 

A. What you'd have t o do i s a l o c a t i o n t o change 

the spacing. 

Q. The f i r s t proposal f o r the north h a l f of the 

se c t i o n was f o r a l o c a t i o n 660 from the no r t h l i n e and 

1980 from the east l i n e , wasn't i t ? 

A. No, the l o c a t i o n was changed because our 

d r i l l i n g engineer t o l d us we couldn't d r i l l t h e r e . 

Q. But the f i r s t proposed l o c a t i o n t o Exxon was 
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the l o c a t i o n I've j u s t described t o you? 

A. Yes, because t h a t was our t r a c t of acreage i n 

the 320, or the — 3- — a l i t t l e less than 320, but i n 

the p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. And now we're moving on t o Exxon's acreage 

w i t h what? 

A. Because our d r i l l i n g engineer t e l l s us i t ' s 

the safest place. 

Q. Santa Fe would d r i l l t h i s w e l l even i f i t was 

an e a s t - h a l f dedication, wouldn't i t , Mr. Dyer? 

A. We would t r y . We would have some problems, I 

t h i n k , based on past experience w i t h the BLM, as 

g e t t i n g a p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. Other than t h a t , there's no other reason? 

A. We — No, probably not. We l i k e the 

l o c a t i o n , we l i k e the prospect, and l i k e I sai d , t h a t ' s 

our business. We — We are charged w i t h r e p l a c i n g the 

reserves t h a t are produced on a d a i l y basis. 

Q. And there's no doubt i n your mind, from your 

perspective of your company, t h a t g e o l o g i c a l l y the best 

l o c a t i o n would have been i n the northeast quarter of 

the s e c t i o n , r i g h t ? 

A. I'm not a geol o g i s t . I can't answer t h a t . 

Q. But t h a t ' s your understanding, i s n ' t i t ? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I t ' s not a question t h a t 
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he's q u a l i f i e d t o answer, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) What caused you and Siete 

t o abandon and not d r i l l t h i s p e rmitted l o c a t i o n i n 

Section 16 when you're ready t o go and move over i n t o 

Section 20? 

A. We haven't abandoned i t . 

Q. You haven't d r i l l e d — 

A. No. 

Q. How come? 

A. Because we are working w i t h one more deal 

r i g h t now j u s t t o have the l o c a t i o n b u i l t . 

Q. And the one more deal i s t o — 

A. No. 

Q. — i s t o d r i l l the w e l l f i r s t i n Section 20; 

i s t h a t the plan? 

A. No, we are — At the present time, Siete i s 

t a l k i n g t o Amoco i n Section 9 about b r i n g i n g t h a t i n , 

which we was not involved i n , f o r some support, which 

we found out about, t h a t t h a t ' s what they're working on 

now, t h a t they have l e t the contract f o r the r i g . 

They — we're — We'll probably spud i t 

w i t h i n 60 days. 

Q. On which well? 

A. Sixteen. 

Q. On 16? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. So t h a t w e l l t o be spudded s h o r t l y i s going 

t o be spaced, as best you know, on 320 gas spacing? 

A. Unless — when they get t h a t — As best I 

know r i g h t now. 

Q. Nobody's revoked t h a t permit, have they? 

A. As f a r as I know, they haven't. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, no f u r t h e r 

questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: A d d i t i o n a l questions of the 

witness? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes, s i r , I have a couple of 

questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Dyer, l e t me show you — I bel i e v e 

i t ' s — Well, l e t me show i t on Exxon's E x h i b i t Number 

1 r i g h t here. 

Can you come here and approximately l o c a t e 

the w e l l t h a t you're t r y i n g t o d r i l l w i t h Siete? 

Just go ahead and mark i t w i t h my pen. 

A. Right about there. 

Q. Speak up. 

A. I t should be r i g h t i n the southwest quarter, 

r i g h t along there, being a d i r e c t o f f s e t t o 17, counter 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

109 

o f f s e t t o 20 and 21. 

Q. I s t h a t l o c a t i o n more than a mil e away from 

the east l i n e of Section 18? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Now, l e t me r e f e r you t o what we have 

marked as E x h i b i t Number 6, and I ' d l i k e f o r you t o 

e x p l a i n more f u l l y what you mean i n response t o Mr. 

Kel l a h i n ' s question about communitizing the east h a l f 

of Section 20. 

A. Well, i t ' s — The problems we have run i n t o 

i n the past i s t h a t on fe d e r a l acreage when there i s 

enough acreage i n a lease w i t h a l o c a t i o n . We j u s t 

haven't had any luck g e t t i n g them approved by the BLM. 

I know there i s exceptions t h a t we keep 

hearing about. We have t r i e d ; we have been turned down 

every time. So — 

Q. Have you had d i r e c t experience w i t h 

communitizing — breaking up f e d e r a l leases? 

A. Yes, i n the past f i v e years we've t r i e d i t 

twi c e , and we've been turned down both times. 

So i t — i t — You know, maybe other people 

have — have gotten i t done. I'm not going t o deny 

t h a t . I t ' s j u s t t h a t maybe we don't do i t r i g h t . I 

don't know. We j u s t can't get i t done. 

We t a l k e d t o Amando Lopez and he can change 
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h i s mind anytime, I'm sure, but we j u s t haven't been 

able t o do i t . 

MR. PADILLA: I have no f u r t h e r questions, 

Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN LEMAY: 

Q. Mr. Dyer, I've got a couple. 

I'm a l i t t l e confused on your deal. Siete's 

going t o d r i l l i n 16, you don't have any i n t e r e s t i n 

t h a t or — 

A. Yes — 

Q. — i s i t — 

A. — we do. 

Q. You do? 

A. We've formed a wo r k i n g - i n t e r e s t u n i t w i t h 16 

and 21. 

Q. Okay. Now, what's the deal i n 9? That's 

Siete separate from you fellows? 

A. Well, they went up — Before they spud the 

w e l l they c a l l e d Amoco t o t r y t o get an o p t i o n a l 

farmout from them i n support of t h a t w e l l . 

Q. Would you p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h e i r o p t i o n a l 

farmout i f they got i t ? 

A. We would, we j u s t — i t was — a f t e r we found 
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out about i t we — You know, our response was, why are 

you t r y i n g to do that? Let's go ahead and d r i l l the 

well. 

And they said, Well, we've already contacted. 

And we said, Okay, we'll wait. 

Q. Now, i f the well i s i n 16 i s going to be 

spudded, are you going to wait i t down before you d r i l l 

the well i n 20? And i s the well i n 20 going to depend 

upon the results of the well i n 16? 

A. I wish I could give you a good answer. I 

know what my response as a landman would be, but I'm 

not sure of what — by a geologist. 

I think that once — We would probably, 

instead of d r i l l i n g two wells at one time, yes, we 

would probably wait for 16 to go down. I t only makes 

good business sense to me. 

Q. Why would Exxon make a deal with you to — on 

an optional farmout where there's a well d r i l l i n g i n 

the area, unless there's a lease expired? Would you 

make that deal i f you were s i t t i n g there, o f f s e t t i n g a 

d r i l l i n g well? Farm out some of your acreage on a 

contingency basis? 

A. I t would be a hard decision — We have — 

especially i f we didn't know whether the well was going 

down or not. 
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Q. But assuming the w e l l i s going t o be d r i l l e d 

and you were working f o r Exxon, would you make t h a t 

k i n d of a deal? 

A. Oh, I ' d probably recommend t o management t h a t 

we not do i t , t h a t we not farm out. 

Q. So i s a l l t h i s a l i t t l e premature? I f we're 

going t o d r i l l a w e l l i n 16 and we have the spacing and 

t h a t ' s a f i r m deal, t h i s whole hearing process, what 

we're doing now, are we a l i t t l e premature i n t r y i n g t o 

make a deal i n 20 before t h a t w e l l i s d r i l l e d ? 

Unless the c o n t r i b u t i o n would in v o l v e the 

d r i l l i n g of t h a t w e l l i n 16. I can see from Exxon's 

p o i n t of view t h a t there's some value i n g e t t i n g a w e l l 

d r i l l e d i n 16 and maybe an o p t i o n a l farmout of — so 

i t ' s t i e d t o t h a t w e l l . 

A. Well, you see more than Exxon d i d , because 

they d i d n ' t see any value i n t h a t a t a l l . 

Q. I'm not t r y i n g t o make you dumb; I'm t r y i n g 

t o understand what's going on. 

A. Well, we were t r y i n g t o get a w e l l d r i l l e d . 

Q. Right. 

A. Exxon was not cooperating w i t h us as f a r as 

the w o r k i n g - i n t e r e s t u n i t . Siete — We decided we'd do 

i t . I f problems had a r i s e - — other problems had a r i s e 

— We wanted t o get the wells d r i l l e d , so we went ahead 
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and t r i e d t o get one going i n 20 before we would get 

one going i n 16. 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. We're j u s t t r y i n g t o get more w e l l s d r i l l e d . 

Q. I can see t h a t , yes. 

A. And t h a t was i t . There was a — 

Q. Now we're p r e t t y w e l l sure the one i n 16 i s 

going t o go before the one i n 20, though, so t h a t ' s the 

primary well? 

A. I t looks l i k e i t because of the time span. 

We would spud t h i s w e l l — a c t u a l l y , we would have spud 

t h i s w e l l — Well, by our A p r i l 16th l e t t e r , we were 

ready t o go j u s t as soon as we had an Exxon — a l e t t e r 

from Exxon. 

Q. So a c t u a l l y Siete's entry i n t o the p i c t u r e 

k i n d of clouded the whole t h i n g . They — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — wanted t o do some t h i n g s , and i t — 

A. Yes, and i t ' s — t h e i r — Their t i m i n g we 

couldn't e x a c t l y count on. So now they've come back 

and said they're going t o d r i l l p r e t t y soon. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: That's an i n t e r e s t i n g 

s i t u a t i o n , t o say the l e a s t . 

I don't have any a d d i t i o n a l questions. 

I s there anything else of the witness? I f 
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not, he may be excused. 

Thank you, Mr. Dyer. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Mr. P a d i l l a , do you have 

a d d i t i o n a l — other witnesses? 

MR. PADILLA: Yes, I have one more witness, 

Mr. Chairman. Bob S e i l e r . 

(Off the record) 

ROBERT C. SEILER. 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn 

upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. S e i l e r , would you please s t a t e your f u l l 

name? 

A. Robert C. Se i l e r . 

Q. Mr. S e i l e r , are you the g e o l o g i s t t h a t 

t e s t i f i e d f o r Santa Fe at the l a s t hearing? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Your c r e d e n t i a l s were accepted as a matter of 

record a t t h a t hearing? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Can you b r i e f l y t e l l us what your experience 

i n t h i s area is? 

A. I've been i n the Permian Basin D i s t r i c t f o r 
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the past year. I've conducted studies i n the general 

area over the past — I guess i t ' s been s i x months. 

And I've f a m i l i a r i z e d myself w i t h the w e l l s i n the 

area. 

Q. How long have you been a geologist? 

A. Twenty years. 

Q. Have you prepared c e r t a i n e x h i b i t s f o r 

i n t r o d u c t i o n a t t h i s — 

A. I have. I've reviewed a l l these — These 

were a c t u a l l y o r i g i n a l l y prepared by an outside 

g e o l o g i s t , but we've reviewed them and accepted them. 

I n our company, I was the i n d i v i d u a l i n our 

company charged w i t h the review, and I am f a m i l i a r w i t h 

them and agree w i t h them. 

Q. Are these b a s i c a l l y the same e x h i b i t s t h a t 

you t e s t i f i e d t o at the D i v i s i o n hearing? 

A. They are. I w i l l p o i n t out t h a t the maps, 

however, include a la r g e r area. I've included more 

p e r i p h e r a l area away from Section 20, and the reason I 

d i d t h a t was, there was a couple of references made i n 

various questions i n the previous hearing t o s i t u a t i o n s 

outside the area I presented at t h a t time. 

So t h i s time I thought i t would be a l i t t l e 

more appropriate t o b r i n g i n t h i s size map, and t h a t ' s 

we've done. 
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MR. PADILLA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, we tender 

Mr. S e i l e r as a geo l o g i s t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: His q u a l i f i c a t i o n s are 

acceptable. 

Q. (By Mr. P a d i l l a ) Mr. S e i l e r , can you f i r s t 

of a l l generally describe the study t h a t you have made 

i n t h i s area regarding the Upper — Tank Morrow Pools 

and Lower Morrow — 

A. Rock Tank? 

Q. Rock Tank, and how they a f f e c t Section 20? 

A. I n reviewing the prospect when i t was brought 

t o us, the prospect included the area of Rock Tank, and 

so I , i n evaluating the prospect, became f a m i l i a r w i t h 

the w e l l s i n Rock Tank and t h e i r r e l a t i o n s h i p t o 

Section 20, as w e l l as surrounding w e l l s , Baldridge 

Canyon and the other pools i n the immediate area. 

Q. Now, a t what p o i n t d i d you become involved 

w i t h recommending a d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n t o Santa Fe? 

A. That was a c t u a l l y upon approval of — 

acceptance of the prospect from the outside source. At 

t h a t time i t was deemed we had a d d i t i o n a l land work 

t h a t we needed t o do, and so the a c t u a l l o c a t i o n 

recommendation has evolved as we've heard. 

We had — o r i g i n a l l y had picked a l o c a t i o n 

i n Section 20 t h a t subsequently has been deemed 
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ina p p r o p r i a t e or unsafe f o r various reasons, as 

t e s t i f i e d t o by Mr. Burton, and i t ' s evolved now t o the 

1990 out of the nor t h and west i n Section 20. 

Q. And i s t h a t i n conformity w i t h the Order 

issued by the D i v i s i o n as a r e s u l t of the D i v i s i o n 

hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

Q. What's the issue, i n your opinion, here as 

f a r as geology i s concerned? 

A. Well, b a s i c a l l y , i t ' s — There's a couple of 

issues, I t h i n k . The appropriateness of the 640-acre 

spacing versus the 320, of course, i s very important. 

Exxon has presented very f i n e testimony, I 

t h i n k , where they are f a i r l y c e r t a i n t h a t i t ' s not 

i n — a Morrow accumulation i n those two zones, i n 

Section 20, would not be i n the same pool. 

I t h i n k t h a t perhaps remains t o be seen. 

I t ' s probably not the most l i k e l y r e s u l t , but I t h i n k 

i t ' s s t i l l p ossible. 

Therefore, I t h i n k the 640 r u l i n g i s 

appropriate, a t l e a s t t o t h i s p o i n t i n time. 

Q. Why i s that? 

A. Well, j u s t because we don't know, and we 

won't know u n t i l the w e l l i s d r i l l e d . And once the 

w e l l i s d r i l l e d , i f indeed the sands are the same and 
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they're found a t a lower s t r a t i g r a p h i c p o s i t i o n i n the 

water t h a t ' s been i d e n t i f i e d i n Rock Tank, then a t t h a t 

time I t h i n k we could c l e a r l y s t a t e t h a t i t i s not i n 

Rock Tank. 

Q. What would be the course of a c t i o n i f i t was 

determined t h a t you were not i n the Rock Tank Pool? 

A. Well, as I understand the r u l i n g from the 

previous hearing, there's two u n i t s t h a t were approved. 

And i f we determined t h a t i t was not i n the Rock Tank 

Pool, then we would have t o come back t o the Commission 

hearing and — Commission — and have a hearing and 

e x p l a i n such, and I would assume then go on t o the 

statewide 320, which would be appropriate i f — from 

the new informa t i o n , as a r e s u l t of the new 

info r m a t i o n . 

Q. Let's go on t o what we have marked as E x h i b i t 

Number 9 and have you t e l l the Commission what t h a t i s . 

A. Okay, I ' l l t r y and use the board out here so 

t h a t the Commission can see i t a l l r i g h t . I t ' s not the 

scale of the previous e x h i b i t s . 

F i r s t I ' d l i k e t o go t o E x h i b i t 9, which i s 

the s t r u c t u r e map, and in d i c a t e d on the s t r u c t u r e map 

i s an area surrounding Section 20, Section 20 being i n 

the l o c a t i o n w i t h the red square i n i t , which i s our 

proposed l o c a t i o n . That i s along — 
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Q. What i s t h a t location? 

A. That i s the proposed l o c a t i o n of 1990 — 1980 

fe e t from the north l i n e , 1980 from the west l i n e of 

Section 20. 

Q. And t h a t l i e s i n the northwest quarter of 

t h a t Section 20? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

A d d i t i o n a l l y shown on t h i s e x h i b i t — And I 

t h i n k you have smaller copies before you — i s the 

various — the acreage p o s i t i o n . 

We are also showing — describe the geology, 

then — s t r u c t u r e contours on the horizon t h a t ' s 

i d e n t i f i e d on the bottom right-hand i n the legend i s 

Top of Morrow Sequence 2. 

I'd l i k e t o p o i n t out t h a t t h a t i s not the 

exact same horizon t h a t has been used by Exxon, 

although i t ' s q u i t e close. 

Now, I t h i n k f o r t h a t — To ex p l a i n t h a t 

d i f f e r e n c e I ' d l i k e t o j u s t make reference, then, t o 

the cross-section, which i s E x h i b i t 10. 

Ex h i b i t 10 — and I t h i n k you have a small 

copy of t h a t as w e l l — shows on the l e f t - h a n d — Well, 

i t ' s a cross-section as being a s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-

se c t i o n . Not s t r u c t u r a l as the previous one, but 

s t r a t i g r a p h i c . 
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Q. What's the difference between stratigraphic 

and structural? 

A. Well, a stratigraphic cross-section i s drawn 

to — generally i s drawn to establish certain 

stratigraphic relationships. 

And i n doing so, one does not, i f you w i l l , 

hang the cross-section on a st r u c t u r a l datum, which i s 

the case i n a stru c t u r a l cross-section, but w i l l pick a 

consistent stratigraphic datum so that one can better 

see the various relationships of the rock units 

involved. 

This one i s a stratigraphic. The other was 

st r u c t u r a l . 

A l l r i g h t , the st r u c t u r a l horizon that i s 

mapped — Excuse me. The horizon that i s mapped on the 

structure map i s the top of what we c a l l Sequence 2. 

Sequence 2 i s highlighted on your map — I'm sorry, on 

your cross-section — i n yellow. 

And what has been used as the datum f o r the 

structure map that Exxon has presented i s approximately 

a hundred feet below that. I think they called i t the 

top or the base of t h e i r Middle Morrow marker. We 

refer to i t as the top of the Lower Morrow. I t ' s one 

and the same. But anyway, we're close but not quite 

the same. 
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Back to the structure map, then, i f I could. 

The structure map shows very s i m i l a r l y , as Exxon's did, 

generally structure with a dip to the east-southeast. 

The dip rate i s approximately 200 to 400 feet per mile. 

That's a f a i r l y gentle dip, roughly two to f i v e degrees 

per mile, a two- to five-degree dip. 

I t also shows the major f a u l t at Rock Tank 

that was made reference to, the 500- to 600-foot f a u l t . 

Notably, the intermediate f a u l t that they have — has 

been discussed today and i n the previous hearing i s not 

shown on t h i s map. 

Q. Why don't you show that f a u l t ? 

A. The reason that f a u l t i s not on t h i s map i s 

when i t was constructed, i t was decided from the 

exis t i n g data and by my interpretation i t ' s not 

required for the drawing of the map. 

The — On t h e i r i n t e r pretation, the f a u l t 

varies from 75 feet to a hundred feet i n magnitude, and 

where the well control i s the closest i t ' s only l i k e 71 

feet, I think, i s the proper footage, or thereabouts. 

I don't think i t has to be i n there. I don't 

see that many i r r e g u l a r i t i e s i n the contouring. 

Typically, i f there's a f a u l t i n there y o u ' l l 

see a compression, i f you w i l l , of a contour, something 

funny happening that would indicate a f a u l t . I don't 
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think that i t necessarily has to be there. 

We don't have seismic to say yea or nay. 

They indicated they had some, then perhaps that's 

another piece of evidence. But I j u s t don't have that 

available to me. 

Finishing up the discussion on t h i s diagram, 

also shown are the varying producing horizons, and 

they're indicated by the colors, also indexed at the 

bottom of the map. The red are Morrow, and i t ' s t o 

mean a l l Morrow producers, okay, not necessarily j u s t 

Upper or Lower or whatever but a l l Morrow producers. 

Purple i s the Atoka producer — Atoka production, and 

so on. 

Also indexed i s the cross-section to Exhibit 

10, A/A-prime. I t runs generally from the northwest to 

the east-southeast. I t starts out at the — on the 

flank of Rock Tank and moves down i n an easterly 

d i r e c t i o n . 

Q. Why have you chosen t h i s p a r t i c u l a r cross-

section? 

A. Well, i t was a matter of t r y i n g to subdivide 

the various rock units and demonstrate what we think i s 

a viable objective for a prospect i n t h i s area. 

And to better describe that, what I'd l i k e to 

do i s now go to the cross-section and go into a l i t t l e 
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more d e t a i l . 

The cross-section, on the l e f t - h a n d side, i s 

the w e l l t h a t i s i n the Rock Tank f i e l d . I t i s the 

Monsanto Company Rock Tank Number 2, located i n Section 

6. 

That w e l l has drawn through i t and t o the 

r i g h t of i t numerous subdivisions, i f you w i l l , 

i d e n t i f y i n g various layers. 

I made reference e a r l i e r t o the top of the 

Lower Morrow, which i s i d e n t i f i e d i n the center i f the 

diagram. I f you draw t h a t back i n t o the w e l l t o the 

l e f t , you w i l l see t h a t i t comes i n a t the base of a 

green shale marker. I t ' s been colored green. That we 

use as a breakoff between Middle and Upper Morrow and 

Lower Morrow. 

Beneath t h a t , we have i d e n t i f i e d various 

u n i t s , i f you w i l l , sequences t h a t are Lower Morrow, 

and they're i d e n t i f i e d L l , L2, up through L5, L f o r 

Lower. 

Above t h a t l i n e we have i d e n t i f i e d sequence 

1, 2, 3 and 4. These are again subdivisions. The way 

these were chosen were by the i n t e r v e n i n g shale 

markers. 

For instance, i f you w i l l look a t Sequence 4 

i n t h a t w e l l , Rock Tank 2, on the l e f t t h e r e , there i s 
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a very marked shale marker j u s t above, and indeed 

t h a t ' s the datum t h a t we've used f o r hanging the 

s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-section. 

And then at the base of what's marked as 

Sequence 4 there's another e x c e l l e n t marine shale 

marker. That defines f o r us sequence 4. 

I t ' s t h a t methodology t h a t ' s been used i n 

subd i v i d i n g the rock i n t h i s area, j u s t the Morrow 

se c t i o n i n t h i s area. 

I could mention i n passing t h a t Sequence 4 i s 

the Upper Morrow Rock Tank productive i n t e r v a l t h a t was 

presented e a r l i e r i n Exxon presentations. 

As in d i c a t e d on the l e f t - h a n d side, t h a t ' s a 

Rock Tank pay, there's four w e l l s i n i t . They've made 

close t o 9 BCF. To complete t h a t l i n e of thought, the 

Lower Rock Tank Pool pay i s down here i n what's c a l l e d 

Sequence L l . That's a pay i n Rock Tank, also i n 

Catclaw Draw. I n Rock Tank there are 7 we l l s t h a t have 

made over 47 BCF out of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r u n i t . 

What I want t o draw our a t t e n t i o n t o now, 

though, i s what we r e f e r t o as Sequence 2. I know t h a t 

was a b i t lengthy, but what I'm t r y i n g t o show i s t h a t 

what we're pursuing i s d i f f e r e n t than the two t h a t have 

been shown. I t ' s — Our prospect i s h i g h l i g h t e d 

towards t h a t . 
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Q. As you move east, do you see the same t h i n g 

happening, or the same kind of r e s e r v o i r 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s ? 

A. I t h i n k you can see, p a r t i c u l a r l y as p e r t a i n s 

t o the Middle Morrow, Middle Upper Morrow, t h a t the 

c o r r e l a t i o n markers carry across q u i t e n i c e l y , and 

indeed we do see i t come across. 

Which brings us t o a key w e l l i n t h i s cross-

s e c t i o n , being the middle w e l l , and t h i s now pe r t a i n s 

t o our prospect, why we — 

Q. Can you locate t h a t w e l l on the s t r u c t u r e 

map? 

A. I sure w i l l . Again, i t ' s the Hanagan 

Petroleum Company North Horseshoe Bend Number 1. That 

i s located immediately south — or, excuse me, two 

sections east of our Section 20. I t ' s over i n Section 

22, up i n the northeast quarter. 

I t ' s h i g h l i g h t e d by a blue dot and a c i r c l e 

which, by the coding, means i t d i d go t o the Morrow, 

but i t ' s a Strawn producer, i t was a Strawn producer. 

I t h i n k i t ' s now maybe a — a t l e a s t a te m p o r a r i l y 

abandoned or abandoned. 

But, however, t h a t i s a very s i g n i f i c a n t w e l l 

f o r our prospect i n the Morrow. And t o h i g h l i g h t t h a t 

I ' d l i k e t o go back t o the cross-section and p o i n t out 
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a d r i l l - s t e m test i n t e r v a l that i s shown i n the central 

column of that well, the log of that w e l l . 

And i n t h i s DST, or d r i l l - s t e m t e s t , we see 

that t h i s well recovered 9512 feet of s a l t water on 

te s t . Now, we're not i n the business to f i n d s a l t 

water, but we do, to f i n d o i l and gas, have to f i n d 

porous and permeable rock. That's a very excellent 

t e s t . 

Our chore, then, to make a prospect out of 

t h i s zone i n t h i s area, i s to get updip from that and 

stay i n the porous and permeable rock, and that's the 

key f o r our prospect, and we'll work that up as we go 

into the maps. 

Q. Do you have anything further concerning 

Exhibits 9 or 10? 

A. Not at t h i s time. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s go to Exhibit Number 11. 

A. Okay. 

Q. What i s Exhibit Number 11? 

A. Exhibit Number 11 — which I may point out, 

i s a new map. This was not shown at the previous 

hearing. For further demonstration of our prospect, I 

thought i t was beneficial at t h i s time. 

Exhibit Number 11 i s an isopach map and, as 

indicated i n the bottom right-hand corner of the 
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legend, i t i s a gross i n t e r v a l isopach. 

Q. What does that mean? Does that measure sand 

thickness? Is that what you're t a l k i n g about? 

A. Okay, for Sequence 2 that measures 

everything. That measures sand, that measures shale, 

and any lines that might be i n there, and I might add 

that i t measures a l l sand, whether i t looks porous or 

not. I t ' s the t o t a l i n t e r v a l . 

And what we have shown, then, on t h i s map i s 

the values for a l l the wells i n t h i s area, f o r that 

sequence. 

And what one can see, and i t ' s highlighted 

with color, i s a thick i n the area j u s t to the west 

of — excuse me, j u s t to the east of Section 20, where 

the values reach over 100 feet, the thickest well being 

the well i n Section 19, which also coincides with the 

well on the right-hand side of the cross-section, the 

position A on the cross of A prime i n the cross-

section. 

The thick package that you can see i n the 

u n i t i s thickest there and also you can see has got a 

l o t of sand, but we'll get to the sand i n a minute. 

So a l l t h i s thing i s doing, then, i s looking 

at the t o t a l i n t e r v a l . We see that the i n t e r v a l i s 

thinnest back to the west and the northwest, thickest 
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t o the east of Section 20, and i t has a lobate shape, 

t h a t i s , i t , we f e e l , demonstrates a d e l t a i c 

environment. 

Q. How do you s p e l l "lobate"? 

A. L-o-b-a-t-e. 

Q. Why d i d I ask t h a t question? 

A. I n the t r a n s c r i p t i t was misrepresented as 

1-o-w b - a - i - t , as opposed t o high b a i t or s t i n k b a i t 

or something. 

COMMISSIONER LEMAY: They were f i s h i n g i n 

that? 

THE WITNESS: Yeah. Got a chuckle out of 

t h a t . 

Anyway, so we see a general lobate p a t t e r n , 

and t h a t ' s b a s i c a l l y a l l t h a t t h i s map was intended t o 

show. I t ' s t r y i n g t o describe what i s the geometry of 

the o v e r a l l i n t e r v a l ? What's the o v e r a l l i n t e r v a l 

doing? Where are the t h i n s , where are the t h i c k s , and 

what can you deduce from that? 

From t h i s , then, i f we're going t o have a 

prospect, we now have t o look i n t o the existence of the 

sandstones, and f o r t h a t I'd l i k e t o go t o the next 

d i s p l a y . 

Q. (By Mr. Pa d i l l a ) Okay. That would be 

Ex h i b i t Number 12? 
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A. Okay, Exhibit Number 12, again, i s another 

isopach. But t h i s time what we're going to do i s look 

at a l l the logs i n here and j u s t look at sandstone 

thickness, gross sandstone thickness, whether i t be 

porous or not. We're going to eliminate a l l shales, 

we're going to eliminate any limes that might be i n 

there. 

So t h i s i s a sandstone thickness map, 

regardless of quality. 

Once again, we look at t h i s and see what we 

can garner. Basically the same shape appears. We've 

got a thi c k that's lying out to the east of Section 20 

with a tongue now, i f you w i l l , coming back towards 

Section 20, to the north of Section 20, through Section 

16, 17, 21 and 20. 

What we are beginning to see now, we f e e l , i s 

indeed a deltaic deposit, sourced from the northwest, 

very similar to the e f f l u v i a l d i r e c t i o n that Exxon had 

presented e a r l i e r for the other sands. Now, we're 

t a l k i n g a d i f f e r e n t sand, but the di r e c t i o n seems to 

maintain. 

And we're bringing sands i n from the 

northwest and, we f e e l , depositing these i n a lobate 

fashion out here, such as i n a delta. But we're 

halfway home to — for examining a prospect. 
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The l a s t t h i n g i s , where i s — Where does the 

rock demonstrate r e s e r v o i r c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s ? P o r o s i t y 

and permeability? We can deduce p o r o s i t y o f f the next 

map, which I ' d l i k e t o go t o i f there's no questions. 

Q. Let's go. And t h a t ' s E x h i b i t 13; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Okay. Now, t h i s map i s the one we've been 

t r y i n g t o get t o . This i s the map, now, t h a t we're 

going t o look i n j u s t a t the sandstone. So now, as the 

legend i n d i c a t e s , i t ' s a net p o r o s i t y map. We're going 

t o r e s t r i c t ourselves j u s t t o t h a t p o r t i o n of the 

sandstone t h a t has p o r o s i t y i n d i c a t e d from logs a t 10 

percent or greater. 

And the logs vary across here. You've got 

some sonic logs, you've got the neutron density and so 

on. So you have t o do w i t h what you've got. 

What we see, then, on t h i s map — and as I 

say, t h i s i s the map we've been l o o k i n g f o r — i s again 

what we f e e l represents the — where the presence of 

q u a l i t y sandstone w i l l be, and we see the p a t t e r n s t i l l 

maintains i t s e l f . 

We see a t h i c k , again, s t i l l out t o the east 

of Section 20. We see the — What we t h i n k i s the 

feeder d i r e c t i o n coming i n from the northwest. 
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And what r e a l l y stands out now i s t h i s 

p r o t r u s i o n t h a t s t i c k s up down here t o the south and 

east — or south and west. This, we t h i n k , i s another 

channel t h a t e i t h e r f l i p p e d out here, or perhaps — 

There's a geologic feature c a l l e d a crevasse splay, and 

t h a t ' s where i n a d e l t a environment the channel breaks 

out and sends out another l i t t l e arm, i f you w i l l , such 

— weakly represented, maybe, the M i s s i s s i p p i Delta 

when i n lobate fashion i f i t s l i p s — switches around 

there could be crevasse splays where i t breaks through 

i t s levee. 

Well, anyway, we f e e l as though a major — 

t h i s t r i b u t a r y may have headed o f f i n t o t h i s d i r e c t i o n . 

Q. I s t h a t shown by the yellow or the red 

c o l o r i n g t h a t — 

A. Well, I'd l i k e t o get t o the red i n j u s t a 

second, okay? 

The s i g n i f i c a n c e , then, i s , we've got q u a l i t y 

sand i n excess of 50 f e e t , we have one w e l l w i t h 51 

f e e t t o the nor t h of us there i n Section 15. We've got 

our good w e l l w i t h the b i g t e s t , w i t h the b i g water 

t e s t , present w i t h 31 f e e t of q u a l i t y sand, and our 

prospect, then, i s , we've got t o get updip from t h a t 

water. 

Well, what we've done i s look where does t h i s 
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zone, i f anywhere, produce gas? 

And I mentioned t h a t crevasse splay. The 

w e l l down i n the south h a l f of Section 31 had a DST run 

on Section 2 — or, excuse me, on Sequence 2 — and 

during t h a t DST, d r i l l stem t e s t , the w e l l flowed a t 

the r a t e of 9.2 m i l l i o n cubic f o o t a day. On a 19/32 

choke, they recovered 80 fe e t of water and 260 f e e t of 

gas-cut mud. The sample chamber had 7.4 cubic f e e t of 

gas, no water. 

Q. What does t h a t mean? 

A. B a s i c a l l y — I'm sure they were very e x c i t e d 

when they f i r s t had i t . I t was a wonderful t e s t . The 

w e l l subsequently — They attempted a completion i n 

here, along w i t h the lower zone, and i t produced a l o t 

of water. 

The lower zone tested by i t s e l f made a l o t of 

water on the production t e s t . They came up and added 

t h i s one t o i t and always had too much water. They 

never made a v i a b l e completion i n Sequence 2. 

Q. How — 

A. But i t d i d t e s t — 

Q. How i s t h a t relevant t o your proposed 

location? 

A. A l l r i g h t , what t h a t demonstrates t o us, 

then, i s i n Sequence 2, t h a t there i s gas i n t h i s 
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sequence, i n t h i s i n t e r v a l , i n t h i s subinterval of the 

Morrow. 

And i n addition, i t shows us i f you 

extrapolate the lowest porosity zone i n Sequence 2 and 

trace that contour on your structure map, you can then 

determine where, i f you w i l l , the lowest known gas i s 

i n Sequence 2 from your lowest perforation or your 

lowest porosity foot. And i t did make gas, so that 

would be our lowest known gas. 

That i s the red l i n e on the — I t ' s drawn 

across the top of the sandbar. 

Now, on the right-hand side there i s a 

bluish-green l i n e which i s labeled Highest Known Water. 

That's taken from the highest porous foot that the well 

had made — made the water. 

So now we've got the stage set. We've got 

porous sand, we've got a water te s t that t e l l s us we've 

got to be further updip than that point. We've got gas 

down to t h i s point. 

That, f o r us, sets up a prospect i n the area 

of Section 20, and our location, as you can see, would 

be i n the net sand. I t would be close to the lowest 

known gas elevation i n t h i s sequence. 

One thing I need to point out i s , t h i s i s a 

stratigraphic trap. The question has to be asked, Why 
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d i d n ' t t h a t leak a l l the way up t o Rock Tank? 

I f you no t i c e the updip l i m i t of t h a t sand, 

where i t ' s colored orange and goes t o white, t h a t i s a 

f i e l d of zero c o n t r o l . That i s a s t r a t i g r a p h i c 

pinchout of porous sand i n t h i s i n t e r v a l , and t h a t i s 

more than l i k e l y how a l o t of these downdip f i e l d s 

appear, t h a t they're not s t r u c t u r a l l y c o n t r o l l e d ; 

they're s t r a t i g r a p h i c . 

They go t o a pinchout, a p o r o s i t y pinchout 

updip. That i s our prospect, Sequence 2. 

Q. Does — Let me ask you something. Does t h a t 

mean when you have a pinchout t h a t you're no longer i n 

the Rock Tank Pool, or — 

A. This i s a — not a question of Rock Tank a t 

t h i s p o i n t i n t h a t i t ' s a d i f f e r e n t i n t e r v a l than 

e i t h e r of the two Rock Tank producing horizons, okay? 

Q. How d i d you reconcile s t r u c t u r e w i t h the sand 

thickness explored or — as f a r as choosing your 

location? 

A. Well, I ' d have t o concur w i t h the previous 

testimony, both hearings, w i t h the Morrow the best idea 

i n the world i s t o get i n the sand t h i c k s and, the best 

you can, get i n porous sand t h i c k s . 

And t h a t ' s what we're attempting t o do by 

coming updip from t h a t water w e l l . We know i t ' s 
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q u a l i t y . So you go f o r your sand t h i c k s . 

And then, of course, you must pay a t t e n t i o n 

t o s t r u c t u r e . I n the case of producing f r e e water, 

you've got t o be above f r e e water. 

We have then set the stage, as I've said. 

We've got a band i n here. Apparently, one would 

bel i e v e t h a t a gas-water contact would have t o e x i s t 

through here somewhere and you'd want t o be on the 

updip p o r t i o n of t h a t . That's where we are s i t u a t e d i n 

Section 20, and we f e e l we've got a v i a b l e prospect. 

Q. I n terms of 320-acre spacing and i n terms of 

laydown u n i t s or standup u n i t s , how does t h i s geology 

i n your proposed l o c a t i o n work? I n other words, where 

do you d r i l l the second w e l l , should 320-acre spacing 

be decided t o be applicable by the Commission? 

A. Well, as — as — As we i n d i c a t e d i n the 

previous hearing, our f i r s t w e l l — and Mr. K e l l a h i n 

was r i g h t when he said we would p r e f e r , i f we thought 

i t was a v i a b l e place t o d r i l l , the northeast of 

Section 20. 

We have determined, through q u i t e extensive 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n and expense, t h a t we do not f e e l t h a t 

t h a t i s v i a b l e f o r the reasons t h a t have been st a t e d . 

We would then go forward w i t h our l o c a t i o n i n 

a n o r t h - h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t . I f i t were t o be deemed 
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t o be 320, we would d r i l l i t a t 1980, 1980. 

And then t o obtain the maximum sand thickness 

f o r the second w e l l i n Section 20 we would go t o the 

southeast, knowing t h a t we are s a c r i f i c i n g some 

e l e v a t i o n . But t h a t i s the area of gre a t e s t sand 

thickness. 

And I might add, as I said before i n the 

previous hearing, q u i t e encouraged. I t ' s not only the 

greatest sand thickness i n the south h a l f i n Sequence 

2, but i t also happens t o be the greatest thickness i n 

the zones t h a t were mapped by Exxon, t h a t I had not 

pre v i o u s l y done across t h i s area. So I was encouraged 

by t h a t . 

Q. So you would locate one w e l l i n the northwest 

quarter and the other w e l l i n the southeast quarter? 

A. Correct, r i g h t . 

Q. I n your view, would t h a t be — w e l l , would 

t h a t be a b e t t e r way t o develop Section 20, should 320 

acres be applicable? 

A. I t h i n k , given the surface c o n d i t i o n s and 

everything t h a t we have t o deal w i t h i n Section 20, the 

rank, w i l d nature of t h i s where we must c o n t r o l costs, 

and a l l things considered, t h i s i s , yes, the best way 

t o develop Section 20. 

Q. Mr. S e i l e r , do you have anything f u r t h e r t o 
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add t o your testimony as f a r as your geologic 

presentation i s concerned? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t covers i t . 

Q. Mr. S e l l e r , would approval of Santa Fe's 

A p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t s of conservation 

and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. I n my opinion, yes, s i r . 

MR. PADILLA: Mr. Chairman, we o f f e r 

E x h i b i t s , I believe, 5 through 13 a t t h i s time. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Without o b j e c t i o n , those 

e x h i b i t s w i l l be entered i n t o the record. 

MR. PADILLA: And w e ' l l pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Yes, Mr. Kellahin? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. S e i l e r , i f y o u ' l l t u r n w i t h me t o your 

E x h i b i t Number 13 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — when we look s p e c i f i c a l l y a t Section 20, 

am I cle a r i n understanding when you're l o o k i n g a t 

Sequence 2 as the t a r g e t t h a t the greatest thickness 

f o r Sequence 2 i s going t o be a w e l l located i n the 

northeast quarter? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Because of your understanding of the surface 
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c o n s t r a i n t s , then, r a t h e r than moving t o the southeast 

quarter, you have moved over i n t o the northwest 

quarter? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Why have you done that? 

A. I t i s as close as I can get and have a — 

s t i l l have s t r u c t u r a l advantage, which has t o be worked 

i n t o the formula as w e l l . I believe — and i t ' s as 

close as we f e e l t h a t we can get t o a good l o c a t i o n i n 

the northeast quarter w i t h a v e r t i c a l w e l l . 

Q. The southeast quarter of the s e c t i o n would 

give you greater thickness than your l o c a t i o n i n the 

northwest quarter, would i t not? 

A. I t would give a l i t t l e b i t greater thickness, 

yes, s i r , and also s a c r i f i c e a l i t t l e e l e v a t i o n as has 

been discussed e a r l i e r . 

Q. Nothing you've said about l o c a t i n g your f i r s t 

w e l l i n the northwest quarter and the second w e l l i n 

the southeast quarter precludes standing the u n i t s up, 

does i t ? 

A. Not i n terms of geologic testimony, no, s i r . 

Q. Or i n terms of w e l l location? You can take 

t h a t l o c a t i o n i n the northwest quarter and designate 

the west h a l f and have a west-half d e d i c a t i o n a t the 

standard w e l l l o c a t i o n , can't you? 
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A. I believe that's correct, yes. 

Q. And that w i l l s t i l l leave you an opportunity, 

then, i n the east half to put a well at good thickness 

above the 20-foot contour l i n e at a standard location? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When we look at Exhibit 13, you've drawn our 

attention down to Section 31, and there's the wel l 

whose name escapes me, but i t shows about 11 feet, and 

i t ' s got the red dot? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. How important i s that well to you i n your 

evaluation of the Sequence 2? 

A. Well, i t — I t , I think, i s prett y 

s i g n i f i c a n t . Although i t ' s somewhat distant i t does 

demonstrate the gas i n Sequence 2, and as — I think i t 

was Mr. Kwolek made the observation, there's not a 

producing well, currently producing well i n the 

immediate area i n Sequence 2. This i s as close as we 

could come, and I think i t ' s a very substantial show at 

a flowing over 9 m i l l i o n a day. So I think i t ' s p r e t t y 

s i g n i f i c a n t . 

Q. Other than that well, when I look at the area 

mapped on your exhibit and look at Sequence 2, there i n 

fact i s no production i n Sequence 2, i s there? 

A. No, s i r . 
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Q. When we look i n Section 22, which i s two 

sections t o the east of 20, we have the w e l l t h a t had 

r e s e r v o i r p o r o s i t y , but t h a t ' s the w e l l — the Hanagan 

Well t h a t was wet? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And t h a t has caused you t o i d e n t i f y , then, 

the highest known water? 

A. Yes, s i r , i n Sequence 2. 

Q. Yes, s i r . A l l of my questions are on 

Sequence 2, Mr. S e i l e r . 

A. Okay. 

Q. On the other hand, we're t r y i n g t o determine 

the lowest known gas w i t h the red l i n e ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the c o n t r o l p o i n t f o r t h a t i s the w e l l i n 

Section 31? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you have the infor m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e on the 

w e l l i n 31? And l e t ' s t a l k , again, about what you t o l d 

Mr. P a d i l l a . 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. We have the d r i l l - s t e m t e s t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the d r i l l - s t e m t e s t was taken a t 10,440 

f e e t through -487? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I s t h a t your information? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. The gas flowed approximately 9.2 m i l l i o n 

cubic f e e t of gas per day? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Recovered 80 f e e t of water? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And 2 60 f e e t of gas-cut mud? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then they p e r f o r a t e d two 

i n t e r v a l s , d i d they not, from 10,462 t o — Y o u ' l l have 

t o help me because I've l o s t t r a c k of the top 

p e r f o r a t i o n s . 

A. Yeah. The perfs were 10,462 t o -64, and then 

they p e r f ' d 10,469 t o -481. 

Q. Four eighty-one, a l l r i g h t . And what was 

there? Four shots or — 

A. Four shots per f o o t , yes, s i r . 

Q. They swabbed back 150 b a r r e l s of water i n 

eleven hours? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Squeezed the perfs? 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. Why does t h a t not represent i n the lower 
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p e r f s the highest known water contact i n Sequence 2? 

A. From my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the i n f o r m a t i o n , I 

t h i n k what one has t o consider i s , p r i o r t o p e r f ' i n g 

those two zones we've j u s t described, they p e r f ' d 

another i n t e r v a l t h a t flowed 162 b a r r e l s of water along 

w i t h 2.8 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas. 

Q. Where was that? 

A. That i s i n the i n t e r v a l j u s t beneath us a t 

10,496 t o 10,544. 

And from the information I have on t h i s 

t i c k e t , they d i d not t r y t o squeeze those o f f or plug 

i t o f f . They j u s t came up above and opened the upper 

ones. 

And any water t h a t was made, then, my 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i s t h a t i t ' s a combination of the two 

sets, or a c t u a l l y the three sets of p e r f o r a t i o n s . 

Q. We don't know, do we, were t h a t water i s 

coming form, which of the series of p e r f o r a t i o n s t h a t 

water volume i s being produced from, do we? 

A. Well, Mr. K e l l a h i n , when the f i r s t set was 

open only, i t made a l o t of water. Okay? And then 

they opened some others, and they made a l o t of gas and 

some more water. 

So j u s t s u b t r a c t i n g back, I don't t h i n k i t ' s 

unreasonable t o t h i n k t h a t most of the water may be 
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coming — or maybe a l l of the water i s coming from the 

lower set. 

Q. Do you see any evidence that they went back 

and squeezed the perfs and reshot the sequence i n 2 

zone? 

A. Okay, I'm going to have to read the t i c k e t a 

l i t t l e further. Give me a minute here. 

Yes, s i r , they did. 

Q. And what happened? 

A. That operation, the — I'm sorry, I've got — 

Q. Can you f i n d the entry on 9-9-80? 

A. I'm sorry, I'm struggling here. I can't 

relocate i t . 

Q. Okay, l e t me help you. 

A. Please. You've got a more detailed card than 

I have. That's part of my problem. 

Q. Well, l e t me loan you my copy. 

A. A l l r i g h t . I assume t h i s i s j u s t a 

commercial part, I suppose. 

Q. In summary, did they not t r y again and simply 

recover more water? 

A. The information before me i s that the — what 

you've c i r c l e d , that i t flowed an additional 40 barrels 

of water. This i s af t e r acidizing. 

I don't know i f they've broken into t h i s 
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lower i n t e r v a l now or what. I do know that i t made — 

i t made excellent gas and v i r t u a l l y water-free on DST, 

and then when they started testing the lower zone with 

the upper zone and then t r y i n g to mess with i t , i t 

looks l i k e they never did get the water shut o f f . 

I s t i l l think there's v a l i d information here 

that there was gas i n Sequence 2; and the apparent 

water i n the area, i t ' s not to me clear-cut where i t 

came from. The two zones are very close t o each other 

on the log. 

Q. When we look at the extent of Sequence 2 as 

we move to Rock Tank, we don't f i n d Sequence 2 being 

produced i n Rock Tank within the pool boundaries of 

that pool, do we? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Structurally, when we look at your 

in t e r p r e t a t i o n , the Exxon interpretation — Let's go to 

your map, Exhibit 9. 

A. Uh-huh. Let's see, I don't have the Exxon 

with me i f I need to compare. 

A l l r i g h t . 

Q. Do you have the Exxon — Mr. Kwolek's map? 

A. I do, thank you. 

Q. Did both of you use the same data point to 

map the structure? 
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A. Have we used the same data? 

Q. The datum, the same — the same p o i n t i n 

which — p o s i t i o n i n your structure? 

A. No, we haven't s i r . 

Q. And t h a t t h e r e i n explains why there are some 

di f f e r e n c e s i n — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n the elevation? 

A. The numbers f o r each w e l l w i l l be o f f roughly 

a hundred f e e t . They're about a hundred f e e t apart. 

Q. When we look a t Section 20, though, and the 

way the s t r u c t u r e i s contoured through Section 20, you 

gentlemen are i n agreement, are you not? 

A. Remarkably so. 

Q. Have you examined Mr. Kwolek's geologic 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i n terms of h i s conclusions about the 

water production out of the Number 3 Well i n Section 

5 — 

A. I have. 

Q. — and how i t impacts the Lower Morrow? 

A. I have. 

Q. Do you f i n d h i s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t o be 

reasonable f o r t h a t zone? 

A. Reasonable f o r d e f i n i n g the water leg i n Rock 

Tank, yes, s i r . 
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Q. Does i t add anything t o your s t r u c t u r a l 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i f you had included the Section 5 w e l l 

i n your cross-section? 

Well, I've confused myself. I had a 

s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-section. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. But on the on the s t r u c t u r e map there i s a 

l i n e of cross-section f o r you, okay? The f i r s t w e l l , 

the A Well, i n the A p o s i t i o n on the l e f t margin of 

your cross-section, your s t r a t i g r a p h i c ? 

A. Yes, r i g h t , I've got a l i n e of s e c t i o n on my 

s t r u c t u r e map, yes, s i r . 

Q. I was using t h a t as my index map. I f y o u ' l l 

go t o your s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-section, how come you 

d i d n ' t use the Number 3 Well i n mapping Sequence 2? 

A. A c t u a l l y , the i n t e n t was t o subdivide and 

also document and pick a w e l l t h a t i s produced — a 

Morrow producer i n the area, and help subdivide the 

Morrow, and the obvious conclusion i s t h a t Sequence 2 

i s not one of those t h a t i s producing up there. 

Q. Okay, you went f a r t h e r west than he d i d i n 

your p a r t i c u l a r examination of Sequence 2. I n other 

words, you have picked a w e l l f a r t h e r i n t o Rock Tank, 

loo k i n g f o r Sequence 2, and don't f i n d i t t o be 

productive? 
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A. Yeah. Well, he went i n there w i t h h i s cross-

s e c t i o n and covered a l l the producing w e l l s . 

Q. When we look a t your s t r u c t u r e map — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — you have displayed on the s t r u c t u r e map 

the acreage r e l a t i o n s h i p , and you've shown the Exxon 

acreage i n Section 17? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I t ' s going t o be — Section 17 i s going t o be 

s t r u c t u r a l l y updip i n Sequence 2 from the Santa Fe 

acreage i n Section 16, i s n ' t i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When we look a t the r e l a t i o n s h i p of Section 

20 s t r u c t u r a l l y , i f gas i s going t o be productive i n 

sequence 2 i n Section 20 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — i t ' s not going t o come from the Rock Tank 

Pool, i s i t ? 

A. Come from the Rock Tank Pool? I — The 

Sequence 2 does not produce up there, and I don't — 

wouldn't say t h a t they're r e l a t e d . They're d i f f e r e n t 

sands. 

Q. Yes, s i r , and you have not p r o j e c t e d the 

p o t e n t i a l production up i n t o there? 

A. No, s i r . 
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Q. Let me confirm again i n my own mind, then, 

when we look a t your s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-section, the 

Upper Morrow, when we s t a r t v e r t i c a l l y and go down 

from the datum p o i n t , Sequence 4 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — corresponds t o the Exxon Upper Morrow, 

does i t not? 

A. I believe t h a t i s c o r r e c t , yes. 

Q. And then we go down t o what you've i d e n t i f i e d 

as Sequence L l , and t h a t would be Mr. Kwolek's Lower 

Morrow t h a t he's mapped? 

A. I believe t h a t i s also c o r r e c t , yes. 

Q. Describe f o r us why you've taken Sequence 2 

as the primary o b j e c t i v e f o r the e x p l o r a t i o n i n t h i s 

area. 

A. Well, b a s i c a l l y when you're t r y i n g t o explore 

i n t he Morrow i n Lea and Eddy Counties, you l e a r n very 

q u i c k l y i t ' s not t h a t much u n l i k e the Morrow elsewhere 

t h a t I've worked, mainly i n the mid-continent. 

You f i r s t need t o determine your — your 

p a t t e r n s of sedimentary d i s t r i b u t i o n , where your sands 

l i e . 

And then when you go t o put a prospect 

together, w i t h rocks of t h i s age being — having been 

subjected t o diagenesis and a l l the f a c t o r s , you 
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immediately zoom i n on any w e l l t h a t , number one, has 

produced r e a l w e l l or has shown r e s e r v o i r 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s t h a t shows t h a t i t could produce o i l or 

gas i f i t was i n the r i g h t s t r u c t u r a l p o s i t i o n . 

And t h a t ' s why when we spotted t h i s t e s t w i t h 

9500 f e e t of water produced, showing e x c e l l e n t 

r e s e r v o i r c o n d i t i o n s , we t r i e d t o see what we could 

make of i t and hence our prospect i n Sequence 2. 

Q. I s i t f a i r t o characterize your t a r g e t i n 

Sequence 2 as a wi l d c a t o i l prospect i n Eddy County, 

New Mexico? 

A. Very much so. 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: A d d i t i o n a l questions of the 

witness? 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN LEMAY: 

Q. One quick c l a r i f i c a t i o n . I s i t your 

testimony, Mr. S e i l e r , t h a t i n terms of l o c a t i o n — 

We're t r y i n g t o come t o gr i p s w i t h the issues here a t 

the Commission. One of them seems t o be spacing? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. But the bigger was standup or laydown. 

Geologically, you can stand them up or lay them down, 

put them i n the northwest or the southeast, and 
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g e o l o g i c a l l y i t makes no difference? 

A. There are t r a d e o f f s f o r e i t h e r method, e i t h e r 

standup or laydown. I t can be done e i t h e r way. I f you 

— you're going t o have t o go t o the southeast quarter, 

you're going t o have t h i c k e r sand, but you're going t o 

be lower. And you can do t h a t w i t h e i t h e r a standup or 

a laydown. 

And t h a t ' s given the c o n d i t i o n s , again, of 

the northeast, so you can d r i l l up there s a f e l y . 

Q. Have you had any conversations or any work 

w i t h Stu Hanson w i t h Siete? Have you worked w i t h him 

on t h i s prospect? 

A. I — Yes, s i r , we discussed t h i s prospect. 

I t ' s been a while. 

Q. Do they have p a r t of — Well, maybe t h a t 

question would be more appropriate t o the next witness 

I ' d l i k e t o r e c a l l . 

A. Okay — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you very much. 

THE WITNESS: — I don't know i f there are 

any more witnesses, but — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, I ' d l i k e t o r e c a l l the 

only landman t h a t we've had here. I t h i n k — 

Yes, s i r ? You have another question? 

Please, Mr. P a d i l l a . 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. Mr. Seiler, i f you standup on t h i s 

nonstandard section, i f you standup on the west half of 

the proration u n i t at a standard location, would your 

— Can you t e l l me whether you would have to move your 

proposed location i n any way? 

A. I f i t were a standup? Oh, yes. 

Q. Standup. 

A. Yes. Yes, because we have to be 1980 from an 

end l i n e , 660 — no more than 660 from a side l i n e , and 

I think we're going to have a problem. I believe 

that's r i g h t . 

Q. Which direction would you — 

A. Let me look at that a second. 

(Off the record) 

THE WITNESS: I stand corrected. I think i t 

would work that way too. I t would work as a standup. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Yeah, the 1980 would work. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I stand corrected. 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) 1980. How about 660 from 

the side boundary? 

A. I t would be — You would s t i l l be 660 from 

the centerline of the section. 

Q. Even on a nonstandard section? 
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A. Yeah, t h i s i s a pe c u l i a r s e c t i o n . I t ' s 

sho r t . Because i t ' s an oddball — less than 600 acres, 

as i t turns out from the topo map, I get i t as only 

4900 f e e t wide i n an east-west d i r e c t i o n , as opposed t o 

5280. So we've got a l i t t l e problem there we'd have t o 

work w i t h . 

And then i t ' s longer the other way. I t ' s 

5400 f e e t long as opposed t o 5280. So t h a t would have 

t o be worked out. 

And then the next t h i n g i s t o f i t i t on the 

topography w i t h the problems we have on top of the 

canyon rim. 

MR. PADILLA: I don't have any f u r t h e r 

questions. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you. A d d i t i o n a l 

questions of the witness? 

You may be excused. 

Do you have any a d d i t i o n a l witnesses here? 

MR. PADILLA: No. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: We'd l i k e t o use our 

prero g a t i v e here and r e c a l l Mr. Vernon Dyer i f we 

might. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I want t o c a l l Mr. B i l l H i l l 

a t some appropriate time. Mr. H i l l i s my surface 

topography man. I t won't take but a few minutes, but 
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at some p o i n t I ' d l i k e t o introduce him. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Why don't you do t h a t , and 

then I ' l l f i n i s h up w i t h Vernon? 

(Off the record) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Perhaps t o expedite t h i n g s , 

Mr. Chairman, I ' l l clean up my e x h i b i t f i l i n g s . 

I ' d l i k e a t t h i s time t o move the 

i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t Number 8, which was the APD 

approved on the Siete Well i n Section 16. I've f a i l e d 

t o do t h a t thus f a r . I ' l l do t h a t a t t h i s p o i n t . 

The next e x h i b i t I have needs t o be stamped. 

I t c a r r i e s the wrong number. This should be Number 9, 

as opposed t o 10, but i t ' s also a topo map from which 

I ' l l have Mr. H i l l describe h i s involvement i n t h i s 

case. 

JOSEPH W. HILL, 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn 

upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. H i l l , f o r the record would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s Joseph Warren H i l l , and I'm a 

te c h n i c a l foreman i n constr u c t i o n w i t h Exxon i n the 

C i v i l Engineering Construction Group. 
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Q. What does that mean that you do? 

A. My primary re s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the l a s t eight 

years has been construction of d r i l l i n g roads and 

locations and subsequent reclamation. 

Q. Have you been involved i n fi n d i n g surface 

locations acceptable to the various governmental 

agencies and landowners i n Eddy County, New Mexico? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And are you familiar with the application by 

the BLM of t h e i r Surface Use Management Rules and 

Regulations? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. In dealing with those p a r t i c u l a r individuals 

with regards to the location of the well i n Section 20, 

with whom would you deal? 

A. Generally we c a l l a natural resources 

s p e c i a l i s t , a man named Barry Hunt out of the Carlsbad 

o f f i c e . 

Q. Would t h i s be the same gentlemen that the 

Santa Fe witness has referred to that he had 

conversations with? 

A. I'm sure i t i s . 

Q. Are you familiar with, then, not only the 

Rules but the application of those Rules by the surface 

management specialists of the BLM? 
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A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And have you applied that knowledge and 

expertise by going physically on Section 20 to 

determine whether or not, i n your opinion, based upon 

your expertise, there could be a well location f o r a 

well as we've described today i n the northeast quarter 

of Section 20? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. H i l l as an 

expert. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: His q u a l i f i c a t i o n s are 

acceptable. 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) Describe f o r us i n 

sequence what you have done to f a m i l i a r i z e yourself 

with the surface i n Section 20. And to aid you i n that 

discussion, l e t me refer you to what has been marked as 

Exxon's Exhibit Number 9. 

A. Okay, I can s t a r t from — I've made two t r i p s 

i n a l l to the location. Should I — 

Q. Describe the f i r s t one. 

A. Okay. The f i r s t one, I was contacted on 

rather short notice to go look at a surface — the 

Section 20 as we've been discussing — to see whether a 

proposed location could be staked. And t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

location, we had not been to the s i t e . I t was 660, 660 
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out of the northeast corner. 

Q. This was a few days p r i o r t o the November 

29th hearing before the Examiner? 

A. I believe i t was November the 27th. 

Q. And you made a physical i n s p e c t i o n , then, of 

the surface? 

A. Yes, I d i d . I went through the s i t e and 

found the l o c a t i o n , 660, 660, which was, because of 

topography, t o t a l l y unacceptable. I t would not have 

been b u i l d a b l e from a f i n a n c i a l standpoint. I'm sure 

the BLM would not have approved of i t . There were 

several problems w i t h i t . I t would not have been a 

safe l o c a t i o n . 

Q. I n examining the surface, d i d you f i n d t h a t 

the topographic map t h a t you're u t i l i z i n g , and a copy 

of which you presented today was accurate and r e l i a b l e ? 

A. Yes, i t was remarkably accurate as f a r as I 

could t e l l . 

Q. I s — I s t h i s the same topo map t h a t the 

Santa Fe witness used a while ago? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Describe f o r us — Was t h a t the end of your 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n , then, a t the f i r s t v i s i t ? 

A. No, at t h a t p o i n t , I took several p i c t u r e s 

myself. But the primary o b j e c t i v e I had was, as t h a t 
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l o c a t i o n was unacceptable, I looked f o r a l o c a t i o n as 

near t o t h a t spot t h a t I would consider a reasonably-

safe l o c a t i o n t o b u i l d , would be f i n a n c i a l l y b u i l d a b l e , 

j u s t a more s u i t a b l e l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Did you f i n d one? 

A. Yes, I d i d . I located a l o c a t i o n which i s 

roughly, as in d i c a t e d by the Santa Fe map — I'm not 

sure of t h e i r e x h i b i t number, but i t ' s a l o c a t i o n t h a t 

they represent as E-3. 

Q. When we look a t the topo maps and look a t 

t h a t E-3, there i s a p o i n t on the topo map where there 

i s an i n t e r s e c t i o n of two roads? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h i s drainage area, there's a l i t t l e V-

shape. Within t h a t area, then, i s the approximate 

l o c a t i o n of the well? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Now, the Exxon witness described t h a t 

t o be u n s a t i s f a c t o r y i n h i s opinion because i t was 

subject t o p o t e n t i a l f l o o d i n g a t some point? 

A. Okay, the Santa Fe witness? 

Q. Yes, s i r , the Santa Fe. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you come t o the same conclusion? 

A. No, I d i d not. There are several reasons 
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that that particular location i s not the problem that 

he suggested. 

In r e f e r r i n g to his map — and i t was 

something that I used — there are several things that 

you have t o take into account. 

These are 20-foot contours that are shown on 

the topographic map. The dashed l i n e that he has 

highlighted i n blue i s the flow l i n e of the drainage 

channel at that point, and i f you can mark back up, 

that's approximately 20 feet to 25 feet above the lower 

flow-line grade of the channel. 

I f you look back on t h e i r e x h i b i t , t o the 

southwest of Section 19, you'll see a series of small 

black dots, very small squares. That i s a ranch house, 

with some small sheds. You'll see some dotted lines 

emanating from that, which i s a fence l i n e . 

That i s a house b u i l t i n there at 

approximately the same distance from that flow l i n e , 

and i t ' s been i n existence for some time. 

The location that we looked at, and the 

existence of that road there are well above the water 

le v e l that comes down that channel. 

Q. Did you go to the top of what I ' l l 

characterize as the ridge and examine the area where 

Santa Fe has recommended t h i s afternoon that that i s 
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the best location, i f you w i l l , topographically t o 

place the well? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. You walked a l l through that area? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And what did you f i n d , and what did you 

conclude? 

A. Well, the — He was correct i n the f a c t that 

there i s r e l a t i v e l y no leveling to be done on the 

location i t s e l f . 

In the construction of d r i l l i n g p i t s , the 

construction of the d r i l l i n g c e l l a r , subexcavation i s 

necessary. And on top of these b l u f f s there i s very 

l i t t l e s o i l . The nature of the subsoil i s s o l i d rock. 

In order to build a location up on top of 

t h i s b l u f f , you are going to have to use explosives. 

You w i l l have to blast that location, not the location 

i t s e l f . And you might have some — some small rises i n 

the location that may have to be blasted. But the 

c e l l a r , the working p i t s and the reserve p i t themselves 

a l l must be blasted up there. 

Q. Having examined the topography of the area 

involved, and having looked at a l l the choices of both 

companies that have been generated over the l a s t few 

months, what i s your opinion as an expert as to a 
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s u i t a b l e topographic l o c a t i o n i n which t o l o c a t e the 

well? 

A. The l o c a t i o n — e i t h e r t h e i r l o c a t i o n 2, 

our — and 4, or our l o c a t i o n 3 would be acceptable 

l o c a t i o n s . 

The s o i l down i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r area i s 

sediment. I t ' s not s o l i d . I t ' s been deposited or 

washed o f f of the b l u f f over the years, and i t ' s a more 

workable m a t e r i a l . I don't believe i t should be 

characterized as s o l i d rock. I t h i n k i t ' s — There i s 

some rock i n there, and there i s some l e v e l i n g t o be 

done, but i t i s a sediment. I t ' s a deposited m a t e r i a l . 

Q. Did you examine the access i n t o the w e l l s i t e 

a l l the way from a usable access road? 

A. Yes, I d i d . There's a paved county road t o 

the south, approximately two miles, two and a h a l f 

miles. 

Q. From t h a t p o i n t t o the s i t e , i n c l u d i n g the 

s i t e , would you describe f o r us the k i n d of d i f f i c u l t y 

and expense, based upon your experience, t h a t ' s going 

t o be encountered by the i n t e r e s t owners involved i n 

d r i l l i n g the w e l l — 

A. Okay — 

Q. — and contrast t h a t , then, between the two 

l o c a t i o n s . 
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A. Okay. The road coming in, there's a dry hole 

that i s to the south of these — of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

section — and there i s a f a i r l y good road coming to 

that, though i t i s quite old, i t ' s weathered. I t would 

have to be rebuilt, e s s e n t i a l l y , resurfaced. Most of 

the surfacing material has been washed off. 

So you have approximately two and a half 

miles of road, possibly more, that would have to be 

reb u i l t , and the r e a l expense in that p a r t i c u l a r case 

i s depositing or hauling in surfacing material. 

Once you get up to the Section 20 and you're 

on top of the bluff, the additional expense in building 

locations on top as opposed to the bottom i s the 

approximately 2500 foot of road from the top down to 

the bottom. 

There was a concern at the hearing that the 

road would be unsafe, and i t i s possible to lay a road 

out, off of the top of t h i s , at a ten-percent grade, 

which would be — which i s within — well within safe 

l i m i t s as far as steepness of grade. 

I t i s not necessary to cut the road e n t i r e l y . 

I t ' s a balancing situation. You're — You're building 

on a p a r t i a l cut in a f i l l situation, so the road i s 

buildable. 

In my estimation, your difference in the two 
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locations i s probably i n the neighborhood of $2500 t o 

maybe $5000, and that i s s t r i c t l y the length of the 

road. 

The fac t that the sediment material at the 

base, at location E-3, i s workable would minimize the 

amount of p i t construction that needed to go on. I t 

would also possibly minimize the amount of surfacing 

material that needed to be put on i t , depending on what 

kind of material was found i n balancing the location. 

But i t ' s my estimation that you're looking 

somewhere i n the neighborhood of $2500 to $5000 

difference i n the two locations. 

Q. When you look at the area i d e n t i f i e d on your 

e x h i b i t , the E-l, there i s a c i r c l e scribed on the topo 

map — 

A. That's correct. 

Q. — on your exhibit, and that's shaded i n i n 

ink, the center point of which i s approximately the 

intersection of the two roads? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Did you return to t h i s s i t e a f t e r the 

November 27th, 1989, v i s i t to that location? 

A. Yes. As there was a concern that Mr. Hunt 

had viewed these particular sites and was against 

building a location i n that area, because of my 
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experience and the f a c t t h a t I d i d know Mr. Hunt, I 

c a l l e d him and asked him i f I could review the s i t e s 

w i t h him t o see exa c t l y what h i s concerns were. 

And I met him out there on December the 8th, 

and the geol o g i s t B i l l Tate was w i t h me a t t h a t time, 

and we discussed proposed l o c a t i o n s i n t h a t area. 

Q. what does the c i r c l e scribed on your e x h i b i t 

and i d e n t i f i e d as E-l mean? 

A. We looked at those l o c a t i o n s . There were two 

e x i s t i n g stakes from Santa Fe's pr e v i o u s l y staked 

l o c a t i o n s 2 and 4, and then I had picked a spot t h a t 

was approximately i n between those, and I asked Mr. 

Hunt i f he had any ob j e c t i o n , what e x a c t l y were h i s 

problems were t h a t . And he seemed surprised and 

in d i c a t e d t h a t he had no ob j e c t i o n t o those s i t e s , t h a t 

he had never voiced an ob j e c t i o n t o those s i t e s as safe 

b u i l d i n g l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. As best you know, i s he the appropriate BLM 

i n d i v i d u a l by which the f i n a l judgment i s made on 

b u i l d i n g these site s ? 

A. He i s the man t h a t attends, i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r area, a l l of the on - s i t e meetings, l a y i n g 

out roads, l o c a t i o n s , o r i e n t i n g the l o c a t i o n towards — 

I n t h i s case, we ta l k e d about o r i e n t a t i o n of the 

l o c a t i o n and how i t should be po s i t i o n e d i n t h a t place. 
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And he i s the man we always consult, yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination 

of Mr. H i l l . We wold move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s 

E x h i b i t Number 9. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: E x h i b i t 9 i n t o the record 

w i t h o u t o b j e c t i o n . 

Mr. Padilla? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PADILLA: 

Q. S i r , I've f o r g o t t e n your l a s t name. 

A. H i l l . 

Q. H i l l , okay. Let me show you Santa Fe's 

E x h i b i t Number 2. You've i d e n t i f i e d a ranch i n there 

a t the southwestern end of t h a t e x h i b i t , have you not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can you t e l l me whether the draw i n t h a t area 

of the ranch house, as i t proceeds n o r t h , i s steep? 

The draw i t s e l f ? 

A. I t ' s r e a l l y q u i t e wide i n t h a t area. 

Q. I t ' s r e a l l y wide, i s n ' t i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the l o c a t i o n of the w e l l you've drawn 

there i s considerably f u r t h e r than the ranch area; i s 

t h a t correct? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Now, can you t e l l me what the — what 

watershed empties into t h i s draw when i t rains? What's 

the watershed? Can you i d e n t i f y that? 

A. No, s i r , I can't. 

Q. Would you agree that at least as f a r as the 

northwest area of t h i s Exhibit Number 2 of Santa Fe, 

that water that — that water would drain i n t o that 

draw and proceed downstream towards the well site? 

A. Yes, i t would. 

Q. Can you t e l l me, s i r , do you have any idea 

how the sediment or deposit on the locations of Santa 

Fe Number 2 or the Exxon Number 3 or the Santa Fe 4, 

how that sediment would have gotten there? 

A. I'm sure i t was wind and r a i n . 

Q. Do you agree with me that some of that 

sediment would come from upstream as a r e s u l t of rain? 

A. In t h i s particular case, I don't r e a l l y think 

so. The r i v e r channel i t s e l f , i f you were — i f you 

had been — i f you've been on s i t e , the r i v e r channel 

proper i s easily i d e n t i f i e d by a large, baseball-sized 

gravel, r e a l heavy, pure white, extremely clean, no 

fines whatsoever. 

The area where t h i s location i s i s , l i k e I 

say, approximately 20, 25 feet higher than that. I t ' s 

approximately 200 feet from that area, and i t ' s sand, 
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s i l t , small gravel, grass, l o t s of vegetation. The 

two-track road i t s e l f i s pure fines. I t ' s not the 

same. 

Q. Is i t the kind of fines that would be swept 

aside as the r a i n was coming down the — as the water 

was coming down that draw? 

A. I think i f the water came down that high, i t 

would have washed those fines away as i t did i n the 

r i v e r channel, and i t did not. I t ' s deposited there. 

They are there. 

Q. You don't f i n d those fines down at the bottom 

of the stream bed, do you? 

A. No, you don't. 

Q. Mr. H i l l , how long have you — how many 

locations have you staked i n t h i s area? 

A. I n that particular area, four or f i v e . 

Q. In t h i s immediate area? 

A. In the — Yes, i n the mouth i n Dark Canyon — 

I've been associated with many of them. 

I don't stake them myself. I supervise 

construction. But I've been associated with many wells 

i n that area, i n one way or another. 

Q. How long — Well, you've been there twice; i s 

that your testimony? 

A. That's correct. 
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Q. And the second time was December 8th? 

A. December the 8th, r i g h t . 

Q. What other wells does Exxon have i n t h i s 

immediate area? 

A. There are some — There are more up towards 

Happy Valley, Happy Valley Fed Com, they're a l l i n that 

Dark Canyon area southwest of Carlsbad, there's Squaw 

Federal, Mary Federal, we have l o t s of acreage i n that 

are, and — 

Q. And how far away are those wells? 

A. Some of them are r e l a t i v e l y close, w i t h i n 

maybe four or f i v e miles. Some of them are further 

down towards Carlsbad, you know, to the northeast. 

But, you know, they're i n that general area. 

Q. You don't consider a ten-percent grade as 

dangerous? 

A. No, s i r . As a matter of fa c t , at times those 

grades are exceeded. There are state highways, higher 

grades than that, approaching 15 percent. Not for long 

segments, but ten percent i s the acceptable — 

Q. Do you know what grade — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Excuse me, I'm not sure the 

witness was finished responding. 

Q. (By Mr. Padilla) I'm sorry. 

A. That's fin e . Ten percent i s our contractual 
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requirement. We ask t h a t our c o n t r a c t o r s c o n s t r u c t the 

roads a t grades no greater than ten percent. They can 

exceed those grades f o r distances shorter than one-

t e n t h of a mile or 500 f e e t , but ten-percent i s an 

acceptable grade f o r a d r i l l i n g road. 

Q. I s n ' t t h a t your top l i m i t ? 

A. No, s i r . Like I said, you can exceed those 

grades i f — you know, i f conditions warrant t h a t , f o r 

short distances. 

Q. Do you agree w i t h Mr. Burton's testimony t h a t 

b u i l d i n g a l o c a t i o n a t the bottom of the canyon would 

cost approximately $50,000 more? 

A. No, I do not. 

Q. Do you agree t h a t the AFE submitted by Mr. 

Burton i s reasonable as has been s t i p u l a t e d by Mr. 

Kellahin? 

A. I agree w i t h t h a t . I agree t h a t the two and 

a h a l f miles of road c o n s t r u c t i o n i t s e l f are going t o 

cost you approximately $10,000 a mil e , and so you're 

t a l k i n g about $25,000 alone i n road c o n s t r u c t i o n . 

Then you add the l o c a t i o n c o n s t r u c t i o n , 

subsequent reclamation, i t can e a s i l y go t h a t high. 

The f i r s t estimate was way too low f o r a l o c a t i o n i n 

t h i s area. 

MR. PADILLA: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 
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CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Additional questions of the 

witness? 

A couple quick ones. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN LEMAY: 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d that you did not know an 

acreage, the watershed going to the Dark Canyon? 

A. No, s i r , I do not. 

Q. How about — Are you f a m i l i a r with the 

concept of the 50- or 100-year-old — 100-year floods? 

A. I am familiar with i t , though I'm not — 

That's not my expertise. I am not an engineer. 

Q. Right. Well, we're t a l k i n g about 20 feet of 

elevation over the bottom of t h i s thing. Do you know 

i f a 50-year flood would wash i t out or not, or a 100-

year flood would? 

A. I could not — 

Q. So we're t a l k i n g — 

A. — say. 

Q. — about something r e l a t i v e without having 

a l l the information i n terms of what's safe and what 

isn't? 

A. Yes, s i r . The — My observations were made 

on existing structures, houses, the appearance of the 
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s o i l , the appearance of the road, and there are 

ranchers' w i n d m i l l s , one t o the east and one t o the 

west t h a t are i n the same e l e v a t i o n , i n t h a t same — 

Q. I s i t possible — 

A. — area. 

Q. — a 50-year-old f l o o d could wipe out the 

ranch house as w e l l as the l o c a t i o n 20 f e e t o f f the 

bottom of t h i s thing? 

A. I suppose i t could. I r e a l l y — I guess — 

That's an area t h a t I have no expertise on. 

Q. Well, I — I j u s t — I have t o ask the 

question — 

A. Sure. 

Q. — because we're t a l k i n g about something 

r e l a t i v e w i t h o u t having a standard t o go by. 

I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Follow-up question, Mr. 

Chairman. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. The standards applied, as best you understand 

them, by the Bureau of Land Management includes 

consideration of f l o o d p l a i n s , does i t not? 

A. I t does, and t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n could 

e a s i l y warrant more study, but — 
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Q. You took Mr. Barry Hunt out there w i t h you, 

and i t was obvious t o you t h a t both of you were lo o k i n g 

a t a drainage area, was i t not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. He d i d n ' t r a i s e any questions about t h i s 

being i n a vulnerable f l o o d plan w i t h you? 

A. He evidenced no concern about t h a t . He f e l t 

t h a t i t was a prudent distance from the — the drainage 

channel, and he signed the e x h i b i t . 

I asked him because I knew, you know, t h a t we 

would not probably b r i n g him i n here, so I asked him i f 

he would mind signing my p l a t . But he had no o b j e c t i o n 

t o t h a t l o c a t i o n — 

Q. And d i d you watch him sign i t — 

A. — t h a t was f i n e . 

Q. — and i s t h a t h i s signature on your copy — 

A. That i s c o r r e c t — 

Q. — of Ex h i b i t Number — 

A. — and Mr. Tate witnessed the signature as 

w e l l . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you. I have no 

f u r t h e r questions. You may be excused. 

Could I c a l l Mr. Vernon Dyer back a t t h i s 

time? 
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VERNON D. DYER ( R e c a l l e d ) . 

the witness herein, having been previously duly sworn 

upon his oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as follows: 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN LEMAY: 

Q. Mr. Dyer, I must remind you you're s t i l l 

sworn as a witness. 

Trying to come to grips with the issues here, 

j u s t make some — play some games with me. Assume that 

the Commission gives 320 instead of 640, that that 

p a r t i c u l a r issue wouldn't be an issue. Then we get 

down to whether we're ta l k i n g about standup 320's or 

s i t - — or laydown 320*s. 

In consideration of the well i n Section 16, I 

did some rough calculations, and we started arguing 

where t h i s well i s going to be d r i l l e d . 

Example, whether there's a — I f we're 

t a l k i n g about the north half being the proration u n i t , 

Santa Fe would have — we'll c a l l i t — and Exxon would 

not j o i n , we would be ta l k i n g about maybe an optional 

farmout encompassing 280 acres from Exxon i f the 

Commission would give the north-half proration u n i t ; 

would that be a f a i r way to kind of put t h i s thing i n 

perspective? 

A. Yes, with the fact that the well i n 16 may be 
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d r i l l e d w i t h i n 60 days — 

Q. Right, before you d r i l l t h i s ? 

A. — which we f e e l — Yeah, we f e e l t h a t — 

Yes, t h a t would be f a i r t o say. 

Q. And i f you went w i t h standup 320's and you 

d r i l l e d and we d r i l l e d i n the northeast quarter, l i k e 

some of the l o c a t i o n s t a l k e d , we'd have an o p t i o n a l 

farmout, mandatory o p t i o n a l farmout from Exxon of 120 

acres? 

A. Yes, provided we get — 

Q. And i f we d r i l l e d i n the northwest of Section 

20, or t h a t was the l o c a t i o n , we'd have a 160-acre 

o p t i o n a l farmout from Exxon? 

A. Yes, f o r the east h a l f of the west h a l f . 

Q. For the — Right, east h a l f and west h a l f . 

And i f we had no agreement whatsoever, then 

Exxon might be considered t o have a f r e e r i d e . They 

could watch the w e l l i n 16 go down, and they would 

maintain t h e i r acreage ownership f o r the n o r t h h a l f of 

2 0 as w e l l as 17, t o be able t o develop? 

A. That's what they've i n d i c a t e d they want t o do 

a l l along, yes. 

Q. Yes, I understand t h a t . What I'm t r y i n g t o 

do i s — What you're asking the Commission t o do, i n 

essence, i s t o define the amount of acreage t h a t might 
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be c o n t r i b u t e d by Exxon t o an o p t i o n a l farmout i n 

Section 20. Would t h a t be a f a i r way t o characterize 

what we've been going through here today? 

A. Well, w i t h the f a c t t h a t 16 may be d r i l l e d 

w i t h i n 60 days, l i k e we t h i n k i t may be now, yes, 

t h a t ' s what i t ' s b o i l i n g down t o . 

When we s t a r t e d t h i s , i t was not because 

there was nothing — the 16 — Well 16 was a long ways 

away. There was no agreement made. We were t r y i n g t o 

negotiate w i t h Exxon who had made i t apparent t h a t they 

wasn't going t o do anything t o support us i n any way on 

anything. 

So we were going t o go ahead and d r i l l our 

w e l l because we were not the operator — We are not the 

operator of 16, which kin d of — We've ki n d of l o s t 

c o n t r o l of i t , as g e t t i n g i t spudded when we wanted t o . 

Siete had other things happening and they 

couldn't do i t t i l l — postponed i t t i l l — supposedly 

i t was going t o be i n the second or t h i r d quarter t h i s 

year — 

Q. So — 

A. — which gave us a chance t o go ahead and 

d r i l l the w e l l we wanted t o . 

Q. Are you going t o have some money i n the w e l l 

i n 16? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Are you — 

A. Yes, we are. 

Q. You are? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. How about Siete? Do they want some of your 

s t u f f i n 20 or are they going t o be a p a r t y t o t h a t or 

not? 

A. At t h i s time they are not. 

Q. They are not. 

A. We have — I t ' s kind of been — and I ' l l add 

here, i t ' s k i n d of been implied t h a t they're going t o 

have p a r t of i t . And w i t h a l l i n d i c a t i o n s , Exxon has 

— from the very s t a r t , has in d i c a t e d they are not 

going t o j o i n . They're e i t h e r going t o farm out or do 

nothing. 

I t has ki n d of been implied t h a t we would t r y 

t o s e l l h a l f of i t t o Siete, h a l f of our p o s i t i o n there 

t o Siete. 

Q. Well, w i t h the argument about the l o c a t i o n 

and a l l , and even w i t h the geology being a w i l d c a t , I 

t h i n k the Commission i s t r y i n g t o come t o g r i p s w i t h 

what — what are the t r u e issues i n t h i s case? And 

I've t r i e d t o s t a t e some o p t i o n a l issues here t h a t seem 

q u i t e r e l e v a n t as f a r as how much acreage goes i n t o any 
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w e l l d r i l l e d i n 20. 

Pr i o r t o t h a t the issue could have been 

described as how much acreage would Exxon c o n t r i b u t e t o 

the i n i t i a l t e s t ? Depending on where you d r i l l e d i t , 

they would — they would have d i f f e r e n t — because you 

have o f f s e t t i n g acreage too? 

A. Yes, yes. And I believe, you know — Well, I 

f i r m l y believe t h a t those who take the r i s k should reap 

the b e n e f i t , as f a r as — as f a r as you're going about 

the acreage c o n t r i b u t i o n and everything. 

And when — Like the 16 being d r i l l e d or 

supposed t o be d r i l l e d w i t h i n the next 60 days, we f e e l 

i t w i l l be, t h a t i t does work out t o t h i s s i t u a t i o n 

because of the delaying t a c t i c s , or whatever we want t o 

c a l l i t , t h a t ' s been happening t o prevent us from 

d r i l l i n g our w e l l when we wanted t o . 

Q. Well, the p a r t i e s are asking the Commission 

t o come up w i t h an order. That order would be t i m e l y . 

That order would also, probably — I've never 

seen i t be contingent upon another w e l l . I t would 

r e f e r only t o forced pooling w i t h i n the p r o r a t i o n u n i t 

as we would define i t , as w e l l as spacing. 

But the a c t i v i t y around t h a t p r o r a t i o n u n i t 

c e r t a i n l y influences the actions t h a t are going on. 

A. At t h i s time, yes. When i t was f i l e d i t 
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wasn't t h a t way, but now i t i s . I t has become p a r t , 

probably a major p a r t of t h i s . 

Q. Well, and I t h i n k i t ' s important t h a t the 

Commissioners understand what's going on. 

A. Well, we're not t r y i n g t o hide — 

Q. No, I know t h a t , but there's been a l o t of 

geological/engineering testimony and very l i t t l e land 

testimony, and i t would seem as f a r as the deal goes, 

the land p o r t i o n of t h i s i s a very s i g n i f i c a n t p a r t of 

what's d r i v i n g i t . 

A. Yes. Being a landman, I t h i n k t h a t ' s a major 

p a r t of anything. 

Q. Being a former independent, I can smell some 

of these things out, or t h i n k I can. 

So I wanted t o br i n g t h a t t o the b e n e f i t of 

maybe my f e l l o w Commissioners t o see i f t h i s may be 

t r u l y an important issue involved i n our d e c i s i o n when 

i t has not been a major p a r t of the testimony presented 

today. 

A. Yes, I have no problem w i t h t h a t . This i s 

the f a c t s t h a t are t a k i n g place now. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s there anyone else t h a t 

has any questions on the witness t h a t ' s been recalled? 

Okay, you may be excused. Thank you, Mr. 

Dyer, appreciate i t . 
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Do you want to wind t h i s thing up with some 

concluding remarks? 

MR. PADILLA: I ' l l be very b r i e f , Mr. 

Chairman. 

In l i g h t of the questions asked of Mr. Dyer, 

when the Chairman called Mr. Dyer, I think i t ' s 

important that the Commission look at what we submitted 

as Exhibit Number 8 and Exhibit Number 7, which 

indicates Santa Fe's e f f o r t s to develop t h i s area. 

This i s s t i l l a compulsory pooling case, even 

though we have the two issues of whether — the issue 

of whether or not 640-acre spacing would apply or 320-

acre spacing would apply. 

By way of shortening t h i s hearing, I think we 

somehow stipulated ourselves out of the e f f o r t s that 

Santa Fe has made i n order to develop t h i s area. 

The de novo hearing ce r t a i n l y has delayed any 

d r i l l i n g , and certain l y even though there's been no 

stay, there would be a considerable r i s k of going f o r t h 

and having some change as a result of the de novo 

hearing. 

But i f you look at the p r i o r record, I think 

i t ' s f a i r to say that t h i s was t r u l y a compulsory 

pooling case from the very beginning, with those 

c o l l a t e r a l issues of 640-acre spacing and 320-acre 
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spacing. 

Going back t o my opening statement, t o my 

opening statements, I t h i n k the Commission has t o go 

back t o those f i n d i n g s t h a t were made by the D i v i s i o n , 

Findings 8 and 9, and I t h i n k t h a t we have — we can 

come t o the conclusion t h a t u n t i l a w e l l i s d r i l l e d i n 

Section 20, we don't know whether i t ' s i n the Rock Tank 

area. 

I f — We have t o f o l l o w , and the Commission 

as w e l l has t o f o l l o w , the r u l e s and i t s own 

re g u l a t i o n s . While we may not openly advocate 320-acre 

spacing or 640-acre spacing, nonetheless, as f a r as we 

are concerned today, those r u l e s s t i l l apply. 

So t h e r e f o r e , I t h i n k t h a t the Commission 

r e a l l y has no d i s c r e t i o n but t o f o l l o w i t s r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Once the w e l l i s d r i l l e d , then i f a 320-acre 

spacing i s appropriate, then we would go t o t h a t area. 

The scope of t h i s hearing r e a l l y i s not t o 

create a new pool or decide what — That has never been 

the case, as t o whether or not we're i n a d i f f e r e n t 

pool or not. The scope of the hearing s t i l l i s 

compulsory pooling, and r e a l l y the Commission has no 

d i s c r e t i o n i f we're w i t h i n a mile — and we're 

c e r t a i n l y w i t h i n a mile by v i r t u e of the d e f i n i t i o n of 

the Rock Tank specia l pool r u l e s . 
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I think topography i s very important i n t h i s 

case. Photographs show the kind of area that i s found 

i n — at the bottom of the canyon. And I probably — 

The picture behind you i s probably an excellent 

i l l u s t r a t i o n of what we'd f i n d down there, i s that 

during a low r a i n f a l l you could have — f i n d water i n 

the very bottom. But i f you have a hellacious 

rainstorm you're going to have water spreading a l l over 

the valley. 

And I think that to say that — to compare 

that ranch building as Mr. — ranch area — as Mr. H i l l 

has, with the draw at the close location there are 

e n t i r e l y apples and oranges. 

I think the geology that we presented f a i r l y 

i l l u s t r a t e s that as we move further west we s a c r i f i c e 

very l i t t l e i n terms of — Santa Fe can s t i l l gain i n 

structure and that, I think, i s important to — insofar 

as the selection of the well i n the northeast quarter 

versus the northwest quarter. 

The northeast quarter location admittedly i s 

preferable from a geological s i t u a t i o n , but from a 

safety s i t u a t i o n and from an environmental s i t u a t i o n 

i t ' s not acceptable and there's some r i s k , that we 

don't s a c r i f i c e that much geology moving west with that 

location. 
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With t h a t , I would ask the Commission t o 

sus t a i n the Order of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. P a d i l l a . 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Gentlemen, t h i s has been a 

personally f r u s t r a t i n g case f o r me. We've t r i e d t o 

present a case today t h a t d e a l t w i t h what I have 

perceived t o be — The substance of the problem was a 

geologic question. The paramount one was the 

separation of the Rock Tank. 

But I f i n d l a t e i n the day t h a t t h e r e may 

have been a mistake on my p a r t i n not focusing your 

a t t e n t i o n on the e n t i r e case, and maybe t h a t ' s what we 

should do i n de novo matters. 

I t h i n k there's a way t o remedy t h a t . One 

i s , you can simply read the t r a n s c r i p t which i s already 

incorporated and s a t i s f y y o urself how we got t o where 

we are. 

My r e c o l l e c t i o n i s considerably d i f f e r e n t 

from the way I was sensing the tone of the answers t o 

the questions. 

When t h i s s t a r t e d o f f , we were being beaten 

about the head and shoulders w i t h the compulsory 

po o l i n g s t i c k . When you looked a t Section 16, there 

was a permitted w e l l where Siete and Santa Fe, w i t h 
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t h e i r own money and t h e i r own acreage, had made the 

decision to d r i l l a Morrow we l l . 

In Section 16, based upon t h e i r geology, we 

had a less favorable location. Their best geology was 

in Section 16. They in v i t e d us to part i c i p a t e i n a 

working-interest arrangement that included only the 

east half of our section. 

They didn't l i k e that, and because you can't 

pool working-interest units combining more than a 

single spacing u n i t , they picked out a d i f f e r e n t 

strategy. 

The testimony before Examiner Stogner i s , 

they had abandoned and given up d r i l l i n g the well i n 

16, and they were going to come over and explore on us 

to t h e i r advantage. They had a six-percent interest i n 

the entire section. We held the north half of the 

section, except for 37 acres. Amoco had the south 

h a l f , and they were going to use our acreage to develop 

t h e i r acreage. And that's the way i t played out. 

Exxon's got i t s own plans f o r development, 

thank you very much. 

We think the appropriate way to make that 

development i s with some seismic information, and we 

s t i l l have s u f f i c i e n t years l e f t i n the primary term of 

our federal lease to do that. 
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We don't want to waste our acreage. We want 

a t e s t f o r Santa Fe and Siete — and Amoco now, i f 

that's where they are now. They're t r y i n g to play our 

hand, and we'd l i k e to play i t . 

We concede that even a small-interest owner 

with a six-percent interest, under the Rules and 

Regulations of t h i s Commission, can f i l e a compulsory 

pooling case. 

We have some choices, but we think i t i s 

unconscionable to extend 640 gas spacing to t h i s 

section when both parties, regardless of t h e i r geologic 

perspective on how they came to t h i s case, can't t i e 

you back into Rock Tank. 

We don't want to be stuck with the 

development of Section 20 and our Section 17 with the 

presumption that 640-spacing i s going to apply, when 

the technical presentation before you and the only 

substantial evidence i n t h i s case i s i t doesn't work. 

I f y o u ' l l look through the correspondence 

before the Examiner, yo u ' l l also see something else 

that's interesting. At no point i n the negotiations 

with Exxon did Santa Fe take the position that the well 

location and the orientation was for geologic reasons. 

There was always a bureaucratic stumbling 

block that t o l d them that they couldn't d r i l l the best 
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location. One of them i s , Oh, we're i n a flood p l a i n , 

the BLM ju s t won't approve t h i s , the surface topography 

i s going to dictate the best geologic development of 

the reservoir. 

I sent Mr. H i l l out there to f i n d out, sent 

him there again to recheck. He's applied the 

disciplines of what he does and confirmed with the BLM 

the surface can be used where we propose to use i t 

w i t h i n an area wide enough to encompass several 

locations by both companies, and I don't know why the 

Commission should worry about that question when your 

question i s to prevent waste and protect corr e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s of the members. 

That's your decision, and then i t ' s up to the 

operator to go to the BLM and f i n d out i f he can or 

cannot, and we say he can. 

The other excuse we've been given i s , Oh, my 

goodness, you can't orient the spacing u n i t i n the most 

appropriate way because the BLM won't l e t you 

communitize two federal leases when you could lay them 

down and have one. 

Well, that's the BLM's choice. You're going 

to have to communitize t h i s regardless of how you turn 

i t , because you've got a 40-acre t r a c t that's non­

federal. 
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We have talked to Amando Lopez, and the 

tr a n s c r i p t before the Examiner shows Mr. Duncan's 

responses with Amando Lopez at the BLM, and he says 

communitization ain't the problem. 

So every time they raise a straw man and we 

whack i t down, they think of something else. But the 

bottom l i n e i s , the best geologic location i s the 

northeast quarter. And we're asking you to do that f o r 

us. 

Mr. Seiler t e l l s us that he can change the 

orientation either way, s t i l l end up with some standard 

locations. Our geology says that both wells ought to 

be i n the north half. 

We j u s t need some r e l i e f to cut through t h i s , 

and we're not t r y i n g to delay i t . We're t r y i n g t o make 

some choices, but i t ' s awful tough to make a choice 

when we don't know what the spacing i s . I f you can 

t e l l us what the spacing i s , maybe we can help choose 

some of the other answers, and i f not I guess y o u ' l l 

have to do that for us. 

To aid you i n understanding our position, I 

have prepared a dr a f t order, which I'd l i k e to submit 

to you, which supports our understanding of the facts 

and how we would write the order i f you choose t o adopt 

our position. 
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Exxon as a company, and I personall y as a 

lawyer, take p r i d e i n not t r y i n g t o use a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

processes t o delay. We simply cannot resolve t h i s 

matter without your assistance, however, and we would 

very much appreciate some r e s o l u t i o n of our d i f f i c u l t y . 

Thank you f o r your time. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

A d d i t i o n a l statements i n the case? 

I' d l i k e t o have a d r a f t order, Mr. 

P a d i l l a — 

MR. PADILLA: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — t o help us w i t h our 

deci s i o n . So can you have t h a t t o us i n 15 days, do 

you t h i n k , so t h a t — 

MR. PADILLA: I c e r t a i n l y can. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. Well, w e ' l l leave the 

record open f o r 15 days and then take the case under 

advisement. 

Thank you, gentlemen. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded 

a t 6:09 p.m.) 
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